CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG  CONG HOA XA HOQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
KHOAN PHU HUNG Pic lip - Tw do - Hanh phic
PHU HUNG SECURITIES THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Sb/No.: 57/2025/PHS-PL Thanh pho Ho Chi Minh, ngay 25 thdang 03 nim 2025
Ho Chi Minh City, March 25, 2025

CONG BO THONG TIN
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Kinh giti/ To: o Uy ban Chitng khoan Nha nwée/ State Securities Commission
of Vietnam;

o Sé¢ Giao dich Chirng khodn Viét Nam/ Vietnam Exchange;
o Sé Giao dich Chitng khodn Ha N§i/ Hanoi Stock Exchange;

o S& Giao dich Chitng kho#n Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh/ Ho Chi
Minh Stock Exchange.

1. Téncongty: CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KHOAN PHU HUNG (“PHS”)
Company name: PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION (“PHS”)

2 Dia chi tru s& chinh: Tfing 21, Phu M§ Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, Phudong Tén
Phii, Quén 7, TP. H6 Chi Minh.
Headquarters: 21st Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, Tan Phu Ward,
District 7, Ho Chi Minh City.

3 Dién thoai/Phone: (+84 28) 5413 5479 Fax: (+84 28) 5413 5472

4. Nguoi thuc hién cong b thong tin: Ong Chen Chia Ken
Person to implement disclosure of information: Mr. Chen Chia Ken

5. Loai cong bd théng [1Theoyéuchu [J24h 0 Bitthuong M Pinh ky
tin: As the request 24 hours ~ Extraordinary  Periodic
Type of information
disclosure:

6. N6i dung ciia théng tin cong bd:

Information of disclosed content:

Cén ¢t quy dinh tai Thong tw 96/2020/TT-BTC huéng din cong bd thong tin trén thi trudng
chitng khoan, PHS tran trong cong bd thong tin v& viéc hop Pai hdi ddng c¢b dong thudng nién
ndm 2025 nhu sau: _ ;

- According to Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC on guidance for information disclosure on securities
market, PHS sincerely discloses information about Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
in 20235, as follows:

A Nguoi ky: CONG TY CO PHAN
S CHUNG KHOAN PHU HUNG

' Ky ngay: 25/03/2025 09:53:35
Phu Hune
‘D



6.1 Thoi gian: 14:00, ngay 17 thang 04 nam 2025.
Time: 14h00 on 17 April 2025.

6:2  Dia diém: Ting 21, Phit M§ Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, phudng Tan Phi,
Quén 7, Thanh phd HS Chi Minh, Viét Nam.
Venue: 21st Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, Tan Phu Ward,
District 7, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

6.3 Tai liéu dugce sir dung tai Pai hoi ddng cb dong thudng nién nam 2025 dwoc ding
tai trén trang dién tir cia PHS tai hitps://www.phs.vn, phan V& PHS, muc Quan Hé
Cb Poéng, phan Cong b thong tin.
Documents used in Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 are posted on
PHS'’s website at https://www.phs.vn, tab About PHS, Investor Relations section,
and Information Disclosure section.

7. Théng tin ndy dugc céng bd trén trang thong tin dién tir ciia PHS vao ngay 25 thang 03
nim 2025 tai duong din: https://www.phs.vn, phin V& PHS, muc Quan Hé Cb Péng,
phan Cong bé théng tin.

The information is disclosed on PHS’s website on 25 March 2025 in link at
https://www.phs.vn, tab About PHS, Investor Relations section, and Information
Disclosure section.

Ching t61 xin cam két cac thong tin cong bd trén day 13 dung su that va hoan toan chiu trach
nhiém trude phap ludt vé ndi dung céc thong tin di céng bd.

We hereby certify that the information provided is true and correct and we bear the full
responsibility to the law.

Tai lidu dinh kém: PAI DIEN TO CHUC Al
Attached Document: ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE
(Ky, ghi v6 ho tén, chirc vy, déng ddu)
(Signatype; pull ngme, position, and seal)

w/ CONG TY \°
cO PHAN
CHUNG KHOA

Tong Giam doc
General Director



AGENDA

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION DATED APRIL 17, 2025
Time :02:00 P.M, April 17", 2025

Place : 21% Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho
Chi Minh City, Vietnam

A. OPENING SESSION

I.  Announce the quantity of Shareholders attending the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated 17/04/2025 (“AGMS”);

II. Introduce and pass the Chairman, the Secretariat of the Meeting and the Scrutiny team;
lll. Opening speech;
IV. Pass the Agenda;
V. Pass the Voting guide.
B. CONFERENCE
I. Discuss:
1. Pass the Audited Financial Statement in 2024;
2. Pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business performance in 2024;
3. Pass the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business performance in 2024;
4. Pass the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024;

5. Pass the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the private
placement of shares on 29 November 2024;

6. Pass the Report on updating the Charter recording the adjustment of new charter
capital;

7. Pass the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024 and the authorization for the Board of
Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the procedure to pay dividend for
shareholders;

8. Pass the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025;

9. Pass the Financial budget in 2025;



10. Pass the Selection of Auditor in 2025;

11. Pass the Election members of Board of Directors of the Company during the period
from 2025 — 2028;

12. Pass the Election members of Inspection Committee of the Company during the
period from 2025 — 2028;

13. Pass the Report of Board of Directors on the re-appointment of Mr. Chen Chia Ken
to be General Director of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028;

14. Pass the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection Committee;
15. Collect and check the Voting papers.

Questions & Answer

Read and pass Minutes of Vote counting, Minutes of Meeting, and Resolution

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

10.

Submission on the Audited Financial Statement in 2024,
(Enclosure: The Audited Financial Statement in 2024)

Submission on the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business performance in
2024;

Submission on the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business performance
in 2024;

Submission on the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024,
(Enclosure: Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024)

Submission on the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the
private placement of shares on 29 November 2024;

(Enclosure: Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the private
placement of shares on 29 November 2024)

Submission on the Report on updating the Charter recording the adjustment of new
charter capital;

Submission on the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024;

Submission on the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025;
(Enclosure: Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025)

Submission on the Financial Budget plan in 2025;

Submission on the Selection of Auditor in 2025;



11.

12.

13.

14.

Submission on the Election members of Board of Directors of the Company during the
period from 2025 — 2028;

(Enclosure: Curriculum vitae of nominated candidates for members of Board of
Directors)

Submission on the Election members of Inspection Committee of the Company during
the period from 2025 — 2028;

(Enclosure: Curriculum vitae of nominated candidates for members of Inspection
Committee)

Submission on the Report of Board of Directors on the re-appointment of Mr. Chen
Chia Ken to be General Director of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028;

Submission on the Proceduce of Inspection Committee.
(Enclosure: Proceduce of Inspection Committee)

-THE END-



PHU HUNG

SECURITIES CORPORATION

No.: 01/2025/BB-DHDCD

DRAFT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

MINUTES OF MEETING

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS DATED

APRIL 17, 2025

PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

Company name:

Address:

Business code

Business license:

Time

Venue

Agenda

Chairman of the Meeting

Meeting Secretariat

Scrutiny team:

Attendees:

Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS)

215t Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thali,
Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

0313642887

122/GP-UBCK issued by State Securities

Committee dated 20/01/2016

Commencing at ... P.M on April 17", 2025
Ending at ... P.M on April 171, 2025

215t Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai,
Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

According to the Agenda of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders dated April 17, 2025
which was noticed to all shareholders

Mr/Ms .......cooeneee.

Mr/iMs .................. — Chief of Meeting Secretariat
Mr/iMs .................. — Chief of scrutiny team
Mr/iMs .......ccoeeee. — Member

Mr/Ms .......cocoeeee. — Member

At ... P.M dated April 17t 2025 the attending
shareholders and their authorized persons are ...
shareholders; representing ... shares; taking ... of
the total voting shares of the Company (According
to the attached appendix)

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated
April 17t 2025 (“Meeting”) thereby convened in
validation as per Law on Enterprise and Charter of
Phu Hung Securities Corporation

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

dated April 17", 2025
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Dieu Nguyen Thi Bich
Text Box
DRAFT


.  MEETING OPENING PROCEDURE

1. Shareholders register attendances to receive documents, voting papers,
voting cards.

2. Mr/Ms .................. reads the report on Shareholder status verification.

3. MI/Ms .......cevenils introduces the participants in the Meeting:

MIIMS e — Chief of Meeting Secretariat
¢ Scrutiny team:

MI/MS .o — Chief of scrutiny team

MIIMS — Member of scrutiny team

MI/MS .o — Member of scrutiny team

Shareholders votes for passing members of Chairman, Meeting Secretariat,
Scrutiny team with ...% of “agree” ratio.

The Chairman, Secretariat, and Scrutiny team start proceeding the Meeting.

4. Chairman declares agenda of the Meeting.

5  Mr/Ms .................. reads the voting guidelines.

6. The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated April 17, 2025 votes for
passing agenda, voting guidelines and voting method of the Meeting. Voting
has ...% of “agree” ratio.

[I. CONFERENCE AND VOTING

At ... P.M dated April 17t 2025 the attending shareholders and their authorized
persons are ... shareholders; representing ... shares; taking ... of the total voting
shares of the Company.

Subject 1. Discuss and pass the Audited Financial Statement in 2024

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Audited Financial Statement
in 2024 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote %
Invalid vote %
Agree ... %
Disagree %
No opinion %

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
dated April 17", 2025 2/8



Subject 2. Discuss and pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the
Business performance in 2024

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Report of the Board of
Directors on the Business performance in 2024 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ... %
Invalid vote ... %
Agree ...%
Disagree ...%

No opinion ...%

Subject 3. Discuss and pass the Report of the Inspection Committee on the
Business performance in 2024

The Inspection Committee submits Shareholders to pass the Report of the Inspection
Committee on the Business performance in 2024 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote %
Agree .. %
Disagree ...%
No opinion ..%

Subject 4. Discuss and pass the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in
2024

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Report on Corporate
governance of PHS in 2024 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote ..%
Agree ...%
Disagree .. %
No opinion ...%

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
dated April 17", 2025 3/8



Subject 5. Discuss and pass the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital
raised from the private placement of shares on November 29",
2024

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the capital raised from the private placement of shares on November 29", 2024 as
attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ... %
Invalid vote ... %
Agree ...%
Disagree ...%

No opinion ...%

Subject 6. Discuss and pass the Report on updating the Charter recording the
adjustment of new charter capital

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Report on updating the
Charter recording the adjustment of new charter capital as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote %
Agree .. %
Disagree ...%
No opinion ..%

Subject 7. Discuss and pass the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024 and the
authorization for the Board of Directors to choose the suitable time
and proceed the procedure to pay dividend for shareholders

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Profit Distribution Plan in
2024 and the authorization for the Board of Directors to choose the suitable time and
proceed the procedure to pay dividend for shareholders as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote ..%
Agree ... %
Disagree .. %
No opinion ...%

Subject 8. Discuss and pass the Development and Business plan of PHS in
2025

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
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The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Development and Business
plan of PHS in 2025 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote %
Invalid vote ...%
Agree ... %
Disagree ... %
No opinion ..%

Subject 9. Discuss and pass the Financial budget in 2025

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Financial budget in 2025 as
attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote %
Agree ..%
Disagree ...%
No opinion ..%

Subject 10. Discuss and pass the Selection of Auditor in 2025

The Inspection Committee submits Shareholders to pass the Selection of Auditor in
2025 as attachment.
Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote ...%
Invalid vote %
Agree ...%
Disagree .. %
No opinion ...%

Subject 11. Discuss and pass the Election members of Board of Directors of
the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Election members of Board
of Directors of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028 as attachment.
Members of BOD are nominated as follows:

- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
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- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares
5 Mr/Ms:................coeeeeveeee. Independent Member of the Board of
Directors
- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

Subject 12. Discuss and pass the Election members of Inspection Committee
of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Election members of
Inspection Committee of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028 as
attachment. Members of Inspection Committee are nominated as follows:

1. Mr/Ms:............cceeevevienna...... Member of Inspection Committee
- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

- Agreed votes: ...shares
- Equivalent to ...% attendance voting shares

Subject 13. Discuss and pass the Report of Board of Directors on the re-
appointment of Mr. Chen Chia Ken to be General Director of the
Company during the period from 2025 - 2028

The Board of Directors submits Shareholders to pass the Report of Board of Directors
on the re-appointment of Mr. Chen Chia Ken to be General Director of the Company
during the period from 2025 — 2028 as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote %
Invalid vote %
Agree ...%
Disagree %
No opinion %

Subject 14. Discuss and pass the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of
Inspection Committee

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
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The Inspection Committee submits Shareholders to pass the Procedure on inspecting,
controlling of Inspection Committee as attachment.

Shareholders vote to pass with the ratio as below:

Vote result Number of shares (shares) Percentage
Valid vote %
Invalid vote ...%
Agree ... %
Disagree ... %
No opinion ..%

lll. MEETING CLOSURE

At ... P.M dated April 17t, 2025 the attending shareholders and their authorized
persons are ... shareholders; representing ... shares; taking ... of the total voting
shares of the Company.

MI/IMS ..o reads the Minutes of Meeting and the Resolution of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated April 17t, 2025 votes for passing
Minutes of Meeting and the Resolution. Voting has ...% of “agree” ratio.

The Minutes of Meeting are made in two English and two Vietnamese copies, stored
at Head Office of the Company.

MEETING SECRETARIAT CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
dated April 17", 2025 718



Enclosure:

1 Submission on the Audited Financial Statement in 2024
" | (Enclosure: The Audited Financial Statement in 2024)
5 Submission on the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business
" | performance in 2024
3 Submission on the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business
' performance in 2024
4 Submission on the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024
' (Enclosure: Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024)
Submission on the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised
5 from the private placement of shares on 29 November 2024
" | (Enclosure: Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the
private placement of shares on 29 November 2024)
6 Submission on the Report on updating the Charter recording the
" | adjustment of new charter capital
Submission on the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024 and the authorization
7. | for the Board of Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the
procedure to pay dividend for shareholders
8 Submission on the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025
" | (Enclosure: Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025)
9. | Submission on the Financial Budget plan in 2025
10. | Submission on Selection of Auditor in 2025
Submission on the Election members of Board of Directors of the
11 Company during the period from 2025 — 2028
" | (Enclosure: Curriculum vitae of nominated candidates for members of
Board of Directors)
Submission on the Election members of Inspection Committee of the
12 Company during the period from 2025 — 2028
" | (Enclosure: Curriculum vitae of nominated candidates for members of
Inspection Committee)
Submission on the Report of Board of Directors on the re-appointment of
13. | Mr. Chen Chia Ken to be General Director of the Company during the
period from 2025 — 2028
Submission on the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection
14 Committee
" | (Enclosure: Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection
Committee)

PHS - Meeting Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
dated April 17", 2025 8/8




SHAREHOLDERS
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS PARTICIPATING THE GENERAL MEETING OF

(Attached to Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders dated April 17th, 2025)

. The
AUthOSr(')ZnEd quantity of | Number of Percentage
No. Shareholder attepndin the shares votes (%) J
meetig being held (vote)
9 (shares)
1.
2.
3.
4,
5.

TOTAL




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness
—olo—

POWER OF ATTORNEY
TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
DATED APRIL 17", 2025 OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

1. THE AUTHORIZER:
[ E= T (=l LT =T =g e[ L oSO

T I RO I . s i W e S S L e Sy S

2. THE AUTHORIZED PERSON:

a. To specific individualsfinstitutions:

PSS o e R R A s T s L e e L

T =

RH Tl TR L CRSS R TP S TTTPRTIINS ) - | i SRS R S R SR TR AT bR RS

b. To member of Board of Directors
Mame of individual: Mr. Chen Chia Ken

Position: Member of Board of Directors cum General Direclor

112



3. SCOPE OF AUTHORIZATION:

The authonzed person has full authority to attend the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders ("AGMS") dated April 17™, 2025 of PHS and vote for all the content of the
AGMS for and on our/my behalf

We hereby undertake all legal responsibilities arising from this power of attomey and commit
to comply with prevailing regulations of the Company and the law,

THE AUTHORIZED PERSON THE AUTHORIZER

(Signature and Full name) {Signature and Full name)

Note:
- In case there is no authorized person (Item Z.a) attending the meeting, Shareholder can
authorize a member of the Board of Directors of Company (ltam 2.b).

- The Authorized person is not permitted to re-authorize to the third party.
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VOTING GUIDELINES
AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHODERS
DATED APRIL 17, 2025

PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

Ho Chi Minh City, April 17, 2025

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17%, 2020;
Pursuant to the current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation.
CONDITIONS FOR CONDUCTING THE MEETING

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS”) shall be conducted when the

number of attending shareholders represents more than 50% of the voting shares.

2. Where the number of attendees required is not satisfied within thirty (30) minutes
from the time set to open the GMS, the GMS may be convened for a second time
within thirty (30) days from the date of intended opening of the first GMS. Such
GMS which is convened for a second time shall be conducted only when the
numbers of attending shareholders or their authorized representatives represent
at least 33% of the voting shares.

3. Chairman of the Meeting may make changes to the meeting agenda based on

requests of attendees.
MEETING ASSIGNMENT

1. To voting and pass the followings: Agenda of meeting, the Voting Guidelines,

the Chairman, the Scrutiny team, the Secretariat.
2. To discuss and pass the following contents, including:

2.1 Pass the Audited Financial Statement in 2024;

2.2  Pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business performance in
2024;

2.3 Pass the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business
performance in 2024;

2.4  Pass the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024;
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Pass the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the private
placement of shares on 29 November 2024;

Pass the Report on updating the Charter recording the adjustment of new
charter capital;

Pass the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024 and the authorization for the Board of
Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the procedure to pay dividend
for shareholders;

Pass the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025;

Pass the Financial budget in 2025;

Pass the Selection of Auditor in 2025;

Pass the Election members of Board of Directors of the Company during the
period from 2025 — 2028;

Pass the Election members of Inspection Committee of the Company during the
period from 2025 — 2028;

Pass the Report of Board of Directors on the re-appointment of Mr. Chen Chia
Ken to be General Director of the Company during the period from 2025 — 2028;

Pass the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection Committee.

3. To vote and pass the followings: Meeting Minutes and Resolutions

C. MEETING’S REGULATIONS

1. Meeting registration

- Shareholder or the authorized person attends the meeting shall register with

the organizer in order to receive Voting card, meeting materials and sign on

the Register of Attendance.

- Late-coming shareholders reserve the right to register and vote at the

Meeting. The former voting results remain valid.

2. Discuss, give speech at the Meeting

To discuss and express opinions at the Meeting shall comply with the following

regulations:

- The shareholder shall present their names and code before giving the

speech.

- Chairman of the Meeting has rights to stop shareholder's speech if the

speech is not appropriate or offensive.
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3. Other provisions

Even if sufficient attendees as required are present, the chairman of the
General Meeting of Shareholders shall adjourn the General Meeting of
Shareholders to another time or change the location of the meeting decided
by the chairman without obtaining opinions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders if the chairman considers that (a) the location of the General
Meeting of Shareholders fails to provide suitable seating for all attendees, (b)
there is an attendee who disrupts or is likely to disrupt order at the meeting,
or (c) an adjournment is necessary so that the work of the General Meeting
of Shareholders will be carried out validly. In addition, the chairman of the
General Meeting of Shareholders may adjourn a meeting upon agreement or
request of the General Meeting of Shareholders even if sufficient attendees
as required for such meeting are present. The maximum time for any
adjournment of a meeting shall be three days as from the date of the
proposed opening of the meeting. The General Meeting of Shareholders
which is reconvened shall review the work which should have been legally

carried out at the previous adjourned meeting.

Where the chairman adjourns or postpones a General Meeting of
Shareholders contrary to the provisions in point an above, the General
Meeting of Shareholders shall elect another person from the attendees to
replace the chairman in conducting the meeting until its completion, and the
effectiveness of voting conducted at such meeting shall not be affected.

D. VOTING METHOD:

1.

Voting method: Voting by Voting paper

1.1. Voting paper is GREEN: has the hanging seal of Phu Hung Securities

Corporation, has information of Shareholder's name, code, name of the
authorized person, number of share has right to vote. Shareholders/

Authorized Person must sign and write full name into the Voting paper.
GREEN voting paper is used to pass the following:

- Chairman, the Secretariat and Scrutiny team

- The Agenda

- The Voting guidelines.
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1.2.

1.3.

Voting paper is YELLOW: has the hanging seal of Phu Hung Securities
Corporation, has information of Shareholder's name, code, name of the
authorized person, number of share has right to vote. Shareholders/

Authorized Person must sign and write full name into the Voting paper.
YELLOW voting paper is used to pass the following:

- The submissions

- Other subjects if considered necessary to vote by voting paper.

Voting paper is PINK: has the hanging seal of Phu Hung Securities
Corporation, has information of Shareholder's name, code, name of the
authorized person, number of share has right to vote. Shareholders/

Authorized Person must sign and write full name into the Voting paper.
PINK voting paper is used to pass the following:

- Minutes of the Meeting

- Resolution of the Meeting.

How to use: Shareholders or authorized people exercise their voting right
by marking (X) to the box corresponding to « Agree » or « Disagree » or
« Abstention » on the Voting paper when the Meeting Chairman requires to

vote.

For Voting paper to elect members of the Board of Directors and members
of the Inspection Committee during the period from 2025 — 2028: Follow the
method of cumulative voting, which means a shareholder will a number of
votes that is proportional to that shareholder’'s holding multiplied by the
number of members of the Board of Directors or the Board of Controllers
and a shareholder may use all or part of the votes for one or some

candidates.

Voting paper will be put in sealed box. The Scrutineers will conduct counting

and report the results of counting at the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

2. Voting paper are considered null and void

The Voting paper has wrong format, has no Company seal,

Voting paper is erased or modified;
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- Blank Voting paper;

- The Voting paper has neither signature nor full name of the shareholder or

authorized person.
3. To determine voting result

The subject is passed when there are favorable votes obtained more than 50% of
the total votes of all shareholders with voting rights who are present directly or via

their proxies;

As for Charter amendment, the favorable votes of the attending shareholders or

proxies shall reach at least 65% of the total voting shares.
E. COMPLAINTS AND DEAL WITH COMLAINTS

All complaints on the voting result shall be handled at the Meeting. The Scrutiny
team shall reexamine the votes and listen to the opinions of the General

Shareholders’ Meeting if there is a complaint.
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.: 01/2025/NQ-BHDPCD Ho Chi Minh City, April 17, 2025
DRAFT
RESOLUTION

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

Pursuant to:

Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14;
- The current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

- The Meeting minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholder No. 01/2025/BB-
DHDCD dated April 17t, 2025 of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

- Report on shareholder status verification and minutes of scrutiny at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“AGMS”) of Phu Hung Securities
Corporation is held at 2:00 P.M on April 17, 2025 at 215t Floor, Phu My Hung Tower,
08 Hoang Van Thai, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City, which thereby is
convened in validation.

Attendees:

- Shareholders of Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS) as the list recorded on
March 20t, 2025.

RESOLVES TO

The AGMS of Phu Hung Securities Corporation consents to pass these following
Resolutions:

RESOLUTION 1. PASS THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT IN 2024
The AGMS consents to pass the Audited Financial Statement in 2024 as attachment.

RESOLUTION 2. PASS THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON
THE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

The AGMS consents to pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business
performance in 2024 as attachment.

PHS — Resolution of AGMS dated April 171, 2025 1/4
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RESOLUTION 3. PASS THE REPORT OF THE INSPECTION COMMITTEE ON
THE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

The AGMS consents to pass the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business
performance in 2024 as attachment.

RESOLUTION 4. PASS THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF
PHS IN 2024

The AGMS consents to pass the Report on Corporate Governance of PHS in 2024 as
attachment.

RESOLUTION 5. PASS THE REPORT ON UTILISATION OF CAPITAL FOR THE
CAPITAL RAISED FROM THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF
SHARES ON 29 NOVEMBER 2024

The AGMS consents to pass the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised
from the private placement of shares on 29 November 2024 as attachment.

RESOLUTION 6. PASS THE REPORT ON UPDATING THE CHARTER
RECORDING THE ADJUSTMENT OF NEW CHARTER
CAPITAL

The AGMS consents to pass the Report on updating the Charter recording the
adjustment of new charter capital as attachment.

RESOLUTION 7. PASS THE PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PLAN IN 2024 AND THE
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
CHOOSE THE SUITABLE TIME AND PROCEED THE
PROCEDURE TO PAY DIVIDEND FOR SHAREHOLDERS

The AGMS consents to pass the Profit Distribution Plan in 2024 and the authorization
for the Board of Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the procedure to

pay dividend for shareholders as attachment.

RESOLUTION 8. PASS THE DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS PLAN OF PHS
IN 2025

The AGMS consents to pass the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2025 as
attachment.

RESOLUTION 9. PASS THE FINANCIAL BUDGET IN 2025

The AGMS consents to pass the Financial budget in 2025 as attachment.

PHS — Resolution of AGMS dated April 171, 2025 2/4



RESOLUTION 10. PASS THE SELECTION OF AUDITOR IN 2025

The AGMS consents to pass the Selection of Auditor in 2025 as attachment.

RESOLUTION 11. PASS THE LIST OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 2025 - 2028

The AGMS consents to pass the List of members of Board of Directors of the Company
during the period from 2025 — 2028 as follows:

1. Mr/Ms oo, - Member of the Board of Directors
2. Mr/Ms ..., - Member of the Board of Directors
3. Mr/Ms ..., - Member of the Board of Directors
4, MrIMs ......coviiiiiiiin. - Member of the Board of Directors
5. Mr/iMs ... - Independent Member of the Board of Directors

RESOLUTION 12. PASS THE LIST OF MEMBERS OF THE INSPECTION
COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 2025 - 2028

The AGMS consents to pass the List of members of Inspection Committee of the
Company during the period from 2025 — 2028 as follows:

1. Mr/Ms .o, - Member of the Inspection Committee
2. Mr/Ms ..., - Member of the Inspection Committee
3. Mr/Ms ..., - Member of the Inspection Committee

RESOLUTION 13. PASS THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE RE-
APPOINTMENT OF MR. CHEN CHIA KEN TO BE GENERAL
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD FROM
2025 - 2028

The AGMS consents to pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the re-
appointment of Mr. Chen Chia Ken to be General Director of the Company during the

period from 2025 — 2028 as attachment.

RESOLUTION 14. PASS THE PROCEDURE ON INSPECTING, CONTROLLING
OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE

The AGMS consents to pass the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection
Committee as attachment.

RESOLUTION 15. ORGANIZING IMPLEMENTATION
The resolution is effective from April 17, 2025.
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The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation is responsible for
organizing, leading the Company to implement the above content of the
Resolution.

ON BEHALF OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRMAN OF MEETING
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DAI HOI BONG CO BONG THUONG NIEN NGAY 17/4/2025
COMNG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KHOAN PHU HUNG (“PHS")

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
ON APRIL 17™, 2025
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION (“PHS")

bad e st s h et et s b bE g

PHIEU BIEU QUYET
VOTING PAPER
TEN CO BONGI Name of shareholder

TEN BAI DIEN UY QUYEN/ Name of the autharnized parson’
MA SO CO BONG/ Shareholder code:

50 CO PHAN CO QUYEN BIEU QUYET [ Number of shares with voting right: .. cb
phidulsharss

C& dong danh dau (X) hodc (v) vao 6 tréng twong Omg “Tan thanh”, “Khéng tan thanh”,
hodc “Khdng co y kien" ddi vir tieng vin dé can bigu quyét tai Bai hoi

Flease mark (X} or { <) to lhe box comesponding to "Agree”, "Dizsagree”, "No opinion” toward
e valing subjects.

STT NOI DUNG BIEU QUYET TAN | KHONG TAN “Hff’”‘-’é co
s et THANH | THANH | YKIEN
AGREE | DISAGREE | NO OPINION

Chd toa doan, Ban thw ky, Ban ' y
kiém phiéu '
| Chairman and the Secretarial and
| Seruting learm
3. Chwong trinh nghl s
The Agenda

Hirdong dan bigu quydt
The Voling quidelines

CO DONGINGUIOI BUCDC UY QUYEN
SHAREHOLDERYTHE AUTHORIZED PERSON
Ky va ghi ré hg tén
Signalure and Full name
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L ke bl ea i bepd st b o rtpa . pad

PHIEU BIEU QUYET
VOTING PAPER

TEN CO BONGI Name of sharehoidar:
TEN BAI DIEN UY QUYEN! Name of the authorzad person;
MA 50 CO BONG! Shareholder code:
S0 CO PHAN CO QUYEN BIEU QUYETINumber of shares with voting right.... cé phidu/shares
Cé ding danh ddu (X) hedce () vao & tréng twong (rng “Tan thanh®, “Khéng tan thanh”,
hodc “Khéng cd ¥ kién" ddi vl tieng vén @& cin bitu quyét tai Dai hoi

Flease mark (X) er (+) to the box comesponding to "Agree”, “Disagree”, “No opinion” toward the
volitng subjects.

: - TAN | KHONG TAN | KHONG CO
STT {
i NQI “L";Ig ;&E‘i QUYET THANH THANH Y KIEN
. AGREE DISAGREE | NO OPINION

| Bao céo Tai chinh Kibm todn nam 2024 |
_ Aud.-'[ed Fnancial Stalement in 2024

Béo cao cua Hoi dong Quan tr] vé Két qua
3 hoat déng kinh doanh nam 2024
i Report of the Board of Directors on the |
Business performance in 2024 [ |

Bao cao cla Ban Kiém soat vé Két qua |
hoat déng kinh doanh nam 2024 ,
Repaort of the Inspection Commitfee on the '
Blusiness performance Jn 2024

Bao cdo vé tinh hinh quan trj Céng ty nam |

2024

Repart on Corporate govarnance of PHS fn

2024

]




| Bao cao tinh hinh sir dung von cho nguon |

| von thu duge tir dgrt phat hanh cd phiéu
rigng l& ngay 29/11/2024

| Report on Uhitsation of Capital for the capital |

| raized from the private placement of shares |
| on 28 November 2024 .
| Bao cao vé vigc cap nhat Bléu & ghi nhan
diéu chinh vén dieu 1& m&i
Raport on updaling the Charer recording the
| adjustment of new charer capifal N
Fhl.mrng an phan phoi lgi nhuj an nam
2024 va uy qu'_.rén cho Hdgi ﬂﬁng Quan trj
lvra chon théd didm phi hop va tién hanh
thii tyc chi tra cé tire cho cd déng
Profit Distribution Flan in 2024 and the
authonzation for the Board of Directors fo
choose the syifable Hme and procead e

_ rocedure to pay dividend for shareholders

8

2023

Ké hoach phat trién va kinh doanh cioa |
Céng ty trong nam 2025
Cevelopment and Business plan of PHS i

. Dy todn ngan sach trong nam 2025
| Finamcial budget i 2025

10.

13.

14,

" Lira chon don v kidm toan déc 13p nam |

2025
| Selection of Auditor in 2025

| Bao céo Hoi ddng Quan tri v& viéc tai bd |

| nhiém &ng Chen Chia Ken lam Tong Giam
5 doc Cong ty nhiém ky 2025 - 2028
| Report of Board of Directors on the re-
| appoiniment of Mr. Chen Ghia Ken fo he
| General Director of the Company dunimg tha |
| perfod from 2025 - 2028

Quy trinh kidm tra, kiém soat cia Ban |

Kidm sodt

Procedure. on inspecling, confroling - of

inspechion Commities I

cO BONGINGUST BUOC UY QUYEN

SHAREHOLDER/THE AUTHORIZED FERSON

Ky va ghird ho tén
Signature and Full name
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THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
ON APRIL 17", 2025
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORFORATION (PHS}

A e i

PHIEU BAU CUF THANH VIEN HOI DONG QUAN TR|
ELECTION CARD FOR MEMBERS 0OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TEN CO BONGIName of shareholder

TEN NGUSI BLrOC UY QUYENIName of the authonzed persan;

MA 50 CO PONG! Shareholdars code!

SO CO PHAN CO QUYEN BAUINumber of sheres with electing right: ... b phidufshares

TONG S0 LUONG PHIEU CO QUYEN BAU /Tolal number of voles with vating rghls’ . phiéu
bawvoizs

Phigu bifu quyét nay tuong dng véd sd thir tw 11 trong ndl dung thae luin cia Chwong trinh
ngh| sy This voting card comespands fo the Number 11 in the discussion eontant of Agenda

STT | HO VA TEN U'NG VIEN | SO PHIEU BAU
No. | Fiali name of candidale | Mumberof voles

Ong/Mr ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING

1 i o - . .
| Thanh vién HHi dong Quan tifMember of the Board of Directors

i AngiMr NGUYEN BOAN HUNG

2. \ oo
| Thanh vién H3 dong Quén triffember of thve Board of Drectors l
4 | OngiMr CHEN CHIA KEN |
" | Thanh vién Hgi déng Quan triMember of the Board of Diractors |
4 | Gng/MrWu, JIN-JENG

| Thanh wén Hai dong Quan tri'Member of the Board of Directars |
| Bams LIN, HSIU-CHU

9. Thanh vién dic 1ap Hoi Gong Qudn tifindspendent Marbear of
| the Board of Directors

Tong cong/Tolal

CO BONGNGLO BUQC UY QUYEN
SHAREHOLDER/THE AUTHORIZED PERSCON
Ky va ghi rd ho tén
Signafure and Full name

Ghi chaNols!

€ dong o quydn dén hit hogic mit phin ting sé phidu biu cda minh cho mit hodc mit st drg cir
v, cf déng co thé chia déu s ,uméfr bdu cho (g cir vién bang cdch dénh diu (X) hodc | +) vao oot
&8 phidy blu, Téng efing =6 phidy by cho ebe dng et vidn khdng virpt qué fong 50 Irgng phide duec
phép baw Sharehoider may ose ai or part af the voles for one or sowme candidate, Sharefolders can egually
chwicle the puember of vates for the candédate by marking (x) er (<) in fhe namber of voles column. The total
numberof vales for the candidaies doas nol axceed e toral numberof votes afiowad o vode,
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THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
ON APRIL 17", 2025
PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION (PHS)

FHIEU BAU CUF THANH VIEN BAN KIEM SOAT
ELECTION CARD FOR MEMBERS OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE

TEN O DONGIName of sharehalder

TEN NGL'OI BUDC UY QUYENINams of the authonzed person:

MA 50 cO BONG! Shareholders code:

50 CO PHAN CO QUYEN BAWNumber of sharss with slecting right: ..., cb phidulshares

TENG SO LUCNG PHIEU CO QUYEN BAU (Total number of voles with vohing rights: .. phiéu
bduivoies

Phiéu bidu quyét nay twong tmg vid sd thiv ty 12 trong ndl dung thdo lugn cia Chirong trinh
ngh| sw' Thiz voling card comesponds to the Number 12 in the discussiaon content af Agenda.

STT HO VA TEN UNG VIEN | S0 PHIEU BAU
Na, | Full narme of candidate _ Number of voles
OngMr LIEW SEP SIANG

1.
_| Thanh vién Ban Kiém seat/Members of Inspection Commiliee - |

Gng/Mr CHIU, HSIEN-CHIH
| Thanh vién Ban Kiem soat/Members of Inspection Commitiee
BaMs WANG, GWAN-FANG

3%

| Thanh viégn Ban Kiém sodl/Mombers of Inspechon Commitize

| Téng cong/ Toral |

O BONGINGU'D BUQC UY QUYEN
SHAREHCLDER/THE AUTHORIZED PERSCN
Ky va ghi ré ho tén
Stgnature and Full hamea

G chifVone:

ca :Fﬂnf cd quyén ddn hét hode md ;:ll.in tong &6 phitu biu cia minh cho mit hodc mat 56 ong cor
vidn, Cd domg oo thé chia déu s phiéu bdu cho dng cir vién bang cach danh diu (X) hodc () vao ot
=6 phidu biy, Tdng cong 56 phidu biu cho cde dng cov vidn khdng viret qud téng sd lrong phidy durge
phép bdu’ Shareholder miay use aff or part of the voles for one or some candidafe. Sharehalders can equally
divide e mumber of voles for the candidale b marking (35 or {«1 e nomibse of valas coltimir. The tofal
aumbarof vilos for the candidates doss nol exceed e lalal mumber af wofes allowed fo vole.
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PHIEU BIEW QUYET
VOTING PAPER

TEN CO DONGI Name of sharehalder
TEN BAI DIEN UY QUYEN! Name of the authanized person:
MA SO CO DONG! Shareholder code:

50 ¢O PHAN CO QUYEN BIEU QUYET! Number of shares with voling right: .. cé
phiéulshares

Cd dong danh déu (X) hodc (¥) vao 6 tréng Lwong dng “Tan thanh”, “Khéng tan thanh”,
hodc “Khang cé ¥ kién” déi voi timg vén A& can bigu quyét tai Dai hoi

Ploase mmark (X)) or [+ to he box comesponaing to “Agrea”. "Disagraa’, “No-opimon”™ toward
the woling subjects

| KHONG TAN | KHONG CO
THANH ¥ KIEN
. | DISAGREE | NO OPINION
Bién ban Bai Hoi
Minutes of the Meeting ‘

WESEF -
STT NO| DUNG BIEU QUYET TAN THANH
M AGENDA AGREE

- Nghi quyét Dai Hoi
fesolution of he Mealing _

CO DONG/NGU'ON DUO'C UY QUYEN
SHAREHOLODER/THE AUTHORIZED PERSON
Ky va ghl rd ho tén
Signature and Full name



Ho Chi Minh City, March 25", 2025

LETTER OF INVITATION
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated April 171", 2028

Te: Shareholders: <Full name=

= FPursuant to the Law on Enterpnses No. 58/2020/QH14 issued by the Mational Assembly
of Sacializt Republic of Vietnam,

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 34/Z013/QH14 |ssued by the Mational Assembly of
Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Basad on the Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corparation;

- Based on the Resolution Mo, 01/83_0325MA-HEAT dated March 24", 2025 of Board of
Directars ("BOD") on the issues discussed on the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders ("AGMS"} dated April 177, 2025;

= Based on the Sharsholders’ Register on the record dated March 20", 2025 of Phu Hung
Securities Corporation {"PHS");

¥ou are cordially invited to the Meeting:

Time . 02:00 P.M, April 17™, 2025 (Thursday)

Venue | 21% Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 0B Hoang Yan Thai, Tan Phu Ward,
District 7, Ho Chi Minh City

Agenda | Please seethe sttached Agends
All the documents related to the AGMS dated April 17", 2025 have besn posted at www.phs.vn,
tab Investor Relations for your further consideration.
Your attendance will be highly appreciated

Tridy yours,
OM EEH 2DARD OF DIRECTORS
PHU H[1ES CORPORATION
Enclosure: L
A KWA HIM TING

CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Power af Attorneay.

For the proper receplion, please confirm your altendance or sending Fower of Attorney as
altached form (as fo Authonzation to member of Board of Directors) via Fax or emai before 5 PA
dated April 14", 2025 contact delails;

= Fhone {84 28) 5413 5478 Ext: 8181
s Confacl : Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich Diau

« Address :21% Flogr, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai Tan Phu Ward
District ¥, Ho Chi Minh City

a  Email ! disunguyvenbichilphs vn
s Fax C(84 28) 8413 5472
Kindly bring your 1D cardipassport and Powsr of Attomey (if yvou are authorized)




PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom - Happiness

No, . C4.f2025/TTr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 Apnl 2025

SUEBMISSION FOR APPROVAL

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2024

TO: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securiies Corporation submits to The Annhual
General Meeting of Shareholders to pass the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 was audited by KPMG Lirmnited Vietnam.
The financial statements has been disclosed as required by law and posted up the
Company's website at (hittps:{f'www . phs_ vn) which include:

1/ Statement of the Board of Management

2! Independent Auditor's Report

3 Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024

4 Statement of income for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024

5/ Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024

&/ Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2024

Tl Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

In which, including key items as follow:

No. ltems Amount (VND)
1 Total assets 3.931,365,369,257
2 Owners' equity 2.067,097.810,747
3 : 1 Revenue 506,649,713.886
4 Profit before tax 340,912 582
5 Profit after tax B | . 1UEﬂﬁ3535

Please kindly consider and approve.

Enclosura:
1. Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

A rl;ﬁ,l

s |
ALBERT KWANEE-CIjIN TING

Submiegsion to AGMS - Audited Financial Siatemants
far ihe year andad 31 December 2024 11
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KPMG

Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024



Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Corporate Information

Establishment and
Operation Licence No.

Enterprise Regisiration
Cerfificate Mo,

Board of Directors

Inspection Committee

Board of Management

[22/GP-UBCK

| BIGPDC-UBCK
25GPDC-UBCK
03/GPDC-UBCK
03/GPDC-UBCK
10/GPDC-UBCK
107/GPDC-UBCK
4HGPDC-UBCK
12GPDC-UBCK
D3GCN-UBCK
M/GCN-UBCK
ARGPDC-UBCK
§2GPDC-UBCK
STGEN-UBCK
THGPDC-URBCK
HWGPDC-UBCK
102/GPDC-UBCK

20 January 2016
22 June X6

25 July 2016

23 January 2017

L1 January 2018
29 November 2018
26 December 2018
21 Anpust 2019

4 March 2020

6 Jume 2020

16 June 2020

24 June 2021

28 September 2021
311 December 2121
20 Aupust 2022

11 November 2022
24 December 2024

The Establishment and Operation Licence and its updates were issued
by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam.

0313642887

20 Jamuary 2016

The Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended several
times, the most recent of which is by Enterprise Registration Certaficale
No, 0313642887 dated 22 November 2022. The initial Enterprise
Registration Certificate and its updates were issued by the Department
of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City.

Mr. Albent Kwang-Chin Ting
Mr. Nguyen Doan Hung

Mr. W, Jin-leng

Mr. Chen Chia Ken

M, Lin, Hsiu-Mea

Mr. Liew Sep Siang
Mr. Chiw, Hsien-Chih
Ms. Wang, Gwan Fang

Mz, Kuo, Ping-Min

Mr, Chen Chin Ken
M=, Pham Thi Thu Mhan

Charrman

Memher

Member

Member

Independent Member

Head of Inspection Commitlze
Member

Member

(from 17 Apnl 2024)
Member

(until 17 April 2024)

Lreneral Directon
Deputy General Director

&0

P



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Corporate Information (continued )

Registered offices

Hend Office

Phu My Hung

Transaction Office

District 3 Branch

Tan Binh Branch

Thanh Xuan Branch

Hai Phong Branch

District 1 Branch

Aunditor

21" Floor, Phu My Hung Tower
B Hoang Van Tha Street

Tan Phu Ward, Dhstrict 7

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Ground Fleor, CR2-08

107 Ton Dat Tien Strest
Tan Pho Ward, Districs 7
Ho Chi Minh Citw, Vietnam

4" Floor

458 Meguyen Thi Minh Eha Street
Ward 2, District 3

Ho Chi Minh City, Victnam

Park Legend Building

231 Hoang Van Thu Street
Ward 2. Tan Binh District
Ho Chi Minh Ciy, Vietnam

5® Floor, Udic Complex Building
M4 Hoang Dao Thuy Street

Trung Hoa Ward, Can Giay District
Hanoi, Vietnam

2 Floor, Eliteco Building

18 Tran Hung Dao Street

Heang Van Thu Ward, Hong Bang District
Han Phong City. Vietnam

Foom 1003A, 107 Floor
#1-83-53B-B3 Ham Nghi Street
Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District |
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

EPMG Limited
Wietnam

f=y
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Fhm Hung Securities Corporation (“the Company™}) presents this
statement and the accompanying financial statements of the Company for the vear ended 31
December 2024,

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presantation of the financial ststements in sccordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Viemamese Accounting System for emterprises, Circular No. 21002014TT-BTC dated 20
December 2014 ("Circular 2107} issued by the Ministry of Finance on the promulgation of
accounting guidance for secunities companies, Circular No, 3342016 TT-BTC dated 27 December
2016:("Circular 334™) issued by the Ministry of Finance amending, supplementing and superseding
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210 and the relevant statutory reguirements applicable
to financial reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Management:

(a) the financial statemends set out on pages & to &4 give a true and fair view of the fnancial
position of the Company s at 31 December 2024, and of its results of operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for enterprises, Circolar 210, Circular 334 and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reponing; and

(b} at the dute of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Company wall not be able
to pay s debis as and when they fall due.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authonsed the sccompanying
financial statements for 1ssue.

T, Chen Chea Ken
Creneral Divactor

Ho Chi Minh City, 3 March 2025
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KPMG

KPMG Limited Branch

10th Floor, Sun Wah Tower

115 Mguven Hue Street, Ben Nghe Ward
District 1, Ho Chl Minh City, Vietnam
+84 (28) 3821 9266 | kpmyg.comyn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Phu Hung Securities Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Phu Hung Securities Corporation
(“the Campany"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto
which were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Management on 5 March 2025, as
sat out on pages 6 to 64,

Management's Responsibility

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for enterpnses, Circular No. 210/2014TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014 (“Circular 2107) issued by tha Ministry of Flnance on the promulgation of
accounting guidance for securities companies, Circular Mo, 334/2018TT-BTC dated 27
December 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance amending, supplementing and superseding
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210 and the relevant statutory requiremeants applicable
to financial regering, and for such intemal control as the Board of Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Owir responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Wa
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing, Those standards
require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements are free of material misstatemant,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain auvdit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the rsks of materal misstatement of the financial
statements, whathar due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal contrcl relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriata In the clrcumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intermal
contrel. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company's Board of Management, as
wall as evaluating tha overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur audit apinion.
4
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Auditor's Opinion

In aur opinian, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
financial position of Phu Hung Securties Corporation as at 31 Decamber 2024 and of its results
of operations and its cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises, Circular Mo.
210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30 Decamber 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance on the
promulgation of accounting guidance for securities companies and Circular No. 334f20H8TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance amending, supplementing and
superseding Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210 and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Limited's Branch in Ho Chi Minh City
Yietnam

Audit Report No.: 24-01-00440-25-1

Fham Huy Cuang

¥ g Practicing Auditor Registration
Eertlficﬂte No. 0863-2023-007-1 Cedificate No. 2675-2024-007-1
Deputy General Direclor

Ho Chi Minh City, 3 March 2025
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

A CLURRENT ASSETS
(100 = 110 + 1.30)

I Financial asscis
Cash and cash equivalenis
.1 Caxh
I.2 Cash eqguivaleniz
2 Financial assets al fair valoe
through profit or loss (“FYVTPL™)
3 Held-to-maturity investments
4 Loans receivable
£ Allowance for diminution in
value of financial assets
i Receivables
Tk Dhvidend amd inferest
receivabies from financial assets
B Prepavmenis o suppliers
Q Recervahles from services rendered
12 Ohiher receivables
13 Allowance for doubtful debes

I (Mher corrent asscis

l Advances

3 Short-term prepaid expenses

i Tax recerviehle from the State
Treasury

B LONG-TERM ASSETS
(200 = 220 + 250)

I Fixed assets
I Tanzible Nixed assets

Cagt

Arcwmulnred depreciation
3 Intangible fixed assets

Cost

Arcernilated awmortisaiion

Other long-term assets
Long-term deposits

Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets

Deposits at Payment Support Fund
Ohiher long-term assets

TOTAL ASSETS
(270 = 10d) + 2040}

=

Code

100

110

11
It
112

112
113
114

116
117

1172
118
119
122
129

130
131
123

156
200

220
221
222
2230
227
228
22%

250
251
252
253
254
285

270

MNofe

3

T(a)
(b}

Form BO1 - CTCK
(Fsswed wnder Circidar No. 3342006TT-B1C
dated 2T December 2006 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2024
VND

181,971,791,32]
38430, 103, (dd

143,541 688,277

73.857.466,068

€5 (00, D00, D00

31112/2023
YND

3,848,310,376,508 3,959,452,700,074

3,840,828,798,363 3,954,792,801,205

156,824,308, 864
Q373936013
105,450,372, 851

00 634,482,673

654,213,238 356

e 2874,796.226,533 2,951.919,275,.244

I 1{a}
B

9
10
| 1{k)

12{a)

14

15
12(b)
16
17
18

(47,534,983 549)
31.291,372,400

31,291,372 400
L175,067 215
3,773,839,584

13.808,912,532

(8,3 10,893,741}

7.481,578,145
246,977,600
5,174,553 497

2 060,047 D48
£3,054,092,749

28,747 496,335
| 1,974,883 600

J18F2 143,364
(39,837,259, 764)
[B, 772,612,735
JO87 716,400
{20, 107.101.665)

54,307,406 414
5,470,397 057
10,152,079.973
4, 141,330,600
19,464,116, 068
10,079,572.716

(30,551,507, 140)
74, 788,081,040

T4 TER.081, 049
T, 108,023,307
3,964,076,031

12,786,514, 140

(6,893,691,319)

4,659,898, 864
162,595,400
4. 497,303,469

81,285,660,824

23,745,314.504
13,B05,025,065
47220400 T84
(33,.424,376,200)
0040, 2809 444
20,0097 616 400
(16, 150,326,956)

57.540,355.315
5.637.869,733
|8,287,789,360
6,591,125.211
16,964, 116,068
10,059,454,943

A930.365,369,257 4,040,738,369, 898

The accompanying notes are an integral pars of these financial statements
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

LIABILITIES (3040
= 310 + 344

Current habilitics

Short-term borrowings and

finance lease liabilines
Short-rerm borrowings

Accounts payable for securilies

trading activities

Accounts payable to suppliers

Advances from customers

Taxes pavable to State Treasury

Emplovees' benetits pavahle

Accrued expenses

Unearned revenue

Oiher payables

Long-term liabilities

Provisions — long-term
EQUITY (400 = 410

Orwners' equity
Share capital
Share capitel
Treasury shores
Rezerve to supplement
share capital
Retained profits
Realized profits
Linrealised profitef lnsses)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY (440 = 300 + 400)

Code MNote

300

310

3l
312

118
320
32
a2z
324
325
327
329

354

410
411
111
£11.5

414

417
170
£17.2

440

Form B0l - CTCK

{ Fisued weder Cireular No, $382006TT-BTC

is

20

31/12/2024
VND

1,564,267 558,510

1.562,166,673,210

1433 388,000,000
1,433, 388,000,000

369, 7635 881,440
713,921,382
S00,000,000
8,156,530, 434
373470775
17,565,079, 800
43,164,711
211,615,668

2,100,885,300
2,100,885,300

2067 047 810,747

2,067 097,810,747

2,000,097 0055, 000

200N, 08, 150, (0K
i f, 185 00K}

12,064,908 139
54,935,307 606
47619965451

T3I5842 157

dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

SN2
VYND

1 428,745 8213 487

2426,614,761,125

195900440, 000,000
F 9 O, CNH, EMK)

189.121,316,960
66,259,697

11,262 298,962
T2, 753,773
23.311,796, 104

11.720,335,629

2,131,062,362
2,131,062,362

L611.5991,546.411

1,611,992,546,411

1,500,067 005,000

1,500,098, 190,000
(1, 185.000)

12,064,008, 139

99, 830,543,272
T05.003 116 298

(5,172.373.026)

3,931,365,369,257

4,040,738 369,594

The pocomprarying rotes are on inleprad port of these feancial siatements
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B0l - CTCK

{Tasared weder Circnlar Noo 33482006 TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Code IA12rH024
VIND

A. THE COMPANY'S ASSETS AND LIABILITES
i Shares in circulation (guantity of secunties)  (0G 200,009 329
7 Treasury shares (gquantity of secunbies) 007 4490
] Listed/megistered financial assefs at Yietnam

Secunities Depository and Clearing

Corporation (“V3DCT) of the Company L 2RZ1.330,000
G The Company’s financial assets custodied ar

VE5DC but not vet troded (G4 2420, 000
1y The Company’s financial assels in transit olg 150,000,000
13 The Company’s right to receive finangial

Ansels 3 T8O, D
14 Cover warrant issued by the Company

(quantity ) 014
B. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATING TO

ASSETS MANAGED BY THE COMPANY
| Investors” listedfregistered financial assets

at VSDC 021 %,280.006,820,000
i Freely traded financial axsets 0211 7648 665 3580,000
b Financial assets restricied on fronsfer 0212 26,638, 870,000
C Pledped financial asiets 0213 FEF 000 R0 (e
i Bilocked francial aisels 0214 J1 2,000, 690, 00
e Financial assets awaiting sertiement 0215 143,482 400,000
2 Investors" financial assets custodied at

WVEDC bur ol vel traded 022 IOE 452 100,000
a  Freely traded financial assets custodied at

VSN by not vet traded 022 1 FRAR0 120000
I Custodied fnoncial assers et VRO bt not

ver traded aned restricied on rransfer 022.2 31,127 980,000
3 Investors’ financial assets in transit 023 212048, 640,000
& Investors’ rights to receive financial assets (25 TTO32 300,000
T Investors” deposits 026 T10.651,908,994
7.1 Investors” cash deposits managed by the

Company for secunties transactions 0z7 296,077.799,776
7.2 Investors’ margin deposits at VEDO 0274 414,574, 109,218

311272023
VND

150,603,329
240
13,602,690,000

2420, 000
218,600,100

145, 200,000

| 065,800

&, 178,036,075,000
FA09 234,325, (K]

27910, 510,000
21 8,067, 990, (00
12,000, 690, (06
F 30216, 560, 00

371 080,410,000
735,400,070,000
295, 280, 340,000
164.619,850,000
£.242,480,000
763.571,527,689

425, 1536,275,773
38415251916

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statenenis




Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B0l - CTCK
{ Isswed wnder Circular No. 333/2006/TT-BTC
duated 27 Decerber 2018 of the Minisiry of Finance)

. A2 2024 VI 223
ez VND VND
b Pavables o investors Tor cash deposits

managed by the Company for securities

transactions 031 206,077,799,776 425,156,275,773
8.1 Pavables to domestic invesiors for cash

deposits managed by the Company for

securilies ransactions 031.1 291, 260,423,224 420 20, 181,753
8.2 Pavables to foreign investors for cash

deposits managed by the Company for

securiies rnsactons 031.2 4. 811,376,552 4,952 004,020

5 March M125

Prepared by: Reviewedby: o'~ Apphuved by:

Ms. Nguyen Phuong Trinh Ms. Do Thi Ai Vy b, Chen Chia Ken
Acteiniant Chigfl Accowntant Creneral Direcior

The accomparying netes ave an integrel part of these financlal statemeits

oS L il

i



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of income lor the year ended 31 December 2024

1.3

1.6
1.9
[.10
L.11

I
2:1

o

24
2.6

2.7

210
2.11
2.12

OPERATING INCOME

Gaimns from financial assets wt fair value

through profit or Toss (“FVTPL")
Ciing frovn sales of financial aisels ar
FVYTPL

Unirealised paing from revaliiation of
Financial assers at FVTPL

Dividend and interest income from
firancial assets at FVTPL

Imterest ncome from held-to-maturity
investmenis

Interest income from loans and
receivables

Revenue from securities brokerage
Eevenue from secunbies cusiody
Eevenue from advisory services
Oither operating income

Total operating income

OPERATING EXPENSES

Losses from fnancial assets at FYTPL
Losses from sales of finomctal axsers ai
FYTPL

Unrealised losses from revaluotion of
financial assets at FVTPL

Increase in revalwation of covered
wairrandy povaliles

Allowanee for loans and receivables
Expenses for securities rading end
investments

Expenses for securities brokerage
Expenses for secunties custody
Expenses for advisory services

Cither operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Code Note

01
afd
012
1.3
L
13
L
)

10
11

20

21
211
212

214
24

26
af
L
il
32

40

20

271

18

26

i 1{a)

2%

L1k}

Form B02 - CTCK
[ Issued under Cirewlar No, 33420/6TT-BTC

dated 27 December 2018 of the Ministry of Finance)

2024 2023
YD VND
12.554,313,374  14,328.354,65)
5.634.885838 11017029327
6,346,806 416 2.088633, 744
§72.621,120 322,600, 580
37,337,733.669  73,112,766,792
178,533.424,347  314.274.638.330
145,494,281,929  150,678,112,953
7440303 838 5,500,085 994

32,727,273 :
1,766,199,137 R45 048,647
483.168,073.767 559,039,907_367
2.162,643449  9,872.081,763
2,562,252216  0.775,671.605
{210 340 55¢0) (97, 955.053)
(189.268.211) 189268211
17.999,697.389  17.390,111.654
4443480016  3.174.982,003
166,777,540.418 168,864,542 818
TU07,728.846  6,388,857,906
1,147,155396  1,155,892,164
1.417,202422 (550,447,607
201,855.456,936 206,287,921.601

The cecompanving notes are on integral part of thexe financial statements
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B2 - CTCK
{esped iider Clrcidar Mo, 2342006 TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Minisiry of Finance)

2024 2023
Code Mote YND VND
1] FINANCIAL INCOME
31 Realised and unrealised foreign
exchange gains 41 21.624,954,153  393247017.136
3.2 [mierest income from bank deposits 42 [326,686,076 1, 431,657,677
Total linancial income S0 15.481,640,229  40,759.604,813
IV FINANCIAL EXPENSES
4.1 Realised and unrealised foreign
exchange losses it | 69 136,122,795 B4 859,712,000
4.2 Interest expense a2 3 [2B.806,052, 741 149 135,757 455

Total financial expenses il 197.942,175.536  233,985.469.455

¥l GENERAL AND
 TRSTEATON s . M | 106,679,984,276  103,166,761,773

¥I1  RESULTS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES o

(70 = 20 4 50— 40 — 6l — 62) 70 172,097.248  56,359,.359,351
Vil OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES
b | Dither ingome 71 308, 753709 468,124,194
8.2 Other expenscs 72 138 938,375 628,242, 585

Results from other activities

(80 =71 — 72 B 168,815,334 (160,118,301 )
Ix ACCOUNTING PROFIT BEFORE

TAX (90 = 70 + 80} o0 M0,912.582 56,199 240,90
&1 Realised (loss) profit before tax 91 (12,147.502,600) 110472817374
02 Unrealised profdloss) before nx g2 12488,415,183 (542736076414

The accompanying notes are an inlegral port of these financial statements
11
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024 (eontinued)

Form BO2 - CTCK
{ fsxued wader Ciroular No, 3342006TT-BTC

dated 27 December 2000 of the Minisiry of Finance)

Code Note

X INCONE TAX EXPENSE 1y
1] Income lax expense - curment (00,1
12 Income fax benefit - deferred (0.2
X1 NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 200
{ 2000 = 9 - 13}
Xl OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 100
INCOME 7
X1l  EARNINGS PER SHARE 2
13.1  Basic earnings per shire 50
5 March 2025
Prepared by: Reviewed by:

__-_zli!- [\__ ’[

ll.l'_ll_. _:_:_
e ——— ._P_'_'f.,k-""’
Ms. Npuyen Phuong Trinh Ms. Do Thi Al Wy
Accounian Chief Accovenian!

The accompanying notes are an infepral part of these fnamcial statements

232,549,546
2,7T83,0054,935

11.,648,447,958
14,335,.289,259
{2,550.205,389) (21.836.841,301)

108,063,036

44.550,793,002

297

: r.en Chia Ken
General Direcior

i

L

_'_-_
T
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024
{Indirect method}

Form B0O3 - CTCR

flesied wnder Civewlar No, 3342008TT-8TC

dated 27 December 2016 of the Minisiry of Finrance

Code

2024
YD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amoriisation of hixed assets

Allowances and provisions

Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)flosses
Interest expense

Cains from disposals of Nixed assels
Accrued interest moome

Changes in npon-monelary expenses

Revaluation losses from financial assets af

F¥TPL
Change in non-monetary incmme

Revalpation gams trom financial asseis at
F¥TPL

Dperating profit before changes in
working capital (30 =01 + 02 + 10 + 18§)
Decreasef(increase) in financial assets at
FVTFL

(Increase)decrease in held-to-matunry
Invesiments

Decreasel(increase) in loans receivable
Decrease in inferest receivables and scorual
of dividends, inferest on financial assels
Decrease in recervables from services
renderad

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables
Increase in other assets
(Decrease)increase in accrued expenses
Deerease in prepaid expenses

Corporate income tax paid

Interest paid

Increasef{decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in emplovees” benefiis pavables
[ncreasefidecrease ) in taxes payable o the
State Treasury

Decrease in payables to employess
[nerease in other payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

01

3

31

32
a3

KL

37
0
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

47

43
50

i

340,912,582
102,130,274,525
10,368,660,174
18,370,501, 769
(5,742,000,000)
125.806,052,741

(49,072,940, 1.59)
1 399,608,767)

(399,608, 767)
(6,34 6,500,416)

(6,346,806, 16)

95,724,771,924
23.334,163,577

{41, 786,761,644)
T1,123,048,711

73,169,648, 808

190,236,447
(1,022,308, 392)
(4,497,074,345)
(3,361 ,266,594)

7.458,459,359
(8,719,340,658)
(131,191,502.451)
6,580,617,777
717.002

2, 110,526,195

1,045,813,321

2023
YND

56,199,240,960
214,689,026,513
8,862.0134,251
16,981,711,065
57,165 000,000
149,125,757 455
(594,909
(17,444 586,249)

97,310,158

07 310,158
{2,988.633,744)

(2,088 633 744)

267,996,943, 887
(B0.838. 781 811)

|14, 100,008,220
(960.281,9435,959)

3.859.588,081
219.918,215
(3,598,503,493)
1.657.810,127
3.499.200,900
(14,534,752 (198)
(146,371,092 469)
(5.773,580,5%4)
2,307,000

(3,273,250, 3400
(6,146,000
199,425 544 150

96, 159,639,037

(621,916,242,165)

The aceompanying notes are an fntegral paet of these finonctal statements
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024
(Indirect method = continued)

111

Form B03 - CTCK
I ssned wnder Circalar No, 3342006 TT-B1TC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

2024 2023
Ciale VND VND
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for additions to fixed assets i (15,370,542 001 (7402907 915)
Receipls from disposals of hized assets 62 - SO0, A1

Met cash flows from investing activities 70 (15,370,542 000} (7,402,317 0049

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds [rom issuing shares 71 SO CROH, D00, D0 -
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 73 T.R90.447 000,003 9302 704 124 10]

Pavmenis to settle loan principals T4 (B441.357,000.00 (9292 439,124,101
Dividends pand to the shireholders 76 (44,731 3345800 (37,592,696,400)

Net cash Mows from financing activities 80 (95,641,334, 580) 62,262 303600

Met cash Mows during the vear % (14,852,517.543) (567,056,255,574)
Cash and cagh equivalents at the

beginning of the year 101 196824308864  763,880,564.438

Cash and cash equivalents af the cnd of

the year (Note 5 103 181,971,791,321 196,824,308, 564
" Cash fa JEA 36 F0F 084 S 37F3036,003

®  Cash egqouivalenis 032 M35 688277 J05, 450 372851

The accmmpanving notes are an inteeral part of these financial starements
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024
{Indirect method — continued)

Form B03 - CTCK
{Issied under Circular No. 334200 6/°TT-8BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance|

CASH FLOWS OF CUSTOMERS FROM BROKERAGE AND ENTRUSTMENT ACTIVITIES

2024 2023
Coe VND VND
Cash Nows of costomers from
brokerage and entrustment activilics
Proceeds from sales of securities brokered
by the Company i IH.621.844.527,649  3K.749,240,984 544
Payments for purchases of securities
brokered by the Company 02 (37 E76401,068,030) (39,824,401 E12.944)
Deposits received o settle secunties
ransactions of cusiomers 07  B2277045297 503 55 500.518.225.396
Cuostomers’ margin deposits at VSDC 07.1 16,158.857,302 71,213,172, 507
Pavments 1o selile securibics transactions
of customers 08 {53,149.757 972709 (54.217.612.300.741)
Payments for custody fee of customerns’
secunties 11 (2,709,260,341) (2,063,062 ,040)
Met cash flows during the year 20 (52.919.618,695) 27T6,895,197,722
Cash and cash m]lli"l'ﬂli'l'ltﬁ of costvmers 3 63 5T1.527 ARG 6 THA20 O
at the beginning of the year ik bl os SHTANIT
Cash in bunks at the beginning of the year 31 763,571,527 689 486,676,329 967
" Coash deposits for securifics fransactions
of customers managed by the Company 52 761,571,527 659 A86,676,320.067
Fie which: Customers' margin deposits at
Vibo J38415251,916 267 202,079 409
Cash and cash equivalents of costomers
Cash tn banks ot the end of the year 4] T10651.H1E,594 763,571,527 680
" Cash deposits for sechrilies Iransacifons
af customers managed by the Company 42 FI005 1,908 994 763371527089
In which: Customers’ margin deposils at
VS 414574 109218 338415251 816
3 March 2025
Frepared by: Reviewed by:
B h k_ ) -
= R e
Ma, Mzuyen Phucog Trinh Mz, Do Thi Ad Yy Mr. Chen Chia Ken
Accouniant Chief Accounian Creneral Director

The accompanying notes are an tegral pars of these financial statemenis
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 31 December 2024

Form Bid - CT'CK
{lssned wnder Cirowlor No. 33420060TT-BTC
dareed 27 December 2000 of the Mimstor of Finanee)

Dpening balance as st Movenenis during the year ended Closing halance as ai
1712023 1FL2024 LN 22023 I M4 AN M23 AITA2024
I reese (Mheeremse) T repese: {Decrease)
YD YND YMND YD VD ¥MD VMDD VD
Share capital 1.500,098 100,01 S00,0098, [ 90,000 - = SO0,000000, (KW = 1 SOH R, 19000 2 OO0 O, 190000
Treasury shares [1,183,0040) [1,V&S (KT} . - - - (1,185, 0K03) {1, 145,000
Reserve to supplement
shan: capital |2, Ohaet, T, | 35 12,0604 5498, 1349 - | 2,064 558,139 [ 2,064,995, 139
Financial reserve | 2,064 500, 139 - (120645958, 135 o 3 - #
Retained profits TRII6A]1T 93] U9LAML543,272 110889467 535 (B4, ZTH542.204) 12488415153 (57 3R3 15084 99.530543,272 S U5 B0T 60R
dor e
Realised profits M TTASI4.543  TOS (02 P16 298 SRA2 daS G : s (RAIBOFIR LT 122939081950 822704 131
Trawnsfer from fincmeal !
FERErVE - - 12,064 008 130 - - - 12,0604 UOR [0
Lhividend distriltion
[Mote 25) - - E CELALE T | E (SR FUE T (F0008 S65 3000 (5,002, 7UI 7
Linrealiveq profies’
{ foases) SO 103 188 (5172 574.026) - (54 273670444) 12 HANE L5 T8 - (5 172 573.006] FA5842. 157
Tutal LAYL Q46192040 1611992546410  110LBE9 46T 555 (96, 240,540,353) 512488415183 ;_--'5 AL E4T) 1,61 1,992,.546,411 2,067 007 810,747
3 Maoch 2025
Prepared by Reviewed by: i boy:
'___!fn:lL L
. o
——— e
M. Nguyen Phuong Trinh ids. Do Thi A Yy Wr, Chen Chia Ken
Arcowthant Chief Accounitant Creneral DNrector

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Pho Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Form Bi% - CTCK
{ Tezeeeed wrneler Clrcular No, 3342008TT-RTC
dated 27 December 2016 af the Minisory of Finance)

These notes form an itegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

Reporting entity

Establishment

Phu Hung Securities Corporation {“'the Company™) is a joint stock company established in Victnam
under Establishment and Operation Licence Mo, 1220P-UBCK dated 20 January 2016 15s5ued by the
State Securities Commission of Vietnam, The Establishment and Operation Licence has been
amended many times, and the most recent of which was Establishment and Operation Licence No.
[OMGPDC-UBCK dated 24 December 2024 issued by the State Secunties Commission of Vietnam.

The Company was established on the basis of combining Phu Hung Securities Corporation (*PHS™)
= gstablished under Establishinent and Operation Licence No. 2HFUBCE-GPHDED  doted |
December 200 and An Thanh Securities Joint Stock Company (“ATS"). Accordingly, the Company
took over all of the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of PHS and ATS as at 19 January 2016
and PHS and ATS ceased their operations from 20 January 2006, Assets and habilies of PHS and
ATS as at 19 January 2016 were transferred to the Company at book value and the met asset (1otal
assety — tolal liabilites) of PHS and ATS as at 30 September 2015 formed the share capital of the
Company-at (hat dafe.

The Compony's shares wre registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market
("UPCOM”) with the code PHS in accordance with Decision Mo, 47500D-SGDHN issued by Hanot
Stock Exchange on 19 July 2019,

The Company' charter capital

Az at 31 December 2024, the Company’s charter capatal was WVND 2,000,098, 190,000 (31/12/2023:;
WIND 1,500,098, 190,000,

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are 10 carry out securities brokerage, securities trading,
securities investment advisory, securities custody and securities underwriting activities.

Normal operating cvcle
The normal operating cvcle of the Company 15 generally within 12 months.

Number of employvees
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 329 employees (31/12/2023: 382 employees),

(RN 1]
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B0Y - CTCK
{ Fsswedd wider Circnlar No, 33420087 T-RTC
dated 27 December 2018 of the Ministry of Finanee)

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vigtnamess Accounting Standands,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterpnses, Circular No, 21020M4TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014 ("Circular 2107} issued by the Mimistry of Finance on the promulgation of sccounting
guidance for securities companies, Circular Mo, 32006 TT-BTC dated 27 December 2006
(*“Circular 334™) issued by the Ministry of Finance amending, supplementing and superseding
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210 and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to
financial reporting,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements, except for the statement of cash flows and financial assets at fwr value
through profit or loss as described in Note 3{d), are prepared on the accrual hasis using the historical
cost concepl. The statement of cash flows 1s prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period
The annual sccounting period of the Company 1= from | Janwary to 31 December,

Accounting and presentation currency

The Company s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“WND™}, which 15 also the currency used for
finamcial statement presentation purpose,

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation
of these financial statements,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions m currencies other than VND duning the year have been translated into YNID at rates
approximaing actual rates of exchange muling at the transacton dites,

Monetary assets and liahilities denominated in currencies other than VNI are granslated imo VND
afl the account trunsfer selling rates ot the end of the annwal accounting period gquoted by the
commercial bank where the Company maost frequently conducts transactions at the end of the annual
accounting period,

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the statement of income.

[REATY
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Phun Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B0Y - CTCK
{ Tosned wnder Circular Na, 23420067 T-8BTC
daled 27 December 2006 of the Ministry of Finance)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cuash comprises cash on hand, cash in banks and cash deposits for securities transactions clearing and
seftlement of securities transaction. Cash deposits for securities transactions, securities transactions
clearing and sertlement of the costomers are separated from the Company’s accounts,

Cush eguivalents are shor-term imvestments with term to maturity of not more thun 3 months, which
are readily convertible fo known amount of cash and are subject 10 an insignificant nisk of changes in
wvalune.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial aszets and financial liabiities are recognised in statement of fimancial position when the
Company becomes a party (o the contractual provisions of the financial assets dand financial liahilities.

Classification and measurement

o  Finuncial assets ot fair valoe through profit or loss ("FVYTPL"): see Note 3(d);
#  Held-to-mamurity investments: see Mote 3e); amnd

o  Loans receivable: see Note 3T

Except for covered warrant pavables which are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL as
described in Note 3(h), the Company clossifies all of its financial habilities as financial liahilities
measured af amorised cost

Derecopnition

The Company derecognises o financizl asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewands of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the nsks and
rewards of cwnership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company derecognises & financial lisbility when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Cffsetiing

Financial assets and ligbilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when and only when the Company has o legal nght 1o set off the amounts and it intends
either 1o semle them en a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the lability simultineowsly.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B0Y - CTCK
{Feswed under Cirewlar Noo 3342016TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 af the Minisiry of Finance)

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial msset af fair value through profit o loss is a fnancial asset that meets either of the
following conditions:

* It is considered by management as held for trading. A financial as=ét is considered as held for
trading if;

- it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

= there is evidence of » recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

= i dervative {excepl for o derivative that is financial guarantee contract or 4 designated and
effective hedging instrement},

*  Upon initiul recognition, it is designated by the Company as at fair value theough profit or loss,

Financinl assets at FYTPL are mitlly recogmised at cost which includes the purchase price.
Subsequent 1o initial recogniton they are measured at market price or foir value (when market price
is not available) with changes in market price or fair value being recognised in profit or loss in the
staternent of income.

For listed secunties, the market prices are the closing prices of secunties from the Ho Chi Minh Ciry
Stock Exchange and the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the latest trading date prior 1o the end of the annual
accounting period.

For securities registered lor trading in Unlisted Public Company Murket (“UPCOM™), the market
prices are the closing prices of securities from UPCOM at the latest trading date prior to the end of
the annual accounting period,

For securities which are unlisted and not vet registered for trading, the market price 15 the average
price of the transaction prices at the latest trading date prior to the end of the annual accounting period
but within one manth from the reporting date provided by three securities companies which are not
related to the Company. In case there are no transaction prices within this period, no allowance 1s
respiired.

For delisted secunties and secunties for which trading has been suspended or cancelled from the sixth
day onward, the fair value 15 the book vakue at the latest balance sheet date,

[nvestments in equity instruments are stated at cost if there are no market prices and their fair valoes
cannol be determined reliably.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and o fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other
than

= those thot the Company on initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;
= (hose that the Company on initial recognition designates a5 available-for-sale; and
& those that meet the definition of loans and receivable,

Held-to-maturity investments comprise term deposits at banks and these investments are stated st
cost less allowance for doubtful debis.

20

&+ HS-:-‘“,,

ok



(g)

(h)

Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B0Y - CTCK
{ lssued under Circnlar No, 3342016TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance|

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are nod
quoted in an active market.

Loans receivables comprise margin loans and advances to customers for the proceeds from selling
securities and are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts. Allowance for dowbiful debas is
determined based on the difference between the market price or fair value of the collateral and gross
carrving amount of underlying loan receivables at the end of the annual accounting period.

Accounts receivable

Beceivables from sales of financial wssets pnd services rendered and other receivahles wre stated
cost bess dllowance for donbtful debis,

Allowance Tor doubtful debes 15 made based on the overdue status of debts or expected losscs an
undue debts which may oocur when an economic organisation is bankrupted or liquadated; or debtor
is missing. running away, being prosecuted, in prison, under a trial or pending execution of sentences
or deceased.

The allowance for doubtiul debts based on overdue status 15 made by reference to overdue status as
Tollows:

(herdue séalus Allowance nate

From six (086 months to less than one (01} year A0
From one (01 ) year to less than two (12} years 0%
From two (02) vears 1o less than three (03] vears TO%
From three {3} years and over 100%

For overdue debts, the Company's management also assesses the expected recovery of the debts in
determining the allowance.

Allowance for doubtful debts based on the expected losses of undue debis is determined by the
Company” s management after giving consideration to the recovery of these debis

Covered warrants

Covered warrants gives its holder the right 1o buy (call warrant) or sell (put warrant} underlying
securities to issuing organisations at 4 predetermined price, on or before 4 predetermined date, or to
receive the difference between the exercise pnce and the underlying securities price at the exercise
date,

The Company accounts for covered warrants in accordance with the guidance of Circular No,
232018TT-BTC issved by the Mimistry of Finance on 12 March 2018, details as follows:
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form BW - CTCK
{Issuad under Circnlar No. 3342006TT-8TC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

When issning covered warrants to investors, the Company recognises an increass in covered warrants
payables. The number of warmunts allowed to issue are monitored in off balance sheet.

Covered warrants are initizbly recognized at cost and subzequently measured at far value

Cost of ssuance of covered warranis ane recogmised as expense when incurned.

Tangible lixed assels

iCosi

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, The initial cost of a tangible
fived asset comprises it purchase price, incloding import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset o its working condition Tor its intendaed nse
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the stetement of income i the vear in which the cost s
incurred, In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulved inoan
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets
beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure @5 capitalised as an
additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assers, The estimated wseful lives are as follows

Leasehold improvemenis 5 vears
Office equipment 3=T years
Motor vehicles 3 — 4 years
Fixtures and fittings 5 yeuars
Intangible fixed assets

Saftware

Cost of scquiring new softwane, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised
and weated & an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-ling basis over 3 10 7 years.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B4 - CTCK
(Teswed wnder Circnlar No, 334200 86TT-RTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry af Finance)

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses comgprise of mols and instraments which include assets held for use by
the Company in the normal course of business whose costs of individual items are less than VIND30
million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulations, Cost
of tools and instrements are amaoctised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 vears.

Trade and other payahles
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost,

Frovisions

A provision is recognised if, as & result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated rehiably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required 1o sentle the obligation. Provisions are datermined by discounting the
expected future cash flows af g pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value
of money and the risks specific to the lishility,

Severance allowance

LUinder the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employes who has worked for 12 months or more {“the
eligible employess™) voluntarily terminates histher labour contract, the employer is required 10 pay
the eligible employee severance allowance calonlated based on years of service and employee’s
compensation at termination. Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on
employees' years of service and their average salary for the six-month period prior to the end of the
annual accounting period. For the purpose of determining the number of years of service by an
employee, the period for which the employee panicipated in and contributed to unemployment
insurance in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations and the period for which severance
allowance has been paid by PHS. ATS and the Company are excluded.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the vear comprises cumrent and deflerred tax. Income tax is
recogmised as expensefincome except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to equity,
it which case it is recognised in eguity

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the snnual sccounting period, and any adjostment to tax payable in respect of previous
Years,

Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
labilites for financial reporting. purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisalion or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
annual scoouniing penod.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued )

Form BiW - CTCK
{(Teswed wader Circnlar No. 33420087 T-BTC
doted 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

A deferred tax assct is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that foture taxable profits will
be availoble agunst which the temporery differences asset can be utilised. Deferred tax asscts are
reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are stated a1 par valee, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issoe of shares,
net of tax effects, are recognised as 4 deduction freom share premiuim,

Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (freasury shares)

Treasury shares are recognised only in respect of repurchased shares which are aggregated fractions
of share arising when the Company issues shares 1o pay dividends or issues shares from equity
reserves in accordance with an approved issuance plan, or repurchased odd-lots of shares as requested
by the sharehaolders. In all other cases, when shares recognised as equity are repurchased, their par
value amount is recognised as a reduction 1o share capital. The difference between the par value and
the amount af the consideration paid, which includes directly atinbutable costs, net of ax effects, is
included in share premium.

Statutory reserves

On 17 December 2021, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 114202 1TT-BTC (“Circular
1147 10 abolish Circnlar No, 1462014/TT-BTC ("Circular 146") dated 6 October 2014 issued by
the Ministry of Finance to provide guidance on the financial regime for securitics companies, fund
management companies. Circular 114 is effective from | February 2022, Consequoently, the Company
has ceased to allocate realised profil to stanstory reserves since 2022, According to Circular 114:

*  The balance of reserve to supplement share capital that has been provided for under Circular 146

would be uwsed to supplement share capital as promulgated under Securities Law Mo,
JAZ0THNOH ] 4 and other legal regulations,

*= The balance of Tinancial reserve thot hax been provided for could be osed to supplement share
capital or distributed in accordance with the sharehelders’ decision as promulgated under
Securities Law No, 542009 0QH 14 and other legal regulations.

On 20 April 2023, the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders approved to transfer the
outstanding balance of financial reserve 1o retained profits. As of the date of 1ssuance of these
financial statements, the Company has not yet made any decision regarding the outstanding balance
of reserve (o supplement share capatal.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued |

Form B0Y - CTCK
flesped wunder Ctrewlar No, 3342006/TT-BTC
dared 27 December 2006 of the Ministry of Finance)

Revenue

Graing from sales of financial assefs

Ciains from sales of financial assets is recognised in the statement of income upon receipt of the order
matching reports of sccuntics transactions from Viemam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation ("VSDC™) (for listed securities) and completion of the agreement on lransfer of assets
{for unlested securities),

Dividend and interest income from financial axsets

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of income when the Company’s right 1o receive
dividends is established. Share dividends are not recognised as income.

Imierest income 15 recogmised in the statement of income on a time proportion basis with reference w
the principal cutstanding and the applicable inlerest rate. Interest income also includes amonizsion
of discounts, premiums, inlerest received in advance or differences between the value at initial
recognition and par value st matority diste.

Revenue from securities brokerage activities

Revenue from securities brokerage activities 15 recognised in the statement of income when the
secarities transactions of the costomer have been processed.

Revenue from securifies custody activities

Revenue from securities custody activities 15 recogmsed in the statement of income when the service
is rendered.

Revenue from securities investment advisory and financial advisery activiiies

Revenue from securities investment advisory and fimancial advisory activities is recognised in the
statement of income in proportion (o the stage of completion of the transaction. The stage of
completion is assessed by reference to work performed.

Interest expense

Interest expense 15 recoghised as an expense in the statement of income on acorual basis

Operating lease payments

Puyments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income
a5 an integral pam of the tial lease expense.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued )

Form B09 - CTCK
{Teswed wnder Circular No, 334200168TT-BFC
dated 27 Decembrer 2006 of the Minisiry of Finance)

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS
15 calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable (o the ondinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighled uvernge number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. Diluted EPS s
determined by adjusting the profit or loss pitributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing relaed
products of services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment {(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments. The Company’s primary formet for segment reporting is
based on business segments,

Related parties

Parties are considered to be relited 1o the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to cantrel the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions, or where the Company and the other panty are subject 10 commaon control or
significant influence, Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family
members of any individoal considered to be a related party.

Nil balances
Items or balances required by Circular 3534 1ssued by the Mingsiry of Finance that are not shown in
these financial statements indicate nil balances.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these financial statements is presented as comesponding figures. Under
this method, comparative information for the prior year is incloded as an integral pan of the current
year financial statements and are intendad to be read only in relation to the amounts and other
disclosures relating to the corrent year. Accordingly, the comparative information included in these
financial statements is not intended 1o present the Company”s financial position, results of operations
or cash flows for the prior year,
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Financial instruments
Financial risk management

Cherviow

The Company has exposure to the following risks feom its use of Anancial instruments:

= credit risk;
»  Jiguidity risk; and
*  market nsk.

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’ s ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk,

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors complionce. with the Company”s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation mo the risks faced by the Company.

Risk management framework

The Board of Management hag overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework, The Board of Manigement has established the Risk
Manugement Committee (“RMC™), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s fisk management policies. The RMC reports regolarly to the Board of Management on
its activities,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the fsks faced by
the Company, 1o set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company”s activities. The Company, throogh its training and mansgement standards and
procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive control environment m which all
cmplnym understand their roles and obligations,

The Inspection Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Intemal Audit undertakes
both regular and ed-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported 1o the [nspection Commitiee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk of financial loss to the Company if a costomer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails 1o meet its contractual obligations.

To manage the level of credit risk, the Company atlempis 1o deal with counterparties of good credit
standing, and when appropriate, obtains collaterals, The management has established a credit palicy
under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the standard
terms and conditions are offered.
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dated 27 December 2016 af the Ministry of Finance)

Concentrations of credit risk thar arize from groups of counterparties when they have similar
economic characteristics that would cause their ability o meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The major concentrations of credit risk arise
from type of customer in relation (o the Company's advances (o customers for proceeds from salling
securities and margin loans.

Collaferals

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the eredit dsk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and
viluation parameters. The main types of collateral obtamed are listed securities and cash deposited
af the Company. Management moniiers the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral
m accordance with the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained
during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for doubiful debis.

Exposure to credif risk

Not considening collaterals, the Company”’ s maximum exposure to credit nsk ot the end of the annual
accounting period was g5 follows:

317122024 3122023
YND VD
Cash in banks and cazh aquivalents (1) 181,967, 755,066 196,820, 272,600
Held-to-maturity investments (i) 696, 000,000,000 654,213,238 356
Loans receivable — gross (i) 2874, 796,226,533 2951919275244
Receivables (i) 51,291,372.400 T4, 788081, 049
Receivables from services rendered (ii) 3,773,830 584 3964076001
Other receivables — gross (i) | 3,808,912.532 12,786,514, 140
Deposits at Payment Support Fund 194064, 116,068 16,964,1 16,068
Long-term deposits 5,470,307 057 5,637.869.733
Other long-tenm assets [0,079.572.716 10,059,454 0473

3.856,652,191,956 3,927 152.898,173
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Phao Hung Secorities Corporation
MNotes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form BIW - CTCK
(Tegued wider Clreular No. 3342006 TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

Cash in banks, cash equivalenss and held-to-maturity investmenis

Cash in banks, cash equiviilents and held-vo-maturry investments of the Company are mannly held
with well-known financial institutions. Management does not foresee any significant credit risk from
these deposits and does not expect that these financial mstitotions may default and cause losses 1o the
Company,

Loans receivable and other recetvables

The Company s exposure to credit risk is infleenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. In response to the risk, credit limit is established for each costomer, which represents the
maximum open amount, The limit is reviewed annually, Customers with balances that are overdues
are requested to settle the balances before further credit is granted. Customers are obliged 10 ensure
their margin ratio 15 not lower than the maintenance margin ratio regulated by the Company, In case
a customer’'s margin ratie drops below the mamtenance margin ratio, the Company requires the
customer o supplement additional collateral in an agreed period. IF the customer does not supplement
addition collateral, the Company will implement handling measures in secordance with the contract.
The main types of collateral obtained are cash deposits and securities. The management of the
Company monitors the market valoe of collsteral snd requests additional collateral in accordance
with the underlying agreement and monitors the market price of collateral obtained during its review
of the sdequacy of the allowance for doubtful debis.

Loans receivable and other receivables that are neither past doe nor impaired mainly relaie 10 a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. Managemeni believes that thoses
receivables are of high credit guality,

An aging analysis of impaired financial assets were as follows:

122024 311272023
VND VND
Advances 1o customers for securilies trading activities
being overdue more than 3 vears 11,593 764,001 1,174,224, 109
Margin loans being overdue more than 3 years 3,316,267.434 4.443,207.793

Margin loans being overdue from 2 to 3 years
Margin loans being overdue from 1 to 2 years

4061.211,115

48.291,197,147

63,971.242,640 63,908,629.049
Faar vittue of collaterals for impaired financial assets were as folfows:

12024 312023

VND VND

Listed or registered securities on 3282 870,350 4,280,532 79
u The Ha Chi Minh City Stock Exchange 3,620,250 966, 900
" UPOOM 3,277 250,100 4,279, 565,800
Blocked Mnancial asseis 4,842,495 000 22, 182,897,800

8,125,365 350

26,4634 30,590
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Form B4 - CTCK
(Tssiwed wder Circulor No, 2342006/TT-BTC
dated 27 Degember 2006 of the Minisiey of Finanee}

An aging analysis of financial assets that were past doe but not impaired was as follows:

/122024 A122023
YND VND
Advances to customers for securities trading activitics
being overdue of more than 3 vears 4 484,606 921,228,900
Margin loans being overdoe from | (o 2 years 710013968
Margin loans being overdue of under 1 year 5694219 .
426,178,825 1,691,242 868

Liguidity risk
Ligmdity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its Anancial obligations as they
fall due. The Company's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will

always have sulfcient liguidity (o mest its habiliies when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage o the Company's reputation.

The financial linhilities with fixed or determinable pavments have the following contractual
matunties including the estimated interest payments wene as follows:

As at 31 December 2024 Carrying Contractuoal Within

amount cash Mows 1 year

VIND VIND VD

Short-term borrowings LA31 38R 000,000 1,459,823,545,331 1. 459.823,545.331
Accounts payable for securities
trading activities 3049 TGS ER1,440 304,765,881 ,440 390 TH5 ER1 440
Accounts paysble 1o suppliers TI13,921,352 713,521,382 TI2.920 382
Accruoed expenses B.635.401 827 B.635,491 327 4635491 827
Chher pavables 2,110,615,668 2.110,615,668 2,110,615.668

1,844.613,910,317

1LETE 08,455,643

1.871,049.455 648

As at 31 December 2023 Carrying Contractual Within
amount cash Mows I year
VNI YD VND
Short-term borrowings 1, G0, 0 00, 00, D0 2 046, 606,490 335 2046, 606,490,335
Accounts payable for securities
trading activities 189.121,316,960 389.121,316.960 389.121.316,5960
Accounts payable to supplers 65,259 697 66,259 607 B0, 250,697
Accrued expenses 12,125926,733 12,125.926,733 12,125,926,733
Oiher payahles 11,720,335.629 11,720,335,629 11,720,335,629
2403,073,839.019 2450640320354 24359640320 354
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued )
Form BiW - CTCK

{fasued wnder Circular No. 3342006TT-87C
dated 27 Decermber 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

The Company manages its ability to meet the expected operational expenses and servicing its debis
by investing its cash surpluses in cash equivalenis and shon-term deposiis st banks.

Market risk

Marker risk is the risk thit changes in market prices, such as foreign exchonge rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Company’s resuits of operations or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market nsk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within peceptable parameters, while oplimising the return.

Currency risk

Cumency risk is the risk that the Fair valoe of luture cash fAows of a financial instrument will flactuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

The Company is exposed 0 cumrency risk on bormrowings that are denominated in a currency other
than the accounting currency of the Company, which is VIND, The currency in which these
transactions primariby are denominated 15 United States Dollars (“USDT.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company hiad the following net monetary lishility position exposed to currency risk:

IN2024 3111272023
UsD VND equivalent UsD VND equivalent
Short-ierm borrowings F9,000.000 989 388.000,000  66.000,000  1,613,040,000,000

Currency swap conlracls 35000000 887, 184,000,000

Net currency position 4000000 HEL204, 000000 66 000,000 1,613 040, 000,000

The followings were the significant exchange rate applied by the Company:

Exchange rate as at
31272024 317122023

USDYWND 25551 24,440

Below 15 an analysis of the possible impact on the net profit of the Company, after taking into account
the current level of exchange rates and the historical volatility as well as market expectations at the
end of the annual accounting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in panticular
INTerest rales, remain constant.,
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Effect to net profit

after tax
YND
As at 31 December 2024
USD (5% strengthening against YN — decrease in net profit 4088, 160,000
As at 31 December 2023
USD (3% strengthening against VND) — decrease in net profit 3B, 712, 0G0, 000

The opposite movement of the USD would have the equal but opposite effect to the net profit of the
Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk is the risk that the fair valoe or fuiure cash Aows of @ financial instrment will
fluciuate because of changes in market interest rates.

At the end of the annuil accounting period, the interest rate profile of the Company”s interest-hearing
fimancial instruments was as follows

Carrying amount
MA22024 A1272023
YND YND

Interest-bearing instruments

Cash in banks and cash equivalents I8 1,967, 755,066 196.820,272,609
Held=to-maturity investments G, D0 000, D00 654.213,2138,356
Loans receivable — net 2.827.24] 242 084 3031 367768, 104
Deposits at Payment Support Fund 19,464,1 16,068 16,964, | 16,068
Oiher long-term asseis 10,079.572,716 059,454,943
Short-term borrowings (1,433, 388,000,000 ¢ 1,550 0uh0, (00, 000

2,301,384 686,834 1,809,384, 350,080

Other market risk

Equity price nsk is the nsk that the market values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the
values of individual securities. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Company's financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at fair valve through profit or loss are affected by market nsk ansing
from the uncertainty of the fluctuation of the future market price of these secorities. The Company”s
equily price risk is managed by the management who secks to monitor the risk through a careful
selection of securities within specified limats.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Company’s exposure (o equity price risk is
minimal because the Company held insignificant portfolio of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss for the trading purpose.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
MNotes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, topether with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position were as follows:

Categorited af fingucial assety af faiv value through prafit or loss:
Financial assets al Fair valee theough profin or foss

Cateparised ax held-to-maturity investments:
Term deposits sl banks

Categorised as louns and receivalles:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Loans receivable - met

IhiL

o Livied sharex

#  Shares registered for rading on UPCOM
o Unlisted shaves

Fund certificates

Feceivables

Recervables from services rendered
Dither receivables - net
Deposits at Payment Support Fund

Long-term deposits

Diher leng-temm assets

£ Vel

II I.-

Form B9 - CTCK
(Tasaeed snder Cirewlar Neo, 3342006/TT-BTC

dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance )

AyId IMN2T023
Carrying amount Fair value Carrving amount Fair value

YN YNNI VNI VNI
13, 877.519.998 13,877 519998 39528, 109 108 39,525,199, 108
1.06G2614. 891 1062614891 27,680 Eog 27 689 890
15,046,527 15,046,527 15,046,527 15,046,527
58,002 284,652 58,002,384 652 51,063,547, 139 51,063,547, 130
G, DO, D0, DON ARG, LK, 00, KD 054,213,238,356 654, 213,238,.356
121.971,791 321 IB1.971,791,321 196,524,308 864 | 26 824,308 o
2,827.261,242 984 (™3 2.921,367,768, 104 e
51,291,372.400 (*) 74,788,081 049 (*)
3,773,839 .584 el 3.964,076,03 | (=1
2498 018,791 (*) 3,892,822 821 gl
19.464,116,068 (*) 16,964, 116,068 ()
5470,397 057 {*} 5637 869,733 (%)
10,079,572, 716 (") 10,054,454, 943 ("1
A3



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
MNotes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued )

Iz2024
Carrying amount
YND
Financial liabilities
Cateporised ax financial labilives at foir valee through profis or foss:
Covered warmant payables -
Financial linbilitics
Categorsed as fnancial Taebilities measered ap amortised cose:
= Short-term borrowings (1,433, 388,000,000
*  Accounts payable for secuntics trading activitics (395 765 881 440)
= Accounts payable o supplicrs {713.921,382)
= Apcrued expenses (8,635 400.827
®  Other payables (2,110,615 668)

Form Bl# - CTCK
{ dsseed wnder Cirowlar No. 3342006TFT-8TC

dated 27 Decenvher 2006 of the Ministry of Finanee)

Fair value
VINDY

o,
(*)
*3
*)
%)

JIFI22023
Carrying amount

YND

{65,479,570,000)

{ 150,040,000 000)
(3B, 121,316, 96G0)
(66,250 69T
(12,125.026,733)
(11,720335.62%)

Fair value

YND

(6,479,.570,000)

(*)
(*)
(*)
(*)
(*)

(*1  The Company has not determined fair valoes of these financial instruments for disclosure in the Nnancial stements because informaticn about their market prices
i nol available and there is currently no guidance on determination of fair vilue usmg valuation techniques under Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for enterprises and accounting guidance for secunties companies, The fair values of these financial instruments may differ from their camrying

amounis.
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{Pezned under Circular No, 3342016 TT-BTC
dared 27 December 2006 of the Ministry of Finaoce)

Cash and cash equivalents

L2024
VNI
Cazh on hand 4,036,255
Cash in banks 38,426,066, TED
Cash equivalents (1) 143.541.688,277

12023
VND

4,030,255
01,369 899,758
105,450,372,851

181,971,791,321

196,824 308 864

As ut 31 December 2024, cash equivalents represented term deposits with original terms o maturity of
not exceeding 3 months and camed annual interest st rates ranging from 2.0% to 4 8% (31122023;

from 1.5% to 3.8% 0.

As at 31 December 2024, (erm deposits of VNDS3 541 688277 (31/12/2023: YND105,450,372,851)

were pledged with banks as security for loans grunted o the Company (Mote 19).

Volume and value of securities transactions during the vear

2024 2023
YWolume of Value of Volume of Value of
Eransactions Iramsactions iransaclions iransactions
YND VND
a) The Company
Shares 387,030 44 096,024,210 11,318,382 331,062,575,670
Oiher securities 2,513,700 B 726,454,000 36467240 141,520,472 530
b1 Investors/customers
Shares 1758 488,800  Ba 942920881160 4283789996  83.402,646,328.420
Bonds 746,230 TT.577,268 590 16,030,756 [,717.217,393.028
[iher seconties Th,859,120 317096, 783,280 47787498 835383341310

3B A86.970  B5490418411,940 4305353 881

85.676430.117.958
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Form B09 - CTCK

{(Tsed wnder Circular No. 33420068TT-BT¢
dated 27 December 2008 of the Ministry of Finance)

Financial assets ai Tair value through profit or loss
317122024

Listed shares

Shares registered for
trading on UPCOM

Linlisted shares
Fund certificates

Cost
VND

13,758,762,493

Fair value

VND
13,877 519,998

31272023

Cost
VND

38, 225051.062

Fair value
YD

39,528, 199,108

1,159 814,891 1,062,614,891 27,689,899 27,689,899
15,046,527 15,046,527 15,046,527 15046527

SO, 000, D0, 000 38.902,284,652  50.000,000,000 51,063,547,139
64,933,623.0911 TIRST 466068 BB 267, THT 488 634,482,673




Phuo Hung Securities Corporation

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 {continued)

Fair valves of financial paseis al FVTPL ot the reporting date were as follows:

3l December 2024

Form B9 - CTCK
{Fsseed vrrder Cirenlar No, 3347200677T-8BT¢
dered 27 December 2006 af the Ministry of Finunce )

Revalpation difference as at 31 December 2024

Quantity Cost Fair value Revaluation gain Revaluation loss Revaluation value
YND YD VND YIND YND
(1 (2) (3 ={(21=(1) (A =01 -(2) (5) = (1) 4+ (3 -4
Listed shares
VCE 28,000 2,541,924 444 2 553 600,000 11,675,556 - 2,553,600,000
CTG 43,000 1,317.263,568 1625 400,000 308,136,432 - 1,625,400,000
BID 300, KN} 1,2535,050,350 1,126, 500,000 - 128,550,350 1.126,500.000
DHG 11,000 1.203.971.615 1,142 900,000 - 61,071,615 1.142,900,000
SAB 20,000 1,124,455,556 1L 110,000,000 - 14,455 556 1,1 10,0000
Chers [ 35 RN i, 3 163, (155, D600 6,319, 1159,09958 170,042 228 167,005, 190 6,319 119998
270,800 13,758,762,493 13,877.519,998 489,854,216 ATL096,711 | 3,877,519 998
UPCOM
ihers 26,735 1.159.814.891 1.062,614.8%1 - 97,200,000 1062,614,891
Unlisted shares
Others 1,086 15,046,527 15,046,527 - - 15,046,527
Fund certificates
PHYSF 4. 821,100 S0,000,000,000 58,502, 284,652 B.202.284 652 - 58.902.284,652
5.0119,730 4,033 623,911 73,557 406,068 9302138 868 468,296,711 73,857 466,068
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31 December 2023 Revaluation difference as at 31 December 2023

Qruantity Cost Fair value Revaluation gain Revaluation loss Revaluation value
YMD VMDD YIND YN YD
(1} (2 (3) = (2} (1) (4)=1(1)-(2) {8) = (1) +(3) ~(4)
Listed shares
HPCG 021,04K) 24,596,477 091 25,741 550,001 1.145,472.909 25,741 950,000
DHG 17 600 1,913,607 686 830,400,000 3,035,692 87,233,378 1,830,400,000
VINM 25,020 792,863,244 1.691,352,000 - 101,511,244 1,651 352,000
Others 256,813 Qo2 013,041 10,264 497 108 B32.376,712 489,892 545 10264497 108
2204353 38,225.051,062 39528 199 108 1981, 785313 678,637,267 30528199108
UPCOM
Others TI4 27,689,399 27,689, 599 - - 27680 399
Unlisted shares
Others 1066 15,046,527 15,046,527 . - 15,046,527
Fumnd certificates
PHVSF 4,821,109 SOO00.000000  51,063,547,139 063,547,139 - 51,063,547,130
6,043,356 ER.267. 787 488 90,634 482 673 3.045,332 452 678,637,267 00634 452 673
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Financial assets {(continued)

Held-to-maturily investments

3122024 312023
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
YN YND VD VND

Term deposits at banks with original
terms to maturity of more than 3 months
to | vear 626, 000,000,000 (*) 654.213,238,356 {*)
Term deposits at banks with orginal
terms to maturity of more than 1 year and
remaining term less than | vear T0,000000,000 [ - -

GO, DL OO0, D00 634,213,238,356

As at 31 December 2024, term deposits al banks amounting o VNDS66 000,000,000 (3171 2024025:
WiNDS64,213,238.356) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted 1o the Company (Note 19).

As at 31 December 2024, these term deposits earmed annual interest al rales ranging from 2.3% to 5.7%
(3122023 from 2.5% to 8,7%).

Loans receivable
3024 3023

Cost Fair value Clast Fair value

YND VMDD VND YND
Margin loans (3) 2, 739.085.479.3 11 (¥ 2890 (43 967,369 ("
Advances 1o customers for the
proceeds from selling securities (ii) 135,710,747, 162 {*¥) 61,875.307,875 i(*)

2874796, 226,533 2051919275244

As at 3 December 2024, margin loans had original terms to matunty of 90 days and carmed annual
imterest at rates ranging from 8.5% (o 14.8% (31/1272023; from 10.0% (o 13.5%). The initial margin is
ranging (rom 504 to 90% (3171 2/2023; from 50% to 90%) and meintenance murgin ratio is ranging from
0% vo TO% (311272023; from 30% 1o TO%).

Az at 31 December 2024, advances (o customers for the proceeds from selling securities carned annual
interest at rates ranging from 9.53% to 13.5% (31/12/2023: from [0.5% to 13.5%).

The Company has not determined fair values of these financial instruments for disclosure in the financial
statements because information about therr market prices is not available and there is comently no
guidance on determination of fair valug vsing valuation technigues under Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and other accounting guidances for
securities companies. The fair values of these financial mstruments may differ from their carmying
AIICUTELS.
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{issued wnder Circnlar No, 3342006TT-81TC
dated 27 December 2006 af the Minisiy of Finance)

Receivables

Interest peceivable from margin loans
Interest receivable from term deposits at banks
Interest receivable from certificates of deposit

Receivables from services rendered

Receivables from clearing and settlement of securities mansactions
Receivables from securities cusiody activities

Receivables from securities brokerage activities

Dher receivables

Other receivables

Advances to customers for securities trading activities

nhers

317122024 /1272023
VND VND
36007631811 S EGRS A5TE]D
15,283, 740,580 22078335567
- 1.894.087.670
S1,201,372400  74,788,081,049
3122024 322023
VND VND
1275987800 1,461 969950
| 604,164 966  1,770,230.617
472,364,410 491,051,396
421 322 408 240,824,068
3,773,839.584  3,964.076,031
3122024 3171272023
VND VND
12,014,248, 697 12,005453,000
1,794,663,835 691,061,131
13,808,912,532 12,786,514,140
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Notes to the linancial statements for the vear ended 3 December 2024 (continued)

Form B0Y - CTCK
(festied under Circwlar No. 3342006 TT.BTC
deted 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

Allowance for diminution in value of financial assets and doubiful debts

Allowanece lor diminution in value of financial asseis

As at 3 December 2024

Recoverahle
Cosl amouni Allowance
YD YND YD
Margin loans and accreed mierest R2ATTATR 54 4842495000 47,534,083,549

As at 31 December Mi23

Recoverahle
Coesil amount Allswanee
YD YND YIND
Margin loans and accraed interest 3273404040 22182897800 30,551 507,140

Movemenis of allowance for diminution in value of financial assets during the years were s follows;

2024 2023

¥YND VND
Orpening balance 30,551,507, 140 13,161,395 456
Allowance made during the vear 17999 697 389 17,390,111,654
Allowance utilised during the year {1,016.220,980) -
Closing balance 47.534.983,549  30,551,507,140
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MNotes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B0Y - CTCK
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dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry af Finance)

Allowance for doubtful debis
As at 31 December 2024
Recoverahle
Cost ot Allowance
YND VIND VND
Advances 10 Cusiomers
for securities trading activities 11,5393, 764,09] 32BZETOR50  B310.893.741

As at 31 December 2023

Recoverahle
Cost smount Allowanee
YD VD YWD
Advances 0 cusiomen
for securities trading activities L IT4. 224,100 428053279 6.893.691,319

Movements of allowance for doubtful debts during the vears were as follows:

2024 2023

VYMD VMDD
Opening halance 5.6893,6591,319 T453, 138,926
Allowance madefireserved) during the vear 1417202422 (530447 607
Closing halance E.310,893,741 0, 8%3.601,319
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Form B09 - CTCK

{Issued wnder Clrcular No, 3342016 TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2006 of the Mintsiry of Finance)

Prepaid expenses

Short-term prepaid expenses

3122024 322023
YND YND
Muintenmnce expenses [ B,363,353 725,330,312
Rental fees 373,673,763 519.941,414
(thers 2010.511,381 3,251,001, 743
5.174,553.497 4.497 303,469
Long-term prepaid expenses
I 3AX2023
YD YND
Tools and instrumenis 2617 340,688 5,382,643,332
Software | 970 313,254 2657600 356
Information technology equipment 165,065,810 1,304, 324,849
Diffice renovation 4,705, 560,583 B3935, 137 4080
Cithers hE3.299 638 350081414

10.152,079.973

18,287 789,360

Movements of long-term prepaid expenses dunng the years were as follows;

2023
VND

16,755,221,733
7886472 558
5 01E.T797 232
C1E503.102,193)

2024

VD
Opening balance 18,2587 Ta% 360
Additions during the vear 2,099,264 908
Transfers from construction in progress 1,186,551 504
Amortisation dunng the year (11,421,525,79%)
Closing balance 10,152,079.973

18,287,789, 360
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13. Tangible fixed assets

2024 Leasehold Odfice Motor Fixtures and

improvements  eguipment vehicles fittings Total

VIND VND VNI VND VMDD

Cost
Opening balance B0, 182,219 43,466, 7HL576  2,265440,000 RIS ODRRE.S6D 47220401 564
Additions - 4548 830,000 - 4,548,830,000
Transfers from
construction in
Progress - - - 3391240 33,912,000
Closing balance 601,182,219 48015620576 21.265.440,000 929000568 51,812,143 364
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 601,182,219  30.264.610,613 2265440000 293,143,467 33,424,376,299
Charge for the year = 6227 450,318 - 185433147 6412883465
Closing balance 601,182,219 36492060931 2265440,000 4785760614 39837259764
Met book value
ﬂp&rllng balance - 13,02 179 063 - (02,845,102 13,805,025, 065
Closing balance = 11,523.559.645 - 451,323 955 11,974,883,600
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B09 - CTCK
{{esued wnder Circular No, 334802008 TT-RTC
dated 27 December 2006 af the Miniziy of Finance)

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

2023 Leasehold Difice Meotor Fixtures and

improvements  egquipment vehicles fittings Total

VD YD VND ViND YND

Cost
Upening balance 601,182,219  42,761,030,634 2,265 440,000 453,522969 46.081,175.822
Additions e [ 323 BE6 190 - S1.BO5440 1,375,649 630
Transfer from
comsiruction in
[:I'I'CIE:I'I:SE: T T ﬁwhfﬂ{jl lb’u 3m|rﬁnpim
Disposals (618, 126, 248) - - (BTH,126,248)
Closing balance GO IE2. 219 43466790576 2263440000  B95.085 5609 47220 401 164
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance G0 82,219 25.517.197.597 1985556935 140,855,117 28,244,791 R68
Charge for the year - RA65.53%264  ITIERIONGS  152,288350 5.790.710,679
Disposals - (618.126,248) 2 - (61B;126,248)
Closing balance GO IR2.219  30264.610,613 2265440000 293,143 467 33,424,376,200
Met book value
Opening balance 17.243 833,037 279883065 312,667 857 17.836,383.954
Closing balance 13.202,17%.063 - GU2E45102 13.805,025065

Included in tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND8.597 068,923 which were fully depreciated

a5 at 31 December 2024 (31/127202 3% VND 16,813,082, 725), but which are still in use,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
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Intangible fixed assets

Cosi

Opening balance
Additions
Transfer from construction in progress

Closing balance

Accumiulated amortisation

ipening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Met book valiue

Upening balance
Closing balance

{Issued under Circilar No, 3342016/TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2006 of the Minisiry of Finance)

2024 2023
Software Software
YND VM)
26,001,601 6,400 25271 616400
b Bk CRIC, D0 340,000,000
5044, 100,000 AR0000, D00
36,879, 716,400 26,001 616400
16.151.326,956 13,087 0003, 354
3055776700 3,064 323,572

20,107, 103,665

16,151 326,956

9940289 444
16,772.612,733

12184615016
9,940.28044

Included in intangihle fixed assets were assets costing VNDE, 550,460 400 which were fully depreciated

as it 31 December 2024 (3171 272023 YNDE, 526,460, 4000, bat which are still in use.

Long-term deposits

Security deposits for office, hoose and car rentals

311122024
YND

5.470,397,057

122023
VND

3.637,869,733




Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form BIW - CTCK
(lisued wnder Cirewlar No. 3342016TT-8TC
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16. Deferred tax asseis and liabilities

17,

Recognised deferred tax assets and labilities

Tax rate 31252024 102N
VXD VND
Creferred tax assets:

Allowance lor diminution in vales: of
financial assets 20% 10,505,921 972 6,000,598, 133
Accrued expenses 205 420,177,060 426.2124T72
Lossays From revaluation of financial assets
at FVTPL 205 03659 342 3T.853 642

11,019.758.374 T.064 464 247

Deferred tax Tabilities:
Ciins from revaluation of financial assets @

FYTPL 20% [1.878.427.774) (473.339.036)

Deferred tax assets - nel 0. 141,330,600 6.591,125.211

Deposits at Payvment Support Fund

According to Decision No. 45/QD-VSD dated 22 May 2014 issued by the Vietnam Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation, the Company 1s reguired to deposit an initial amount of YND120 million 1o
the Payment Support Fund ot the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation and make an
annual conribution equal o 0.01% of trading value from brokerase activities for securities hsted and

registered for trading in the Vietnam Stock Exchanges, of the most recent vear, the maximum amount
of which 15 VND2.5 hillion.

Movemenis of deposits at Payment Support Fund during the years were as follows:

224 A

VND VND
Opening balance 16,964, 1 16,068 14464, 116,068
Contribution made dunng the year 1,672,969, 148 1.8584,661,158
Inierest income £27.030.852 615338842
Closing balance 19,464, 116,068 10,5604, 1 16,068

4
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B9 - CTCK
{lssued under Circular No. 33472016/ TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance )

Other long-term assets
31/12/2024 31122023
YIND VY™ND
Deposit at Clearing Fund for derivatives trsding activities 10,079.572.716 10,059 454,943

According 10 Decision No. 97/QD-VSD dated 23 March 2017 isgued by the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation on regulations on management and use of clearing fund for
derivative secunties activities, the Company is responsible for contributing 1o the Clearing Fund for
derivaives trading activities (“Clearing Fund™) in cash or securities. The initial minimum contribution
i= VIND D biflion for direct clearing members and VNI 5 billion for general clearing members.

Movements of the deposits at the Clearing Fund during the years were as follows:

2324 2023

VND VIND
Opening balance 0,059 454,943 10,030,238 213
Interest income M.117,773 20216710
Closing balance FOOTS,572, 716 10,050,454 043
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B0 - CTCK
{Issweed wnder Circular No. 334200677 T-BTC
derted 27 December 2006 of the Ministry of Finonee)

19. Short-term borrowings

Opening balance Foreign exchange Closing balance
Original as at 1/1/2024 Additions Repayments revaluation differences  as at 31/1272024
Description CUFTency VNI YND YND YN YMND
Short-term borrowings from
= Domestic banks WND 377,000, 000,000 3.009.323,000,000  (3.642.323.000,000) - 444, 000,000_000
*  Foreign banks Usn 161 3. 040,000,000 3.981,124,000,006 (4,559,034, 00,000 (3,742, 0000000 SRG,IRE, 000,000
1 990, 040,000 000 TR0 447000000 (8441, 357 000,000) (5,742,000 000) 1 433, 388,000,000

Asat 31 December 2024, these borrowings were secored by term deposits af banks amounting (o VNDG3 541688277 (A1 1202023 VNDIOS 450372851 ) {Note
51 and YNDS66,000,000,000 (3 1/12/2023: VND5S64,213,238,356) (Mote (b))

Ax at 31 December 2024, these borrowing bored annual mierest o rates ranging from 405 10 6.7% (31/122023: 3.0% - 7.7%).

44
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form BEdS - CTCK
(Tesned wnder Circular Mo, 338200 TT-RTC

dated 27 December 2016 af the Minéstry of Finance )

20). Accounts payable for securities trading activities

Payahles reluted to securities trading activities

Pavables related to clearing and settlement of securitics transactions

Covered warrants payablas
Oithers

21. Taxes payable to State Treasury

2024 Opening balance  Incorred
YND YND

Corporate

incoame Ly 31 BTH. 20675 2TR3.054.935

Persopal income tax 7,122, 225824 96,152 B52_ 799

Value added tax 15,828,533 118,234,420

Foreign coniracton

withholding tax 968,005,930  11,925,617.606

I2024
YND

22023
YND

302.444,042.910 294, 490,534,600
96,446,838,530  TE 743108360
- 6479570000

875,000,000  9.408,104,000

300.765,881,440 389 121.316.960

Net-offfpaid Closing balance
Receivable Payahle
YND YNNI VD

(8,719,340,658) 2060047048 -
(95,894, T8I, 462) = 7.376,295,161
{133,717 487) - 345,475

(12,113, 724,738) - JT9.898.798

11,982,298,962 110.979,759.769 (116,865,566,345) 2.060,047,048

#.156,530,434

50
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2023 Opening balance  Incurred Net-ofT/ paid Closing balance as at
Receivable Payahle
YND YND YD YND VIND
Corporate
mcome Lax 3ETH 0L 514 14,535,280 250 (14,534,752 00K) - 187R238.675
Personal income tax  10,232,466,822 97,203,493, 389 (100,313,734 387} =T33 025 00
Value added tax 20,445,759 | 12,800 0497 (117,426,323} - 15,828,533
Foreign contractor
withholding tax 1.126,398.046 12485057726 (12,643,449 847) O68.005,930
15,255.012,141 124,007,245.731 (127.279.958,910) 11,082,308 052
Accrued expenses
N0 3122023
YND YND
Employee cosis 2,929 587 073 11,185 860.37]

Securities transaction fees 2.670.256,292

3,240,189,252

Interest expense 3,434,719.656 5.R20, 169360
Consulting fees [ 24 BTT. %20 92,803,065
Oithers 2,405,637.059 2.972,765.05)

17,565,079 800 Z3.301,796, 104
(Other pavables

I 2024 3122023

VMD YN

Dividend payables 2.095,392 513 1,823,928,393
Payables 1o customery 10,000, 000 9,884,000,000
Cither payvables 2,223,155 12,407,236

2.110,615.668

11,720,335,629

il
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
MNotes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
Form B09 = CTCK
(Fssued pnder Cirewlar No, 3342006/ TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finanee)

24. Share capital
The Company’s authorized and issued share capital were as follows:
AAE2024 32023
Number of shares VYND Number of shares VND

Authorised share capital 200000819 2,000,098, 190,000 150,009,819 1,500,098, 190,000
[ssued share capital

Ordinary shares 200000 B 19 2,000,058, 190,000 130,002,819 15000598, 190,000
Treasury shares

Cirdinary shanes (4901} (1, 185,000) {44900 (1,185 00413
Shares in circulation

Oridinary shares 2000009329 2 000,097 005 000 150,009 320 | 500,007, 005,000
Mowvements ino1sswed share capital during the years were as follows:

2024 2023
Number of Number of
shares YD shares YD
Opening balunce 150,002,810 ] S00.098,190,000 150,009,819 1,500,008, 190,000
Shares issued dunng the yvear S0.000,000  S00.000,000,000 - .
Closing balance 200,009,819 2000008, 190,000 150,009,819 1,500,008, 190,000
List of shareholders” capital contribution were as below:
Shareholder NAY24 A1/122023
YND k- VMDD k-
Phu Hung Far East Holding Corporation 020.0:46,000,000 46,00 GO0, 0, 000,000 46.0%)
Mew Beam Intemational Inc 416,767 450,00 200,84 261,167 450000 [7.45
Cat Tinh Development Limited 90.581.770,000 4.98 2581, 770,000 017
Dong Bang Development Limited Q0,00 860,000 4.55 T2 360,000 4.86
Others AT2, 798,110,000 23.63 472,798.110.000 3152
2,000,058, 190,000 T 1 500,08, 150 1EHE
25, Dividends

The General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company on 17 April 2024 resolved 10 distibutle dividends
amounting to YND45,002 million from the Company’s retained profits at as 31 December 2023 (2023
WHDE0,002 million). -
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{Issued wnder Circular No. 334200 6¢TT-BTC
datedd 27 December 2006 of the Minisirv of Finanee)

Gains/(losses) from sales of financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL

2024

Financial sassets at FYVTPL
Listed shares ond shares repiviered for trading on URCOM

HPG
YOG
RAL
551
GAS
87C
BMP
PV
Cthers

Covered warranis

CHPG2314

Average Gains/lossex) lrom
Craantity selling price Proceeds Cosits sales of securities
VND VND YND YND
1,126,100 2052 32 715,830,000 30.307,174,067 2 408 (55933
151,167 19,724 2081.616.050 1277.640.569 (296,033.519)
16,800 138,348 2,324,240,000 2.022.620,800 ] 619,200
60,000 35,956 2,159, 150,000 2 178 850,000 {19, 700,000)
41,000 75,971 3,114,800 004 3. 168,780,000 (53, 980,000)
65,000 41.5401] 2.723,375.000 2,.204,289,860 319,285,140
17,000} 104,027 1. 768,460,000 [ AR0974, 836 287 485,164
53,000 30,504 1,616,700,000 1571736904 44,963,096
884,563 41,017 36,282,373, 500 35.231,367,54] 731,006,319
2,414,630 35486 85,686,744 910 B1,743.443 8577 3.943.301,333
2,424,100 3,244 T.862635,TH9 #.733.303,500 (BT0.667,711)
4.838.730 19.333 93,549 380.699 90.476.747.077 3072633622
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2021 Average Gainsilosses) from
Duantity selling price Proceeds Costs sales of securities
YD YND YD YND
Financial assets at FYTPL
Liztod ghvares and shares registered for frading on UTPOOM
8TB 2474626 28,355 700, V6K, 706,700 73,361,300 866 (3,192,603, 166)
HPG 1,841,327 26461 48 723.664,300 48,213,453,1460 SI0,2110,1440
S5AB 38,920 97973 3813, 120,000 4352095917 (5395750173
FPFT 633 B2.812 2,869,6596,800 2,719,242, 403 150,454 357
GAS 24,040 102,373 2 461,045,100 2415555813 45,489,187
MEB 105,673 19,631 2074 4435 650 1,937 748 6594 136,690, 956
BVH 46,953 41,717 1. 938,736,500 2.310.531.60% {351,705, 109)
HCM 55,545 29 866 1,658.905,400 1,509, 753,851 149,151 549
EDH 50,785 31,492 1,599,422 400 1,600, 247965 (425 ,565)
YOG 57,600 24 8ol 1,431,955,000 1.196,833.6081 235,121,319
Cther 406, 196 28737 F2078.963 350 12,370,400, 1340 (291,436, 780)
3, 136322 28,978 148,338 659 200 I50.087, 773,189 (3149113 959}
Covered warrants
CHPGZ303 |, 781,200 2,524 4,495 860 000 4867 2110040 (AT1,951,00K0)
CHPG23 14 7,592 600 3,546 26,922.017.211 26,779,703, ) 142224211
CSTB2311 6,406, 600 2,158 [ 3,954 862 (KX} 0 334 663,504 4,624, 198,500
15,240, 41061 2,864 45,372, 739,211 40,982,267 500 4, 20).471,711
H0T6,722 0,258 194211, 308411 192, 9,040, 689 [,241,357,722
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Interest income from held-to-maturity investments

Interest income from term deposits

Income from loans and receivables

Imterest income from margin loans
Interest from advances to customers for proceeds from selling
securities

Expenses for securities brokerage

Employes costs

Brokeraze commissions
Securities brokernge fees
Rental expenses

Tools and supplies
Depreciation and amortisation
Dutside services

Other expenses

2024 2023

VND VND
37.337,733,669 73,112,766,792

2024 2023

¥ND YND

268,041, 189,527

[ 0,492,234 820

302,772,368 474

11,502,269.850

2TH.533,424 347

314,274.638,330

2024 2023

VND VND
51,807,823423  51,644.510.393
51,719,158421 54464670720
886,460,119 30,942 476,050
15,441,300,505  14.228.900,027
3000750388 3752495471
536,632 044 2R 6T 3R]
11,343,689482  10,937.337.266
1862725136 2,465.477.501
166,777.549.418 168 864 542 818
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B09 - CTCK
{lssned wnder Circular No. 3332006TT-HTC
dated 27 Decernber 2016 of the Ministry of Finance )

30. Interest expense

2024 2023

YD VND
Interest expense from borrowings 127.618.442,639 148,176,544 0
Interest expense on customers” deposits for secorities
trading activities 1, 187,610,102 G48,513,246

128.806.052,741 149,125,757 455
31. General and administration expenses
2024 2023
VND VYND
Employves costs 45,734 078.921 43, 867319220
Depreciation and amortsation 2.6542.027 230 8,433,358.870
Rental expenses 7,587, 180,862 7.524 266,211
Tools und supplies 0,082,983 587 7473503813
Outside services 30,555, 188,185 31,516,121,263
Other expenses 3. E78, 525471 4 353 192 3945

106,679,9584,276

103,166,761 773
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32,
(a)

(b}

{ch

Income tax

Recognised in the statement of income

x4 23
VND YHD
Current tax expense
Current vear 2. TR0, 505 495 14 468,237,006
Under provision in prior years 2,349 440} 67,052,163
2. 783,054,935 14,535,289,259

Deferred tax benefit
Originations and reversals of temporary differences

(2,550, 2015,389)

(2.880,841.301)

[ncome tax expensc 232,849 546 11645447 058
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2024 2023

VMDD WM
Accounting profit before tax 340912 582 56,199,240,960
Tax at the Company’s tax rate 68182516 11,230, 848,192
Mon-deductible expenses 276,641,514 406,085,219
Mon-taxable income (114,524,224 (6d, 538 316)
Under provision in prior years 2549440 67,052,163

232 8495460 11,648,447 958

Applicable tax rates

The Company’s income tax rate 15 20%. The income lax computation is sobjected to the review and

approval of the tax authorities.

57
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B09 - CTCK
{lesned wnder Chrowlar No, 23420067TT-RTC

dated 27 December 2016 of the Minisiry of Finanee |

Basic earnings per share
Net prafit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Net profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at the beginmng of the yeor
Effect of issued ordinary shares doring the vear
Effect of treasory shires held

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the vear

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share

2024 2023

VND VND
108,063,036 44,550,793,002

2024 2023

VND ¥ND
150,006,819 150,009,819
4,508,197 _

(490 {4901}

154,517,526 150,009,329

2024 2023

VND YND
0.7 27

The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordimary shares duning the year, Accordingly. no diluted

garnings per share is presented.
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The Company had the following significant transactions and balances with related parties during the vear:;

Major Sharcholders

Phu Hung Far Esst Holding Corporation
Cash dividend paymeni
Capital contrihution

Mew Heam International Ine
Cash dividend payment
Capital contribution
Securities custody fee

An Thinh Development Limited
Cash dividend payment

ther related parties

Vu Thai Investment Consulting Co., Ltd (i)
iCash dividend payment
Securities custndy fee

Phu Hung Assurance Corporation iii)
Cash dividend payment

Insurance expenss

Management fee of shareholder books
Securities custody fee

Freshfields Capital Corporation (iii)
Cash dividend payiment
Securities cusiody fee

Phu Hung Fund Management Joint Stock Company (iv)

Service fee
Transaction fee

Phu Hong Life Insorance Corporation (v)
Securites custody fee
Management Tee of sharchalder books

Transaction value

2024
YD

20,701, 380,000
Z230,000.000,0:00

7,853,023,500
155,000, 000,000
B 697 379

2,234, 220,000

2.242,024.500
24,751 951

841,054,100
B 972 476
23,272,725
10,445 625

387,145,800
4,274,089

1, 228,290,323
42,748,621

4,515,245
45328 285

2023
VND

123,800,5920,000

3,235,345, 000

85.755.017

11.305.3%94 400

14594, 653,000
24,482,909

627,368 4(X)
B4 dian 80
27,272,727
10,329 530

258,097,200
4,227,632

3,581,516,129
303,379

4,297 858
43,454 545
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
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{fssped nnder Circular No. 334200060TT-8TC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Ministry of Finance)

Significant balances and transactions with related parties (continued)

Major Shareholders

An Thinh Development Limited

Recemvable from securities custody services

Mew Beam International Ine
Receivable from secunties custody services

hrer related parties

Vi Thai Investment Consulting Co., Lid (i)
Pavable for security rading deposiis

hu Hung Assarance Corporation (ii)
Receivable from securities custody services
Unearned revenue

Freshfields Capital Corporation {iii)
Receivable from securities custody services

Phu Hung Fund Management Joint Stock Company (iv)
Receivable from securities brokerage activities

Phu Hung Life Insurance Corporation (v)
Receivable from securities custody services
Payable for securitics trading deposit
Unearned revenue

Balance outstanding as at

311122024

VND

087,017

T7.538,903

T446,185

Q08,563
9.604.107

371.660

1,085, 121900
11,742,422

122023

¥ND

30877

10,178,971

22,336,500

#2961

adba17
1,250

131,573
6,567 365
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
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Significant balances and transactions with related parties (continued)

Compensation to key management personnel

2024 2023

VNI VND
General Director
Salaries, honus and other benafits 1999 653,502 1851903 355
Other members of the Board of Management
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 1.865,111,265 2.555,327.684
Members of Inspection Commilice
Salaries, bonus and other henefits 720,000, 00 7203, (600, 1000
Baoard of Directors” remuneriation
Mr. Nguyen Doan Hung - Member 240, 0K30, D00 2401 CH00, 4060
Mr. Wu, Jin-Jeng — Member 2400000, 000 200,000
Mr. Chen Chia Ken = Member 20 D0, D0 2k (00, 00
bs. Liu, Hsiu-bei = Member 240,000,000 20 D0, 000

Yu Thai Investment Consulting Ca., Ltd — Legal representative of Vu Thai Investment Consulting Co,,
Ltd is a member of the Board of Director of the Company.

Fhu Hung Assurance Corporation — Deputy General Director of Phu Hung Assurance Corporation is
Head of Inspection Committee of the Company

Freshlields Capital Corporation — Chairman of the Board of Directors of Freshfields Capital Corporatian
15 also Chainman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Fhu Hung Fund Mansgement Joint Stock Company — Chairman of the Board of Directors of Phu Hung
Fund Management Joint Stock Company is also Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Phu Hung Life Insurance Carporation

A member of Board of Directors of Phu Hung Life Insumunce Corporation is Chairman of the Board of
Directars of the Company.

A member of Board of Directors of Phu Hung Life Insurance Corporation is General Director of the
Company.
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form BO% - CTCK
(Piswed wreder Circilar Na, 3342006:TT-BTC
duted 27 December 2006 af the Minisiry of Firance )

Sepment reporting

Business segments
The Company’s business segmenls comprised secunbes brokerage, secunities trading, treasury activities and other activities.
Securities Securities Treasury
Code brokerage trading activities Others Total
VND YND VND VND YND

224
|. Bevenue from operaling aclivities {H | 46700, 428,055 12,554,313.374 339,470,805 587 T.828, 166,076 506,649 713,99
2. Direct expenses 02 166250916474 7005432232 204 780,132 582 9055184242 477.091.665,530
3. Depreciation and amortisation expenses {13 526,632,944 . Q842 (027,230 - F0,368,660,174
4, Allowance for diminution in value of Investments ) - {309 AlE TAHT) = “ (308 R0E, THT)
5. Allowance for doubtful debits 03 - 19416499811 . 19.416,899.811
. Other imoome {1 - = 508,753,700 0K, 753,709
7. Other expenses a7 - - 135,938 375 139938375
Profit loss) hefore tax
(08 = 01 + 06 — 02 — 03 — 04— 05 — 07) [ {19,981, 120,45%) 5,948,489 15,431,745, %4 (1058, 402,832 0912 582
As at 31 December 2024
Segment assets 52338768395 73919649233 3.803,027,149.955 2079801674 3.931.3653649 257
Segment liabilities 407,347, 110,448 262,000 7T 1.456,135987.352 22371003 1,864, 267558510




Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3 December 2024 (continued)

Form B9 - CTCK
{lssned wnder Circular No, 33472006:TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 af the Minisiry of Firanee )

35. Segment reporting (continued)

(i}  Business segmenis (confinued)

Secorities Securities Treasury
Code brokerage trading activities Others Total
L YMD YND VIND YD

2023
[. Revenue from operating activitics H! [51.313,807.371 14,328.354.651 428,179,369, 166  5.977.080.9492 594,799 512,180
2. Direct expenses 2 |6EA35 867,437  12,901.825.970 32 M ETE A5 7544995590 517.601,561,355
3. Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5] 428,675,381 . B.433,358 870 . 8.B62.034.25]
4. Allowance for diminution in valoe of investments 4 = 145,893,176 = C 145,893,176
5. Allowiance for doubtful debts {15 . o 16,330,664, 047 = L6, B30 664 047
f. Other income {6 - - - 468,124,194 468,124,194
7. Other expenses 07 - - - 628,242 585 H28,242 585
Profitloss) before tax

(08 = 01 + 06 — 02 — 03 — 04 — 05— OT) 08 (17.550,735447)  1.280,635505 74196473891 (1,727,132,989)  56,199.240.960

As at 31 December 2023
Segmenl assets S5,628. 313,088 90, 734,283,749 3.892,105544 586 2370228475  4,040.738,369 808
Segment liahilities 383,915,984 686 325900048 2026,951,537.636 175524001117 2428745823487

(i} Geographical segment

All business petivities of the Company are carried oot in Vietnam (e, one single segment).
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B - CTCK
{ Isseed under Cirenlar No. 234201&TT-BTC
dated 27 December 2016 of the Minisiry of Finance}

Lease commitments
The future minmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were us follows:
) Pl s | 31/1272023
VND VND
Within one year 22,938 870,704 26,763,854.317
Within two to five vears 17,344 063,347 38,159,173,523
1,282 934 051 54,003 127 840
5 March 2025
Prepared by: Beviewed by:
S | o
~ Mg
< e
Ma. Newven Phuong Trninh M. Do Thi Al Vy
Avcoinfant Chief Aecounans Generul Direciar




PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence = Freedom — Happiness

No.: .84 /2025TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
Report of the Board of Directors

on the Business Performance in 2024

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 58/2020/QH14,

- Pursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corparation;

|. PERFORMANCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Structure of Board of Directors (BOD)

There are five (5) BOD members of Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS) term
2022 = 2025;

Mr. Albert Kwang-Chin Ting Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Doan Hung Member

Mr. Wu, Jin - Jeng Member

Mr. Chen Chia Ken Member

Ms. Liu, Hsiu - Mei Independent Member

2. Sum up BOD meetings, resolutions and administration of BOD in 2024

BCD of Phu Hung Secunties Corporation (PHS) consists of five (05) people,
including one (01) Chairman and four (04} members. BOD is authorized to carry out
all duties and decisions related to the Company, sxcepl for those rights reserved for
the Shareholder's Assembly. The activities of BOD are regulated under Article 33 of
the current Company Charter

Submission o AGMS - Regarl of BOD
on The Business Performance in 2024 Fage 1cfé



In 2024, BOD held B meetings to decide the business activities for each period in
accordance with the cverall development objectives of the Company, specific topics
addressed:
« Monthly reviewsd and approved financial statements, brokerage perfarmance
reports, business plans;
+ To pass the Agenda and documents using in the 2024 Annual Geperal
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) dated 17 April 2024;
* To pass the Audited financial statement of 2023;
= To pass the Audited financial safety ratio report on 31 December 2023;
= To pass the Report of the BOD on the business performance in 2023;
« To pass the Report on corporate governance in 2023 of PHS:
« To pass the Profit distribution plan in 2023,
= To pass the Plan on private placement, capital utilization;
» To pass the Revised Charler of PHS;
» To pass the Plan for handling bad debts;
» To pass the Development and business plan 2024,
+ To pass the Budget 2024;
» To pass the Remuneration of each member of BOD and Inspection
Committea in year 2024,
» To pass the Adjustment PHS organization chart;
= To pass the Amendment of Risk Management palicy;
« To pass the Adjustment and supplements of regulation on Internal Audit and
the procedure for implementing Internal Audit activities:
» To pass the Changing District 3 branch registered address,
« To pass the Closing Hanoi branch and dismissing the title of Director of Hanoi
branch;
= In addition, BOD also keeps track of business performance of the company
based on monthly reports and provide necessary gusdelines by each penod.
3. Assessment of Independent member of the Board on BOD performance
In 2024, BOD effectively conducted its activifies in compliance with legal regulations,
the company’s Charter, and corporate governance policy. The BOD ensured that the
frequency of meetings and the participation of its members met ail legal and
operational efficiency requirements. Furthermorea, the Board cleardy defined the roles

Submission to AGMS - Raport of 200
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and responsibilities of ils members, with a paricular emphasis on the distinction
batween independent and execulive members.

The BOD approved resciutions that aligned with the company's business sirategy at
each stage while maintaining oversight of the implementation of resolutions izsued
by both the GMS and the BOD itself. Additionally, BOD conducted periodic reviews
and adjusiments 1o corporate policies and internal regulations to ensure the
company's responsiveness to evolving economic and market conditions.

Moreover, the BOD provided sirategic direclion and continuous oversight of the
Board of Management (BOM) to ensure that management operations adhered fo
prevailing regulations and intemal policies, thereby maintaining corporate
govemance best practices and operational efficiency.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

1. Operation review

On 24 December 2024, PHS received adjustment license Moo 102/GPBC-UBCK
Issued by State Securities Commission, approving the amendment of its
establishment and securities business license.

2. Business review

Financial highlights in 2024

Unit: VND
Category 2024

Tolal Assels 3,931,365,369,257

Liabilities  1,864,267,558 510

Equity 2,067,007 810,747

Revenues 506,648,713,996

Operation results : 172,007,248

_Egnre-Ta:-:_PTﬂﬁt | 40,912 582
Net Profi | 108,063,036 i

Submission to AGMS - Repart of BOD
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Key Ratios

Ratio ' 2024

1. Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio 2.08

2. Leverage Ratios

Debt / Assets 0.47

Drebt / Equity 0.80

3. Activity Ratios

Assel Turnaver 0.13

4. Profitability Ratios

Return on Assets (ROA) 0.00003

Return on Equity (RCE) 0.00007

5. Valuation Ratios (VND)

Basic Eanﬁngﬁ ;_:ler Share (EFPS) 1

Book Value per Share (BFS) 10,335

The company's business performance in 2024 was influenced by both positive and
negative factors from domestic and international markets. Total annual revenue
reached VND 506,584 billion, down 15.5% from the previous year, achieving 67.9% of
the annual target approved by the GMS. In 2024, the company reported a net profit
of VND 108 million. The company has made every effort to execuie the business
plan st by annual GMS, striving fo achieve the best possible resulls,

Ill. ASSESSMENT OF BOD ON MANAGEMENT TEAM'S PERFORMANCE
In accordance with our company Charter and internal procedures & policies, the
BOD delegates autharity to the BOM to manage the company's daily business
operations and implement strategic decisions in line with the business plan and
directions set by the BOD and the GMS.
Through quartarly reports on business performance, the company's daily operational
reports, and ad-hoc management reports, the BOD evaluates whether the General

Subinission to AGMS - Repodt of BOD
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Director and the BOM have executed their duties in compliance with prevailing laws,
the company Charter, and the resalutions of GMS.

The company has completed the implementation of the private share offering plan
and the capital utilization plan, which were approved by the 2024 annual GMS under
resalution No, 01/2024/NQ-DHECE dated 17 April 2024, The company has also
received approval from the State Securiies Commission under the license for
amendment of the establishment and securites business license No. 102/GPEC-
UBCK dated 24 December 2024, theraby increasing the charter capital to VND
2,000,098,180,000. The BOD has updated the new charter capital in the company’'s
Charter.

The company has also completed the implementation of the 2023 profit distribution
plan and dividend payment to shareholders under resolution No. 01/88_0424/NG-
HBOQT dated 30 May 2024,

Additionally, the BOD has exercised its rights and responsibilities prudently,
professionally, and with integnty, ensuring the maximum legal benefits of the
company and Its shareholders

- REMUNERATION, OPERATING EXPENSES, AND OTHER BENEFITS OF THE

BOD AND EACH MEMBER

In-2024, the GMS approved a remuneration package of WVND 1,5920,000,000 for the
BOD and the Inspection Committee, with actual disbursements amounting to VND
1,680, 000000, as stated in the financial budget proposal for 2024, The
remuneration of each Board member is disclosed in the audited financial statements
of 2024.

Mr. Chen Chia Ken serves as both a Board member and the General Director
Therefore, in addifion to his remunaration, he also recebses a salary for his executive

pasition.

PLANS, ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Locking ahead, 2025 is expected to be a fransformative year for the Vietnamese
stock market, fueled by the Government's strong commitment te economic growth
and the anticipated upgrade of the market status by Financial Times Stock
Exchange from Frontier to Ememing Markel. Securities companies, including PHS,
have been diligenily preparing for these developments.

Submizsion to AGMS - Raport of BOD
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FHS has introduced a new mobile app, PHS Elite, featuring advanced tools that
allow customers to trade and access financial information anybme, anywhere.
Additionally, PHS continues to expand Its offerings and diversify financial products,
such as derivatives and covered warrants, to cater to the neads of both domestic
and international investors

With the company’s continue to focus on services, innovation, and products in 2025,
solutions for each business segment have been planned by PHS to achieve these
goals. Specifically.

a) Client-centric solutions: elevating the client experience through streamlined
onboarding, advanced portfolic management tools, and personalized advisory
services.

b} Digital transformation: enhancing digital offerings with an upgraded trading
platform featuring real-time analytics, integrated market news, and Al-powered
insights.

¢} Investor education: delivering comprehensive training programs and workshops
for retall and institutional clients, focusing on regulatory updates and market
strategies.

d) Advanced technology integration: utilizing Al and machine leaming to enhance
trading algonthms, opbmize risk managemeni, and improve compliance
manitoring.

e) Diversified product portfolio: expanding offerings to include innovative ETFs,
structured products, and derivatives aligned with market demand.

fi Customized solutions: crafing bespoke financial instruments and margin trading
products tailorad for high-net-worth and institutional clients.

Piaage kindly consider and approve,
Fespactfully,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

- ol
P [

£

ALBERT KW G-Cﬂlﬂ TING
/
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.: . 04 2025/TTr-BKS Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025
SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL

Report of the Inspection Committee
on the Business performance in 2024

TO: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION
- Based on the 2024 Financial Report audited by KPMG;
- Based on the business performance of Phu Hung Securties Corporation in 2024,
- Based on the rights and obligation of the Inspection Committes;

For and on behalf of the Inspection Committee, | hereby report the Assessment on Business
performance of the Company in 2024 as follows:

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL SITUATION IN 2024
The business performance of the company reflected on the 2024 Audited Financial Report
are made bona fide.

2. CONFORMANCE TO THE LAW AND COMPANY'S REGULATIONS

The Company has complied with the Law on Securities and relevant regulations namely:

a. On Financial Safety Ratio: the Company makes and sends periodic Financial Safety
Ratlo report meet the requirements specified in Circular 81/2020TT-BTC promulgatad
by the Ministry of Finance on 13 MNovember 2020 and Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance on 31 December 2020.

b. On Investment limit: meet the requirements specified in Aricle 28 in Circular
121/2020/TT-BTC promulgated by the Ministry of Finance on 31 December 2020.

¢. On Information disclosure: meet the requirements specified in Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC
promuligated by the Ministry of Finance on 16 November 2020.

d. Other regulations as Trading rules at the Vietnam Exchange, Ho Chi Minh Stock
Exchange, Hanoi Stock Exchange, Vietnam Securities Depository and Cleanng

Submission to AGMS - Report of the Inspection Commities
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3.

Corporation as well as the regulations applied to listed companies, and regulations on
taxation and employment are also fully complied.
COMMENTS OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE
The Board of Management has implemented the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Sharehglders, and in general, fulfilled its duty fo the interests of the Company.
In fiscal year 2024, The Company has strictly implemented and complied with the
current provisions of laws and there was no complaint of the shareholders on business
activities of the company.
The internal controf and risk management have been enhanced to ensure that all the
Branches/Trading offices affiliated to the Company are well disciplined and that the
Company will steer ahead in the right direction on a steady and long-term basis.

Please kindly consider and approve.

Respeactiully,

ON BEHALF OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE
HEAD OF INSPECTION/COMMITTEE

LIEW SEP SIANG

Submission to AGMS - Report of the Inspection Committes
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: G4 /2025/TTr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 Apnl 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17 June, 2020,
- Pursuant to Decree No, 155/2020/NE-CP dated 31 December, 2020

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby submits to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to pass on the Report on Corporate govermnance of PHS
in 2024,

Plzase kindly consider and approve.

Enclosure:

Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2024,

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

- 7
.-'-u'l e "‘\-\____

A
ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING

| .-__.-'
L,
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PHU HUNG SECURITIES THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 02/2024/BC-PHS Ho Chi Minh City, January 16, 2025

REPORT ON CORFPORATE GOVERNAMNCE
Year 2024

Tos - STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
- VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
- HANDI STOCK EXCHANGE;
- HO CHI MINH STOCK EXCHANGE.

- Name of company: PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION (PHS)

- Address of head office: 21% Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Van Thai, Tan Phu Ward. Distnict 7, Ho Chi Minh City
- Telephone: (B4-28) 54135479 Fax: (B4-28) 54135472

- Charter capital: VND 2,000,098, 180,000

- Stock symbaol: PHS

- Governance model: General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Inspection Committee and General Director

- The implementation of internal audit (Implemeanted/ Not yet implemented): implemented.
I. Activities of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Information on meetings and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders (including the Resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders approved in the form of written commeants):

e



Resolution Mo.

01/2024NCQ-BHECE

Date

Content

17/04/2024

11.
12,

13.

Pass the Audited Financial Statement in 2023;

Pass the Report of the Board of Directors on the Business performance
in 2023;

Pass the Report of the Inspection Committee on the Business
perfarmance in 2023;

Pass the Report on Corporate governance of PHS in 2023;
Pass the Development and Business plan of PHS in 2024,
Pass the Financial budget in 2024,

Pazs the Selechion of Auditor in 2024;

Pass the Plan for handling bad dabts;

Pasgs the Profit Distribution Plan in 2023 and the authorzation for the
Board of Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the
procedure to pay dividend for shareholders;

. Pass the Plan on private placement, capital utlization and the

authorization from AGMS to the Board of Directors to implement the plan
on private placement and capital utifization;
Pass the revised Charter of PHS;

Pass the dismizsal as a member of the Inspection Committee of Ms.
Kuo, Ping-Min and select addiional member of the Inspection
Committes,

Pass the adjustment of PHS organization chart.




Il. Board of Directors (Year 2024):

1. Information about the members of the Board of Directors (BOD):

Board of Directors’' members = Position (Independent members of

No. The date becoming/ceasing to be the member
the BOD, Mon-executive members of the BOD
of BOD)
Date of appointment Date of dismissal
1. | Mr. Albert Kwang-Chin Ting Chairman of the Board of Directors 06042018 -
2, -I.-'Ir Ngu;;n Doan Hung Member 06/04/2016 -
3. | Mr. Wu, Jin-Jang Member _n&mamma -
4, | Mr. Chen Chia Ken Member 06/04/2016 -
5 | Ms. Liu, Hsiu-Me: Independent member 171042019 -
2. Meetings of the Board of Directors:
No. Board of Director’ member "m;ﬂgﬂsfﬂ[m?r:dm o Attendance rate Reasons for absence
1. | Mr. Albert Kwang-Chin Ting o8 100% -
- 2. | Mr. Nguyen Doan Hung 08 100% .
3 -I'.I'Ir Wu, Jin-Jeng 08 100% -
4. | Mr. Chen Chia Ken o8 100% -
a. 08 100% -

J Ms. Liu, Hsiu-Mei

i

Pt (L



3. Supervising the Board of Management by the Board of Directors:

In year 2024, Board of Directors promptly conducted the assignment from General Meeting of Shareholders in the spirit of in
accordance to laws and internal regulations of PHS, The supervision activities of Board of Directors over Board of Management is
prescribed in the maonthly report of Board of Management and the Meeting Minutes of Board of Directors.,

4. Activities of the Board of Directors' subcommittees (If any):
PHS does not establish the Board of Directors' subcommitiees so there is not any activities to report
5. Resolutions of the Board of Directors (Year 2024):

No. | Resolution No. Date Content “"l'_’:t':"
1. Pass the Provision for Margin debt on Dec 31%, 2023; |
2, Pass the Provision for Advances to customers for securities frading |
1. 1/ 124/NO-HBEQT
01/83_0124/NC-HBQ 24/01/2024 activities on Deg 314, 2023 100%

3. Pass the Rizsk Management Policy 2024,

1. Pass the passed the Record Date, the Meeting Date of the Annual
2. | 01/84_0224/NQ-HEBQT | 28/0272024 Ganeral Maeting of Shareholders, 100%
2. Pass the increasing and renewing credit line with KGI Bank.

1. Pass the agenda and documants using in tha 2024 Annual Ganaral
Meeting Of Shareholders dated April 177, 2024,

3. | 01/B5_0324/NQ-HEQT | 22/03/2024 | 2. Pass the Audited Financial Statement of 2023; 100%

3. Pass the report of the Board of Directors on the business
performance in 2023;




Pass the report on Corporate Governance of PHS in 2023;
Pazs the development and business plan of PHS in 2024;
Pass the financial budget in 2024

Pass the plan for handling bad debts;

Pass the profit distribution plan in 2023 and the authorization for the
Board of Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the
procedure to pay dividend for shareholders;

8. Pass the plan on private placement, capital ufilization and the
authonzation from AGME to the Board of Directors to implement the
plan on private placement and capital utilization;

10. Pass the amendment of the company’s Charier,
11.Pass the adjustment PHS organization chart;

12.Pass the power of attorney for Mr. Chen Chia Ken — BOD member
cum General Director to be the Mesting Chairman and sign the
documents of the AGMS dated Apnl 17", 2024

13, Pass the audited financial safety ratio repori on December 31%,
2023;

14.Pass the renewing credit line with Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam JSC, Nam Ky Khoi Mghia branch;

15.Pass the renewing and increasing credit line with Taishin
International Bank Co., Ltd,

16.Pass the conditions for offering covered warrants for the issuance
in 2024

e, SR -
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01/86_0424NC-HBQT

30/05/2024

. Pass provision for Margin debt on March 31%, 2024;
2. Pass the provision for SIC debt on March 31%, 2024,
3. Pass the remuneration of each member of Board of Directors and

Inspection Committee in year 2024,

. Pass the adjustments and additions of Internal Regulations on Anfi-

Money Laundering;

. Pass the renawing credit line and increasing pre-settiement risk ling

with Cathay United Bank — Ho Chi Minh City branch;

. Pass the renewing credit line and applying new pre-settlement risk

line with E.Sun Commercial Bank — Dang Mai branch;

. Pass the renawing cradit line and pre-settlament risk ine with Taipai

Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., = HCMG branch;

. Pass the renewing credit line with Maga Intarnational Commercial

Bank Co., Ltd., — HCMC branch;

. Pass the renewing credit line with Shanghai Commercial & Savings

Bank, Lid., — Dong Nal branch;

10.Pass the renawing credit line with Vietnam Joint Stock Commaercial

Bank for industry and Trade — branch 4 HCMC;

11.Pass the renewing credit line with Huanan Commercial Bank Lid., =

Heo Chi Minh City branch;

12.Pass the renewing credit line with Chang Hwa Bank — HSI-Sung

branch:

13.Pass the renewing credit line with E.Sun Commercial Bank -

Offshore Banking Unit;

100%

&




15.Pass the renewing credi line with Mega Intemational Commercial
16.Pass the renewing credit line with Shanghai Commercial and
17.Pass the date to finalize the list of shareholders to pay cash dividend

18. Pass the statutes on information disclosure;
19. Pass the adjustments and supplemants of regulation on Internal

14. Pass the renewing credit line with Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank |

Co., Ltd., — Offshore Banking branch;

Bank — Offshore Banking branch;

Savings Bank = Hong Kong branch;

in 2023;

Audit and the procadure for implameanting Intermal Audit activities.

5. | 01/87_0524/NQ-HDQT | 27/06/2024

|

| 6 D1FE-B_EPESE-1JHQ—HEIQT‘ 271912024

. Pass the implement on private placement plan on increasing charter
. Pass the renewing credit line and new overdraft fline with Crient

3. Pass the renawing credit line with Cathay United bank — OBU
. Pass the renawing credit line with First Commercial bank — Offshore

. Pass the correction of the Vietnamese contents in Article 10 of

. Pass the annual intemal audit plan for the second half year of 2024

capital to VND 2,000,098,150,000

Commercial Joimt Stock Bank — Ho Chi Minh City branch

Banking Lnit

Resolution No. 01/86_D424/NQ-HBQT and Article 6 of Resolution
MNo. 04/86_0424/NQ-HBQT issued in May 2024

100%

. Pass the provision for margin debt on June 307, 2024,

100%

7 4
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2. Pass the provision for advances to customers for securities trading
activities on June 30%, 2024;

3. Pass the renewing credit line and pre-settlement risk line with CTBC
Bank Co., Ltd — Ho Chi Minh City branch;

4. Pass the renewing credit line with First Commercial Bank — Ho Chi |
Minh City branch;

3. Pass the renawing credit line with Bank of Panhsin;
6. Pass the renewing credit line with CTBC Bank Co., Ltd:

7. Pass the renewing credit fine with EnTie Commercial Bank —
Offshore Banking Unit;

B. Pass the renewing credit line with Taiwan Cooperative Bank —
Offshore Banking Unit;

8. Pass the renewing credit line with Union Bank of Taiwan.




7. | D1/89_0724/NQ-HBOAT | 28/M11/2024

1. Pass the provision for margin debt on Seplember 30", 2024;

Pass the provision for advances to customers for securities trading
activities on September 30M, 2024;

Pass the changing District 3 branch registered address;

4. Pass the closing Hanoi branch and dismissing the tithe as Director

of Hanoi branch;

Pass the renewing credit line with Saigon Bank for Industry and
Trade — Head Office;

Pass the new pre-settlement risk line with Shanghai Commercial &
Savings Bank, Ltd — Dong Nai branch,

Pass the renewing credit ine with Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Saigon South branch;

Pass the budget of company in 2025.

100%

8 | 01/90_0824/NQ-HDOQT | 301272024

it

Pass the Business Plan 2025,
Pass the Risk Management Policy 2025;
FPass the Internal Audit Flan for the year 2025;

Pass the renewing credit line and short-term treasury market unit
facility with Bank SinoPac — Ho Chi Minh City branch;

FPass the renewing credit line with Bank SinoPac — OBLU.

100%

lil. Inspection Committee (Year 2024):
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1. Information about Members of Inspection Committee:

Members of Inspection i The date becoming/ceasing to be the ; :
No.
= Committee Position member of the Inspection Committee SaNficsion
1. | Mr. Liew Sep Siang Head of ln;pechﬂn The date bEFuning l::r_l:ra the member of the Master crf Eus.iness
Committes Inspection Committea: 17/04/2019 Administration
. 2 . The date becoming to be the mamber of the Master of Business
e Mr. Chiu H
r Chiu Fsien Ghi M Inspection Committee: DS/04/2016 Administration
The date becoming to be the member of the
Inspection Committes: 31/03/2022
3. | Ms. Kuo, Ping-Min Member i
The date ceasing to be the member of the Commerce
Inspection Committea: 17/4/2024
The date becoming to be the member of the | Bachelor of Business
4. | Ms. Wang, Gwan-Fa i
9 ng Matrber Inspection Committee: 17/04/2024 Administration
2. Meetings of Inspection Committes:
No. Members of Inspection | Number of meetings | Attendance rate Voting rate Reasons for absence
Committee attended
1. | Mr. Liew Sep Siang 0z 100% 100% -
2. | Mr. Chiu Hsien Chih 02 100% 100% -

10




M=. Kuo, Ping-Min

Ms. Wang, Gwan-Fang

01

01

100%

100%

The date ceasing to be the

100% member of the Inspection
Committes; 17/4/2024
The date bacaming to be the
100% member of the Inspection

Committes: 170472024

and governance of Board of Directors, Board of Managemeant, as well as the operation of PHS' division.

3. Supervising Board of Directors, Board of Management and shareholders by Inspection Committee:

In year 2024, Inspection Committee operated in the spirit of objection, independence, in accordance with the laws and internal
reguiations of PHS. The operation of Inspection Committee includes the inspaction, obsarvation and assessment on the administration

4. The coordination among the Inspection Committee, the Board of Directors, Board of Management and other managers:

During operation, the Inspection Committes cooperated with Board of Directors, Board of Management and other divisions,
department to maintain the management and the businass aclivities smoothly, effectively and in accordance to reguiations of laws and
the internal regulation of FHS.

5. Other activities of the Inspection Committee (if any):
There is not any other activities of the Inspection Committee to report.

IV. Board of Management

CQualification

No. Members of Board of Date of birth
Management
1. Mr. Chen Chia Ken 14M10/1971

Master of Business Administration

11

Date of appointment/ dismissal of
membars of the Board of

Date of appointment: 06/0472016

Management

A TR
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2. | Me. Pham Thi Thu Nhan 13/06/1884 Master of Business Administration Date of appointment: 067042016
V. Chief Accountant
MName Date 'Df_ birth CQualification Date of appointment! dismissal
Ms, Do Thi A \y 16/09/1986 Bachelor Date of appointment: 07122018

VI. Training courses on corporate governance:

Members of the Board of Directors, Inspection Committee, Board of Management, other managers and the Company Secretary
cum Person in charge of Corporate Governance are always fully updated on fraining issues on corporate govemance.

Chairman of the BOD. Head of the Inspection Committee, Board of Management and Company Secretary cum Person in charge
of Corporate Governance have completed the course "Governance of joint stock companies in the context of capital market integration
and stock markel upgrade” organized by the Detail Securities Research and Training Center under the State Securities Commission.

Vil. The list of affiliated persons of the public company (year 2024) and transactions of affiliated persons of the

Company.
1. The list of affiliated persons of the Company:
w a 3::;?:;; Fosition at | NSH No.”, date l'a:m::fm un;rr::tz'he Ry | PORuonsnp
Mo | Organization accountiif the ’f.‘-mrrpan:.r of hsqe. place Address be affiliated|  affiliated iy with the
findividual any) i any) il person person Company
Mr. Albert _ Chairman of pr—
1, | Kwang-Chin Board of (DE/D4r2016 persons
Ting Directors

12




Mame Securities
e | Ciading | fFosiionat | NSHNo.,date starting to | ending 10 be | Reas. | Relationship
Organization | coountr | e Company | oflssue, place Adcsse be affiliated| affiliated | ons | Withthe
findividual any) {if any) of issue person person Comgany
Member of
Mr. Nguyen Board of Internal
Doan Hung . Directors 208 = = persons
Member of
Mr. Wu, Jin- Board of Internal
Member of
Board of
Directors cum
General
Mr. Chen ; Intermnal
. Director cum 06/042016 - -
Chia Ken the second PO
legal
representativ-
2
Independent
Ms. Liu, Hsiu- marmbar Internal
e i of Board of LRSS ) B persons
Directors

13
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o | Orgmason | ming. | TSRt | NSHNGLIE | piross | Singto | oncingtobe | Ress. | Koo
findividual any) (ifany) ol e person person Company
6. g;riaawﬁan ::%%:i 17/04/2019 - . m’;ﬁ;
7. | Heien Chin EE%E 06/04/2016 : Eﬁu
g :_f,‘ian'gmf; E%E 31/03/2022| 17/04/2024 | - ;’;ﬂ:;
¢ | oo, E%EE 1710412024 - w | gl

14




Mame of Sacurities : Time of Time of i .
, Position at | NSH No.*, date Relationship
No | Organization trading the Company | of issue, place Addrans starting to | ending to be | Reas- with the
| account (if Pl redaty be affiiated| affiliated | ons |
findividual any) ¥ person person SRRy
Deputy
Ms. Pham Thi Internal
10. General 06/04/2016 - -
Thu Nhan Director DErsons
Ms. Do Thi Ai Chief nternal
Accountant . " ntern
THRL ] 07122018 DErEONS
Pearson in
charge of
. Corporate
Ms. Chieu Internal
12.| Nha Thy Gwi:::nm 07052021 - - P
Comgany
Saecretary
Ms. Nguyen Deputy Internal
13-| Thi Thu Anh M“EEEF af EIEE ) ) parsons

15
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' Time of

Mame of Securities . Time of
Position at NSH No.*, date Relationship
trading starting to | ending to be | Reas-
| No.| Organizasion | . ount Gf ""‘{ﬁ‘:':"f“? ariame, pace Address b affiliated affiliated | ons | oot
lindividual any) ¥ parson person Py
Management
Division
Ms. Bach
) Chief of Internal
14.| Thi Phuong internal Audit 15/07/2022 ks
Thao
Deputy
Mr. Huang Dirsctor of Internal
15.| Kai Sheng Finance Wil ) i persons
Division
h 1705717 - Portcullis Trustnet Masior
T Ea?él;n:g ) 04/04/2012 (BVI) Limited, & * * shar&rll?:lldar
_ | Portcullis TrustMet

16




Mame of Securities e Time of Time of :
Position at MNSH No.*, date . ansh
Mo | Organization frading the Bm;:nr of issue phlna Address WAring fo | ending tiby | Rk Hﬂ::“ﬂn the a
account (if tif any) of m b be affiliated| affiliated ons Co
findividual any) ¥ person parson mpany
Helding "~ British Virgin Chambers a
Corporation lslands P.O.Box 3444,
Road Town,
Tortola, British
Virgin Islands
1873621 — Coastal Building,
An Thinh Wickhams Cay [1, :
17 | Development - TeRiEl i — Road Town, . . 5 K Marjsgirda
Limited British Virgin |  Tortola, British bl
Islands Virgin Islands
Ground Floor,
1909804 — Coastal Building
New Beam Wickhams Cay Il, .
18. | International - 24/0372016 ~ P O Box 3169, - - - hmh“:i!nni
INC British Virgin Road Town, il
Islands Tortola, British
Virgin lslands

Note: NSH No.. |D card No./Passport No. (As for individuals) or Business Registration Certificate No., License on Operations or
equivalent legal documents (As for organizations).

2. Transactions betwean the Company and its affiliated persons or between the Company and its major shareholders,
internal persons and affiliated persons.

17
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Mame of

organization

flindividual

Phu Hung
Far East
Holding
Corporation

e
|
MSH No.* E
Relationship| date of e I8
with the issue, Address with the
Company place of c
issue e e
Portcullis
Trustnet (BVI)
Limited
PR 1705717 = ;
ez | oapapoiz | Porlle | riom
to internal | — British Ehr: mhers | 291172024 to
Virgin 28/11/2024
paople il P.0O.Box 3444,
Road Town,
Tortola, British
Virgin Islands

subsidiaries in which the Company takes controlling power.

Resolution
No. approved Contant,
by GMS/BOD | gquantity, total Note
(if any, value
specifying of transaction
date of issue)
Offering
individual
shares
g;gg%?ﬂ' WND according to
D dated | 5a0 000,000,000 the
April 17, 2024 gt i
' Resolution of
the GMS in
2024

Note: NSH No.: ID card No./Passport No. (As for individuals) or Business Registration Certificate No., License on operations or
equivalent legal documents (As for organizations).

3. Transaction between internal persons of the Company, affiliated persons of internal persons and the Company's

Transaction
exacutor

Relationship
with internal
persons

Position
at the
listed

Company

ID card Mo.
/Passport
No., date of
issue, place
of Issue

Address

Mame of
subsidiaries or

companies which

the Company
control

Time of
transaction

Content,
quantity,
total value
of

transaction

18
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4, Transactions between the Company and other objects:

4.1. Transactions between the Company and the company that its members of Board of Director, the Inspection
Committee, General Director have been founding members or members of Board of Directors, or CEOs in threa (03) latest

years (calculated at the time of reporting): Nona

4.2, Transactions between the Company and the company that its affiliated persons with members of Board of Directors,
Inspection Committes, General Director and other managers as a member of Board of Directors, Board of Directors, or CEOs:
Mone

4.3. Other transactions of the Company (if any) may bring material or non- material benefits for members of Board of
Directors, members of the Inspection Committes, Goneral Director and other managers: None

VIll. Share transactions of internal persons and their affiliated persons (Year 2024).

1. The list of internal persons and their affiliated persons of the Company.

Percentage
Securities | o . .| lDeard Nutaparof | erunare
trading osition at the o./Passpo shares ownership
No. Name t (if company (if No., date of Address owned at 5t the- o Note
im::ﬁ ! any) Issue, place of the end of of the
issue the period period
Chairman of
Mr. Albart Board of
1. Kwang-Chin Directors = = .
Ting
Father:
1.1 | Lawrence S - Passed away - - - = :
Ting

19




12

Mother: Ting
Fei Tsong-
Ching

1.3

Wifia: Waong,
I-Ting

1.4

Sister: Ting,
Kwang |

1.5

Sister: Ting,
Kwang-Yu

1.6

Brother: Ting,
Kwang Hung

20




Portcullis Trustnet

(BVI) Limited,
Phu Hung s 170517 = | porteullis TrustNet
il e, Boardof | OHO4R0I2— | Chambers | o5 004600 | 46.00%
| Holding Directors British Virgin P.O.Box 3444,
Corporation iglands Road Town,
Tortola, British
Virgin Islands
18F., No.4, Sec.
BOBS0TH3- 1, Zhongxiao W.
Freghﬁelds Chairman of Rd.. Zhongzheng
1.8 | Capital Bpard of 31/03/2004- Dist., Taipei City 1,290,486 0.65%
Corporation Directors Taiwan 100, Taiwan
(R.O.C.)
Room Mo. 4, Floor
Phu Hung 24/UBCK-GF | 21, Phu My Hung
Fund Chairman of Tower, No. 0B
1.8 | Managemant Board of 2B/12/2007 - Hoang Van Thai - -
Jeint Stock Directors State Securities | Street, Tan Phu
Company Commission Ward, District 7,
HCMC.
P Mr. Nguyen l:ml::r |:l’
* | Dean Hung i - :
Directors

21
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2.1

Father:
MNguyen Van
Tran

Passed away

22

Mather:
Pharm Thi
Bac

Ratired

2.3

Daughter:

MNguyen
Phuong Anh

2.4

Son: Nguyen
Hung Nam

2.5

oister:
MNguyen Nhi
Ha

26

. Sister:

Mguyen Thai
Binh

27

aistar:
Nguyen Hong
Nga

2.8

Sister;
Nguyen Hong
Viet




Brother: .
2.9 | Nguyen Hung | - 268177 0.13%
Manh
DA035TEE03-
2.10 | Mesan Groug Bt | e | D | - :
Directors Planning and District 1, HCMC
Investmeant
. Member of
g [Nl Board of : :
4 Directors
Flaor 14,
Yu Thai —. u1:§}21;¢&ﬂﬂt}; = Cornerstone
Investmant SR TAN201T - | pubiding, 16 Phan
3.1 Conguttant Board of Departmant of Chu Tr'ﬁh Hoan 7.473415 3. T4%,
i Directors PFlanning and Sy
Limited Kicasirrat Kiem District.
Hanaoi City
Room No. 4, Floor
Phu Hung 24/UBCK-GP | 21, Phu My Hung
Fund Member of Tower, Mo. OB
3.2 | Management Board of 25M 212007 - Hoang Van Thai - =
Joint Stock Diractors State Securities | Street, Tan Phu
Company Commission Ward, District 7,
HCMC,

23
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Member of

Board of
Directors cum
i. Mr. Chen General
Chia Ken Director cum
the second
legal
representative
Father: Chean
4.1 Yi Ean FPassed away
Mother; Tsai
42 | Bi Chin =
Wife: Wang
4.3 1 TIL' -
Child: Chen
44 Hsiu Te 2

24




Child: Chen

43 | Hsiu vi 2
Independent
member of

5 | Ms.Liu Board of

© | Hsiu-Mei Directors

5.1 Father: Liu, B

© | Guo - Cheng

Mather;
52 | Ghen, Yue-E =
Spouse:
5.3 | Chiu, Yi- -
Hung
Daughter.
54 | Chiu, Chen- -
Yu
Son: Chiu, .
53 | Chen-Kai
San; Chiu,
38 | Chan-En g

25
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Head of

6. '3'1:;:"" Sep Inspection
9 Committee
8.1 Father: Liew )
" | Ee Khang
62 Mother: Lee i
| Yaak Leak
g3 | Brother Liew .
: Sap Leng
Sister: Liew
64 | chin Hui .
65 Brother: Liew )
™ | S8ep Yong
Wife: Chiu Zi
6.6 Yan =

26




Floor 22, Phu My

41IGP-KDEH oNvEr
6.7 :::utl:rl:ge Depuly General | 12/12/2006 - H;g’i"ga”g _!};& 3,136,847 1.57%
' Corparation Director Ministry of Thai Street, Tan T :
Finance Phu Ward, District
7, HCMC.
Room No. 4, Floor
' Phu Hung Z4/UBCK-GP | 21, Phu My Hung
Fund Head of Tower, No. 08
6.8 | Managemeant Inspection EBf'lEmIl?" ' Heang Van Thai
Joint Stock Committee State Secunties | Streetl, Tan Phu
Company Commission Ward, District 7,
HCMC.
Member of
- Mr. Chiu Inspection
" | Hslen Chih Committee - i ”
Father. Chiu
% Chusi Chun Passed away - - - .
Mother: Syu
T.2 Yus Ya Passed away - - - -
Wifa: Lin
7.3 Ching ¥i ) - =

27




Sister; Chiu
74 | [y chiu - |
Sister: Chiu
7S | Li¥ing _ |
78 Sister: Chiu
£ HE”E'h D ) |
The date
ceasing to
be the
Ms. Kuo, chion e
B Inspection
Ping-Min Committee -
Inspection
Commities:
17/472024
81 Mather: Ding
"' | Zhi Fang _
28




Room No. 4, Floor

Phu Hung 24/UBCK-GP | 21, Phu My Hung
Fund Tower, No. 08
8.2 | Managemant DEWS? GEI s EB”EEM?.' Heoang Van Thai
Joint Stock State Securities |  Street, Tan Phu
Company Commission \Ward, District 7,
HCMC.
The date
becoming
Member of to be the
9. ?ﬂ:‘:ﬂ Inspection member of
9 Committee Inspection
Committee:
171042024
9.1 Father: i i
T | Wang, Pai-Fu
Mother: Yeh,
92 | Mei-Yu : :
0311068000 - | Floor 22, Phu My
The Sang 15/08/2011 = | Hung Tower, No.
Media 2 Departmant of 08 Hoang Van
93 | Company iRy Planningand | Thai, Tan Phu -
Lirmited Investment of | Ward, District 7,
HCMC HCMC
0312894874 —
g.4 |Hung Truyen Director Floor 3, 4, P
Development 15/08/2014 - Crescent

28
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Company
Limited

Department of

FPlanning and

Investment of
HCMC

Fesidence 3, 109

Ton Dat Tien, Tan

Phu Ward, District
7, HCMC

10.

Ms. Pham
Thi Thu
Nhan

Deputy
General
Director

10.1

Father: Pham
MNgoc Ho

10.2

Mather:
Pham Thi
Haon

10.3

' Child:

Nguyen
Pham An
Mhien

104

Sibling: Pham
Ngoc Tinh

an




Sibling: Pham

10.5 | Thi Cam -
Auyen
Ms. Do Thi Chief

11.  AiVy Accountant
Father: Do

M1 | Giavan :
Mother:

11.2 | Nguyen Thi -
Tuyet

41,5 | Hushand: 3

Pham Duc Vu

31
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11.4

Child: Pham
zia Khiem

1.5

Child; Pham
Bao Chau

11.6

Sister; Do Thi
Ly Ly

1.7

Sister: Do Thi
Uyen My

1.8

Brother. Do
Gia Bao

32




Person in

charge of
Corporate
Ms. Chieu
12. Governance
Nha Thy cum
Company
Secretary
Father: Chieu
2.1 | puc Nghia :
Mother:
12.2 | Luong Ngoc -
Mai
Brother:
12.3 | Chieu Duc -

Tam

- S TN



Sister: Chieu

12.4 Boi Thy - - -
H'Dﬂputi' f
Me. Nguyen nager o
13. Thi Thu Anh Risk 107 0.000053%
Management
Division
Father:
13.1 | Nguyen Ngoc - - -
Chung
Mother. Ho
132 | Thi Thu Van = ' '

34




13.3

Brother:

Nguyen Ngoc
Anh

134

Brother:
Nguyen Tuan
Anh

14.

Ms. Bach
Thi Phuong

Chief of
Internal Audit

141

Father: Bach
Quang Vinh

33
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14.2

Mather: Dinh
Thi Ngoc
Hanh

14.3

Younger
brother: Bach
Chi Cuong

14.4

Son: Nguyen
Phuc Hoang

15.

Mr. Huang
Kal Sheng

Deputy
Director of
Finance
Division

15.1

Father:
Huang, Jeng-
Her

36




Mather:

19.2 | \Wu, Chen- . .

Chen

Wife: Chiang,
15.3 Chu=Yun ) ) - - -

|
!

son: Huang,
54 | ping-Chieh : ' g . :

2. Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of the company.

Mumber of shares owned at | Number of sharas owned at .
_ Relationship | the beginning of the period the end of the period | ieasons for increasing,
NG Trama:thun with In l | d-nml:tli'ﬂaling (buying,
executor it selling, converting,
persons Number of Number of |
ihanis Percentage shaies Percentage rawarding, etc.)

37




IX. Other significant issues: None.

Recipients:
- Az above;
- Archived: Company Secretarat

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN
Sull name and seal)
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Mo.: . G4 /2025/TTr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the capital raised from the private placement of shares
on 29 November 2024

TO: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby submits to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to pass the Report on Wilisation of Capital for the capital
ralsed from the private placement of shares on 28 November 2024 was audited by KPMG
Limited Vietnam.

Plzase kindly consider and approve,
Respactfully,

Enclosure:

1. Report on Utilisation of Capital for the capital raised from the private placement of shares
on 28 November 2024,

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

"

i "3—.-«_.—-"— |7(£.

. /
ALBERT I{WAIﬂ{G-EIjHi'uI TING

A

S

Submission to AGWS - Report on Utilisation of of Capital for the capital raisad
from the private placement of shares on 29 Movember 2024, 1M
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Report on Utilisation of Capital for the period
from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024
of the capital raised from the private placement of shares
on 29 November 2024




Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Corporate Information

Estublishment and
Operation Licence Mo,

Enterprise Registration
Certificate No.

Board of Direciors

Inspection Commitice

Board of Management

122/GP-UBCK 20 January 2016
18/GPDC-UBCK 22 June 2016
2IGPDC-UBCK 25 July 2016
O3/GPDC-UBCK 23 January 2017
OHGPDC-UBCK 11 January 2018
IOVGPDC-UBCK 29 November 20138
107/GPDC-UBCK 26 December 2018
4GPDC-UBCK 21 August 2019

I WGPDC-UBCK 4 March 2020
03/GCN-UBCK 16 June 2020
M/GCN-UBCK 16 June 2020
4RGPDC-UBCK 24 June 2021
82/GPDC-UBCK 28 September 2021
STGCN-UBCK 31 December 2021
THGPDC-UBCK 29 August 2022

1 HINGPDC-UBCK [} November 2022
102GPDC-UBCK 24 December 2024

The Establishment and Operation Licence and its amendments were
issued by the State Securities Commussion of Vietnam.

O3 13642847 20 Janumry 2016

The Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended several
limes, the most recent of which is by Enterprise Registration
Certificate No, 0313642887 dated 22 November 2022 The initial
Enterprise Registration Centificate and its updaies were issoed by the
Depanment of Planming and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City.

Mr. Albert Kwang-Chin Ting Chairman
Mr. Mguyen Dioan Hung Member
Mr. Wu, Jin-lcng Membet
Mr, Chen Chia Ken Member
Ms. Lin, Hsm-Mei Independent Member
Mr, Liew Sep Siang Head of Inspection Commitlee
Mr. Chiu, Hsien-Chih Member
Ms. Wang, Grwan Fang Member
{from 17 April 2024)
Ms. Koo, Ping-Min Member

(unil 17 April 20:24)

Mr, Chen Chia Ken Creneral Director
Ms. Pham Thi Thu Nhan Deputy General Director



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Corporate Information (continued)

Repistered offices
Head Cifice

Phu My Hung

Transaction (MTice

District 3 Branch

Tan Hinh Branch

Thanh Xuan Branch

Hai Phong Branch

District 1 Bronch

Auditor

214 Floar, Pho My Hong Tower
§ Hoang Van Thai Strest

Tan Pho Ward, District 7

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Ciround Floor, CRZ-04

107 Ton Dot Tien Sireet
Tan Pho Word, District 7
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4" Floor

4538 Nguyen Thi Minh Khai Street
Ward 2, District 3

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Park Legend Building

251 Hoang Van Thu Street
Ward 2, Tan Binh District
Ho Chi Minh City. Vietnam

5% Floor, Udic Complex Building
M4 Hoang Dao Thuy Street

Trung Hon Ward, Can Giay District
Hanot, Vietnam

24 Floor, Eliteco Building

18 Tran Hung Dao Strest

Heang Van Thu Wurd, Hong Bang District
Hai Phong City, Vietnam

Room 1003A, 10" Floor
E1-83-83B-85 Ham Nghi Straet
Mguyen Tha Binh Ward, Disirict 1
Ho Chi Mink City, Yieinam

EPMG Limted
Wietnam

-2



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Phu Hung Securities Corporation {*the Company™} presents this
statement and the secompanying Report on Unilisation of Capital for the period from 9 December
2024 10 3] December 2024 of the capital raised from the private placement of shares on 29 November
20024 {“the Report on Utilisation of Capital™) of the Company.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Report on
Utilisation of Capital in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Nete 2 to the Repon
on Utilisation of Capital. We confirm that:

{a) the Repon on Utilisution of Capital of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the
hasis of preparation described in Note 2 to the Repont on Linlisation of Capital, and

(b we fully accept legal responsibilities for the aceuracy and faimess of the content of the Report
on Utilisation of Capital.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this sialement, authorised the accompanying Repon
on Utilisation of Capital for 1ss0e,

Cierteral Direcior

Ho Chi Minh City, 10 March 2025



KPMG

KPMG Limited Branch

10th Floar, Sun Wah Tower

115 Mguyen Hue Street, Ben Nghe Ward
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
+84 (28) 3821 8266 | kpmyg.comam

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Phu Hung Securities Corporation

We have audited the accompanying Report on Ulilisation of Capital for the pericd from @
December 2024 to 31 December 2024 of the capital raised from the private placement of shares
on 28 November 2024 of Phu Hung Securities Corporation ("the Company™), including a summary

of significant accounting policies and notes, as set out on pages 6 to 9 (hereafter referred to as
“tha Report on Utilisation of Capital™).

Management's Responsibility

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Report on Utilisation of Capital in accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies
dascribed in Note 2 to the Report on Utilisation of Capital, and for such internal control as the
Board of Management determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of the Report on
Utilisation of Capital that is free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or eror. The
Company’s Board of Management is also responsible for determining that the basis of preparation
and accounting policies used are appropriate.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Report on Utilisation of Capital based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and paerform the audit fo
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Report on Utilisation of Capital is free of material
misstatemant.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Report on Utilisation of Capital. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Report
on Utilisation of Capital, whather due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considars internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and presentation of the
Report on Utilisation of Capital in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivansss of the
Company’s internal contrel. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company's Board of
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Report on Utilisation of Capital.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a
basig for our audit opinion.
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KPMG

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the period from & December 2024 10 31
December 2024 of the capial raised from the private placement of shares on 29 November 2024
of Phu Hung Securities Corporation has been prepared. in all material respacis, in accordance
with the basis of preparation and significant accounting policies described in Note 2 to the Report
on Utilisation of Capital

Basis of preparation and restriction on use

\We draw attention to Note 2 to the Report on Utilisation of Capital, which describes the basis of
preparation and significant accounting policies used for preparing the Report on Utilisation of
Capital, Tha Report on Utilisation of Capital has been prepared to assist the Company to comply
with the requirements of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP {"Decres 155") dated 31 December 2020
of the Government elaborating of certain articles of the law on secunities in relation to report and
disclosura of information an utilisation of capiial, funds received from the private placement of
shares. Therefore, the Report on Utiksation of Capital may nol be suitable for any other purposes,
Cur audit report is intended solely for the Company's submission to the State Securities
Cammission of Vietnam and other State authorities as required by the prevailing regulation and
disclosure of information as required by Decree 155 and should nol be used for any other
purposes.

KPMG Limited's Branch in Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Audit Repart No,.: 25-01-00202-25-1

i Pham Huy Cuong
neliingATiditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate Na, 0863-2023-007-1 Cerlificate No. 2675-2024-007-1
Depuly General Directar

Ha Chi Minh City, 10 March 2025



Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the period from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024

Pursuant to requirements of Decree No, 155/2020¢ ND-CP {"Decres 155"} dated 31 December 2020 of
the Government claborating of certain articles of the law oni securities, Phu Hung Securities
Corporation prepares the Report on Utilisation of Capital for the period from 8 December 2024 to 31
December 2024 on the capital raised from the private placement of shares on 249 MNovember 2024
(“Report on Utilisation of Capital”™) & follows:

Background information of the private placement of shares

1. Share nama - Phu Hung Securities Comporation’s Share
2. Share ticker code : PHS

3, Share type s Oidinary shire

4, Currency : Vietnam Dong (VND)

5. Par value : VWD 0,000 per share

6. lssue price : WND10.000 per share

7. Mumber of shares ssued o S0, 000 D0 shares

8. WValue of shares issued + WIS, 000,000,000

9. Form of issuance : Private placement

10, Start date of issuance ¢ 29 November 2024

11. End date of ssuance - 29 Wovember 2024

12, Plan of Capital using - Supplement working capital for basiness activities;

- Supplement capital for lending activities of advance for the
proceeds of selling securities; supplement capital for lending
activities of margin trading activities,

- Enhance financial safety, supplement capital for derivative
activities,

. Provide other financial and securities services in accordance
with the faws,

Pursuardt to the Resolution of the General Sharcholders Mesting No. D122 4NO-DHDCD dated 17
April 2024 of the General Shareholders Mesting approving the Plan af private placement of 50,000,000
shares at the price of VNDI0,000share, pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of Directors No.
DET 0524/NQ-HDQT dated 27 June 2024 of the implementation of share prvite placement plan
increasing charter capital 10 VNDZ,000,098,190,000, pursuant to Official Letter No. A4 2/UBCK-
QLED dated 15 October 2024 isswed by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam which
acknowledges receiving the private placement documents of the Company on 29 November 2024, the
Company completely issved 50,000,000 shares with the issuance price of VIND10,000/share. On Y
December 2024, the Company received Official Letter No. BISEMUBCK-OLKD from the State
Securitics Commission of Vietnam which acknowledges receiving related documents on the result of
the private placement.

Dietails of capital received in the Company's bank uecount were as follows:

Date of receipt The bank account received capital Amouni
VND
2G November 2024 Joimt Stock Commercial Bank  for  Investment  and
Development of Vietnam (“BIDV™) — Nom Ky Khoi Mphia
Firanch SO0, D, R0, 0080
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the period from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024

Details of capital raised and the utilisation of the capital of the Company were is follows:
Period from
o December 2024 10
A1 December 2024
VND
Total capital raised from the private placement of shares on 29 November 2024 SO0, D00 000,000

Utilisation of the capital raised to supplement of working eapital for business

activities:
= Repayment of borrowings from Chang Hwa Bank (255,182,503,913)
=  Repayment of borrowings from Bank of Panhsin {25,524,156,177)
»  Repayment of borrowings from Cathay United Bank
— {Hfshore Banking Unit {205, 2ER0 (00, 000
Outstanding balance as at 31 December 2024 3,330, 0
10 March 2025
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
ﬂ,}-fi-"::-" ‘ /H
Ms. Do Thi Ai Vy Mr. Huang Kai Sheng
Chief Accountant Dty Divector General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Report on Capiral Urilivation
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the period from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the sccompunying Repor
om Utilisation of Capital.

Reporting entity

Phu Hung Securities Corporation {“the Company™) is a joint stock company established in Vietnam
under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 12HGP-UBCK dated 20 January 2016 issued by the
State Securities Commission of Vietnam. The Establishment and Operation Licence has been amended
many times, and the most recent of which was Establishment and Operation Licence No, 10LGPIC-
UBCK dated 24 December 2024 issued by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam,

The Company was established on the basis of combining Phu Hung Securitics Corporation ("PHS™) -
sstablished under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 2V UBCK-GPHDED dated | December
2006 and An Thanh Securities Joint Stock Company (“ATS"). Accordingly, the Company 1ook over
all of the assets, liabilities, rights und obligations of PHS and ATS as at 19 January 2016 amd PHS and
ATS ceased their operations from 20 January 2006, Assets and liahilities of PHS and ATS as at 19
January 2016 were transferred to the Company at ook value and the net assel {totul assets — tolal
ligbilities) of PHS and ATS us at 30 September 2015 formed the share capital of the Company at that
date.

The Company’ s shares are registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market (“UPCOM")
with the code PHS in asccondance with Decision No. 475/0D-SGDHN issued by Hanoi Stock Exchange
on 19 July 2019,

The principal activities of the Company are to carry out securitics brokerage, securities trading,
securities investment advisory, securities custody and securities underwniting activities.

Ag it 31 December 2024, the Compeny had 329 employees (31/12/2023: 382 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Report on Utilisation of Capital for the period from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024 of the
capital raised from the private placement of shares on 29 November 2024 (“Report on Unlisation of
Capital”") contains the financial information relating 10 the utilisution of capital raised from the private
placement of shares on 29 November 2024,

The Report on Utilisation of Capital has been prepared based on the following principles:

s The Repont on Utilisution of Capital has been prepared based on the accounting records and
documents of the Company.

o  The Report on Ulilisation of Capital only presents the imitial utilisation of capital m pecordance (o
the capital utilisation plan approved by the Resoluticn of the General Shareholders Meeting MNo.
D1/20240N0-DHDCD dated 17 April 2024 and does not present revolving capital, ifany.

The aeeompamying ioles are ar inteeral parf of this Report on Capital Ltilisation
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Phu Hung Securities Corporation
Notes to the Report on Utilisation of Capital
for the period from 9 December 2024 to 31 December 2024 {eontinued)

The Report on Utilisation of Capital has been prepared to assist the Company to comply with the
requirements of Decree Mo, |5520200ND-CP {“Decree 1557) dated 31 December 2020 of the
Government elaborating of certain articles of the law on securities. in relation 10 report and disclosure
of information on utilisation of capital, funds received from the private placement of shares. This
Report on Utilisation of Capitsl and its utilisation are not designed [or those who are not informed
about the principles and requmrements of Decree 155, Therefore, the Report on Utilisation of Capital
may nol be suitable for any other purposes,

Basis of measurement

The Report on Utilisation of Capatal is prepared on cash basis using the historical cost concept, In
accordance with this accounting basis:

s The cash collected from the share issuance is recorded when the Company receives cash from its
shareholders;

s  The capital utilisation is recorded when the payments are made.

Accounting and presentation currency
The Report on Utilisation of Capital is prepared and presented in Vietnam Dong ("VNLL

10 March 2025
Prepared by: Reviewed by: yed by
ﬁ:,..p-"'"’f- A
Ms, Do Thi Ai Vy Mr. Huang Kai Sheng T. Chen Chia Ken
Chief Accountant Depuery Director Creneral Director
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: .05 /2028/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
Report on updating the Charter recording the adjustment of new charter capital
To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Law on Enterprises No, 59/2020/0H14 dated 17 June 2020:
- Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26 November 2019;

- Decree No. 155/2020/NB-CF dated 31 December 2020 of the Government providing
guidance on Law on Securities;

- Pursuant to the curment Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation.

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation (the "Company”) submits to
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders Report on updating the Charter recording the
adjustment of new charter capital, as follows:

1. According to Resolution of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No, 01/2024/NQO-
BHBCE dated 17 April 2024, in which passed the plan on private placement, capital
utiization and the authorization of General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of
Directors to implement the plan on private placement (Resolution 10), after performing
the procedures for private placement and registering changes in charter capital with the

State Securities Commission, Stock Exchanges and other authorities after implementing
the above Resolutions. Therefore, the State Securities Commission issued the License

on amendment No. 102/GPBC-UBCK dated 24 December 2024, recording charler capital
of the Company at WVND 2,000,098,180,000 (in words: Two trillion ninety-eight million one
hundred ninety thousand dang).

2. Company updated the information the charter capital stated above in to the Charter

signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors on 10 January 2025 according to Article
71.2{b) of Charter of Company.

Submission to AGMS - Report on updating the Charter recarding the
adjustment of new charler cagpital 172
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3. The Board of Directors of the Company hereby reports and suggests General Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the updated content mentioned in Charter of the Company
dated 10 January 2025,

Flease kindly consider and approve.

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMANMN

A

ALBERT KVﬁﬁﬁHEH TING
-

Submission to AGMS - Report on updating tha Charler recarding the
adjustment of new charter capital 2/2
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CHARTER

PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

Ho Chi Minh City, January 10, 2025
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LEGAL BASIS

The Law on Enterprises No. S9/2020/QH14 passed by the Socialist Republic of Vietnam
Mational Aszembly on 17 June 2020 (“Law on Enterprise);

The Law on Securities No, 54/2019/QH14 passed by the Socialist Republic of Vienam
National Assembly on 26 November 2019 (“Law on Securitics™):

Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP of the Government dated 31 December 2020 detailing arud
puiding the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 of the Minister of Finance guiding
a number of articles on public Company governance as prescribed in (he Government’s
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020, on detailing and guiding the
implementation of # number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Circular No. 12120200TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 of the Minister of Finance
stipulating securities Company operations.

CHAPTER L. DEFINITION OF TERMS IN THE CHARTER

Article 1: Definitions

1.

In this Charter, the following terms shall be construesd as follows:
8. “Company™ means Phu Hung Securities Corporation.

b. “Charter capital” means the total aggregate par value of issued shares that shareholders
fully paid and regulated in Article 6 of this Charter.

C. “Voting capital” means the share capital that endows the holder the right to vote on
the issues within the jurisdiction of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

d, “ Article™ means an article of this Charter,

€. “Law” means all the legal documents stipulated in Article 4, the Law on Promulgation
of Legal Documents passed by the Socialist Republic of Vietnam National Assembly
on 22 June 2015 and its amendment(s) (if any).

B “Date of establishment™ means the date on which the Company is first granted the
License of Establishment and Operation.

E. “Manager Team™ means the General Director, Deputy General Director, Chief
Accountant and any other managers in the Company approved by the Board of
Directors.

h. “Executive of a Company™ means the owner of a Company, including Chairman of
member of the Board of Directors, Director {General Director), or holder of another
managerial position approved by the Board of Directors,

i “Related person” means any individual or organization stipulated in Article 33.4 Law
on Securities and Article 46.4 Law on Enterprises.

Page |
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- “Major shareholder” means a shareholder who owns 05% or inore ol the voting sharves
of the Company.

k. “Duration of operation” means the operation duration of the Company stated in Article
2 of this Charter and extension of operation duration (if any) as approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders with a resolution.

“Legal documents of an individual” include the 1D card (old or new format), passport
and other legal personal identification documents,

m. “Legal documents of an enterprise” include the Establishment Decision, Certificate of
Enterprise Registration and equivalent documents.

n. *Vietnam™ means the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,
o, “SS5C"™ means the State Securities Committee,
P “Stock Exchange™ means the Stock Exchange of Vietnam and subsidiary companies.
g- "WSDC" means Viet Nam Sceurities Depository And Clearing Corporation.
I. “Voung at the Meeting” means a shareholder:
- Directly vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders:
- Authorize another individual/organization to vote at the meeting;
- Voting through online meetings, eleetronie voting, or other electronic forms;
Send the votes to the meeting by post, fax, email or by other means.

g, “Electronic voting™ or “E-voting” means the Sharcholder, the Sharcholder's
authorized representative vote under electric form via E-vating system of VSDC,

2. In thiz Charter, any references to one or more other provisions or documents shall include
amendments to or documents replacing such provisions or documents.

3. Headings (chapters and articles of this Charter) are for convenience purpose only and shall
not atfect the contents of this Charter.

4, Any word or term defined in the Law on Enterprise or the Law on Securities shall have the
same meaning in this Charter (if such word or term is not contrary to the subject or context).

CHAFPTER II. NAME, HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, BUSINESS LOCATION,
OPERATIONAL DURATION AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY

Article 2: Name, head office, branches, business location and operational duration of the
Company

¥ Name of the Company:

a. Vietnamese name:  Céng ty C6 phén Chimng khoén Ph Humg

Page 2
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h.

5

d.

English name: Phu Hung Securities Corporation

Mame for transaction: Ching khodn Phi Hung

Abbreviation: PIS

Legal Form: The Company is a shareholding Company of which legal status is in accordance
with all applicable [aws of Vielnam.

Registered Head Office of the Company:

.

b.

A

d,

Head Office address; 219 Floor, Phu My Hung Tower, 08 Hoang Yan Thai, Tan Phu
Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City

Telephone:  (+B4 28) 5413 5479
Fax: (+84 28) 5413 5472

Website: www.phs.vn

The legal representative of the Company means individuals representing the Company 1o
exercise the rights and perform the obligations arising out of transactions of the Company,
and representing the Company to act as plaintiff, defendant or person with related interests
and obligations in arbitration proceedings or courts and to exercise other rights and perform
other obligations in accordance with law,

The legal representatives of the Company include:

il

The first legal representative: Mr. Albert Kwang-Chin Ting
The title: Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The first legal representative has rights under this Charter and provisions of prevailing
laws. The first lepal representative is enfitled to represent the Company in all
transactions and is entitled to sign on all documents on behalf of the Company and
other documents under power of Chairman of Board of Directors,

The first legal representative has obligations arising from transactions of the
Company, representing the Company to act as plaintiff, defendant, person with related
interests and obligations in arbitration proceedings, courts and other obligations under
obligations of Chairman of Board of Directors in accordance with the Charter and
laws,

The second legal representative: General Director.

The second legal representative has rights under this Charter and provisions of
prevailing laws, The second legal representative is entitled to represent the Company
in all transactions and is entitled to sign on all documents on behalf of the Company
and other documents under power of General Director, not including the following
rights:

i Sign on the Charter of the Company.
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i, Sign on the shareholder certificate books or share certificates cormmesponding to
the number of shares and the class of owned shares,

iii.  Sign on documents on behalf of bank aceount owner of the Company (except
when the bank account owner approves by means of writing).

The second legal representative has obligations arising from transactions of the
Company, representing the Company to act as plaintiff, defendant, person with related
interests and obligations in arbitration proceedings, courts and other obligations under
obligations of General Director in accordance with the Charter and laws,

The legal representative is registered to be responsible for providing documents and
working with S8C and competent State Agencies being General Director. Chairman
of Board of Director reserves to have rights of providing documents and working with
58C and competent State Agencies in case General Director is absent from Vietnam.

The binding relationship between the legal representatives;

The legal representatives of the Company are responsible for maintaining the close
relationship and cooperation together in operating and managing all assignments,
transactions and projects of the Company,

Structure of transfer rights and obligations between the legal representatives in case
the legal representative resigns, is dismissed, escaped from residence, detained,
imprisoned, lost or limited capacity to act or deprived of the right to practice:

1. In casc the first legal representative is Chairman of Board of Director falling
in the above cases, General Director will perform rights and obligations of
Chairman of Board of Director.

il. In case the second legal representative is General Director falling in the above
cases, Chairman of Board of Director will perform rights and obligations of
General Director.

Ihe Company may establish or close itz branches, transaction and representative offices in
the locality in which the Company conducts its business in order to earry out its objectives in
accordance with the resolutions of the Board of Directors and as permitted by law.

Unless it is terminated before the expiry as specified in Articles 66 hereto, the operation
duration of the Company shall be indefinite commencing from the Date of establishment.

CHAPTER II1. OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATION OF THE

COMPANY

The Company's operation objectives

The Company’s operation objectives are to constantly look for business development opportunities to
maximize the profits of the Company’s shareholders; improve working conditions and increase
income of the employees, perform all of its obligations to the state budget; and build up a prosperous
and sustainahle Company,

Page 4


Dieu Nguyen Thi Bich
Rectangle

Dieu Nguyen Thi Bich
Rectangle

Dieu Nguyen Thi Bich
Rectangle


Article 4: Scope of business and operation

L;

2,

Business line, sector of the Company are!

. Securities brokerage;

b. Dealing:

¢, Securities investment consultancy, financial consultancy and other financial services;
d. Sccurities underwriting;

e Derivative securities trading including derivative securitics dealing, brokerage and

investment consultancy:
f©  Supply of derivative securities clearing, scitlement services.

The Company shall be permitted to make plans and carry out all business activities in
accordance with its License of Establishment and Operation, this Charter and the applicable
laws. The Company shall also be permitted to apply appropriate measures to achieve its
ahjectives.

In addition to the securities trading professionals specified in Clause 1 of this Article, the
Company may provide the services of securities depository, financial consultancy,
minagement of securities trading accounts in trust for investors and other financial services
in accordance with regulations of the Ministry of Finence. The Company may conduct its
business activities in other fields as permitted by law and approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders,

Article 5: The offering of covered warrants

1.

Subject to applicable laws and approval of SSC, the Company shall offer covered warrants
and carry out relevant business activities in respect of it

Covered warrants is securities guaranteed by assels issued by the Company, allowing owners
to purchase (purchasing covered warrants) or sell (selling covered warranis) the underiying
securities to the Company at a priced determined before, at or belore a defined time, or
allowing owners to receive the difference between the undertaking price and the price of
underlying securities at the time of execution.

A holder of & warrant is a creditor of the debt partially covered by the Company (except for
untraded warrants). Besides, a holder of a warrant has other rights and obligations under the
laws, the prospectus for offering warrant, including but net limited to the right to receive cash
payment or underlying securities, transfer, give, bequeath, mortgage, or pledge, ete.

CHAPTER 1V, CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS

Article b: Charter capital, shares and founding shareholders

L.

Charter capital of the Company is VIND 2,000,098, 190,000 (in words: two trillion ninety-eight
million one hundred ninety thousand Vietnamese Dong only).
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The Company's Charter capital shall be divided into 200,009,819 (in words: two hundred
million nine thousand eight hundred and nineteen) shares, each having a par value of VND
L0 (in words: ten thousand Vietmamese Dong).

The Company may increase its Charter capital upon approval of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders and in accordance with the laws,

The Company's shares as at the date of approval of this Charter comprise ordinary shares only.
The rights and obligations of the ordinary sharcholders are stipulated in Article 20 and Asticle
21 hereto, i

The Company may issue other classes of preference shares upon abtaining the approval of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and in compliance with applicable laws.

Existing sharcholders shall be given priority to be offered with ordinary shares for sale in the
ratio corresponding to their ownership percentage of ordinary shares in the Company, except
where otherwise stipulated by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company must
provide a notice of the offer for sale of shares which specifies the number of shares to be
offered for sale and an appropriate period for subscription (at least twenty business days) o
that sharcholders may subscribe for purchase, The shares for which shareholders may not
subscribe to purchase shall be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board
of Directors may allocate such shares to entities in accordance with the conditions and the
manner which the Board of Directors thinks appropriate, but shall not be permitted to sell such
shares on conditions more favourable than those conditions offercd to the existing
sharcholders, except where otherwise agreed by the General Meeting of Shareholder or where
shares are sold via the Stock Exchanges.

The Company shall be permitied to purchase the shares it has issued (including redeemable
preference shares) in the manner stipulated in this Charter and the applicable laws. Ordinary
shares redeemed by the Company shall be treasury shares which may be offered for sale by
the Board of Directors in a manner complying with this Charter and, the Law on Securitics
and relevant guidelines.

The Company may issue other classes of securities after the General Meeting of Sharcholders
provides unanimous approval in writing in accordance with the laws on securities and the
securities market,

Article T: Share certificates

|

Shareholders of the Company shall be granted with share certificates corresponding to the
number of shares and the class of sharcs owned by them, except where stipulated in clause 7
of this Article, Share certificate could be issued under the form of book entry or electronic
data.

share certificates must bear the seal of the Company and signature of the legal representative
of the Company in accordance with the Law on Enterprise, A share certificate must specify
the number and class of shares held by the shareholder, the full name of the shareholder {in
the case of & named share certificate) and other information in accordance with the Law on
Enterprise. Each named share certificate shall represent only one class of shares.

A shareholder shall be issued with a share certificate within 30 days from the date of lodging

A complete application for share assignment in accordance with the regulations of the
Company or within a period of two months {or a longer period in accordance with the terms
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of the issue) from the date of full payment for the purchasing shares as stipulated in the Shares
Issuing Plan of the Company. A shareholder shall not be obliged to pay the cost of printing
the share certificale or any other costs to the Company.

) Where only a number of named shares in a named share certificate are transferred, the
old share certificate shall be rescinded and a new share certificate recording the remaining
. shares shall be issued pratis.
b)
Where a named share certificate is damaged, erased, lost, stolen or destroyed, the shareholder
may be granted with a new share certificate provided that hefshe presents proof of his'her
ownership of such shares and has paid all relevant costs to the Company.

Holders of bearer share certificates shall be responsible for managing their share certificates
and the Company shall not be liable in case where such share certificates are stolen or used

tor fraudulent purposes.

The Company shall be permitted to issue named shares which do not take the form of
certificates, The Board of Directors may issue documents allowing named shares (whether or
not such shares take the form of certificates) to be assigned and a document on the assignment
of such shares shall not necessarily be required. The Board of Directors may issue regulations
on share ceriificates and transfer of shares in accordance with the Law on Enterprise, the laws
on securities and the securitics market and this Charter.

Article 8: Other securities certificates

Bond certificates or other securities certificates of the Company (excluding offer letters, temporary
cerfificates and similar documents) shall be issued with the seal and specimen signature of the legal
representative of the Company, except otherwise stipulated by the terms and conditions of the issue.

Article 9 Assignment of shares

1.

All shares may be assigned freely except where this Charter and the Law on Enterprise, Law
on Securities stipulate otherwise. Shares listed on the Stock Exchange shall be assigned in
accordance with the laws on securities and the securities market,

Shares which have not yet been fully paid for shall neither be assigned nor be entitled to
related benefits like the right to receive dividends, shares issued in order to increase the share
capital from the owner's equity and the right to buy offered new shares.

Any foreign institution which satisfies the conditions prescribed in clause 2 Article 77 of the
Law on Securities and related people who hold up to 100% of the Charter capital of the
Company. Except for those who fail to satisfy the above-mentioned stipulations, foreign
institution and related people are only allowed to hold up to 49% of the Charter capital of the
Company.

Foreign investor being an individual or a related person is only permitted to own up to 49%
Charter capital of Company.

Transactions change the right of owned share or contributed capital that comprises more than
10% of the Charter capital; transactions lead to the reduction or increase of the ownership
percentage to 10%, 25%, 509, 75% of the Charter capital of the Company must be approved
by the SSC, except for cases where share of the Company being listed, registered for trading
at Stock Exchanges, and being assigned under court’s ruling.
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Article 10:  Forfeiture of shares (for the registration to establish a Company)

Whete a sharcholder fails to pay in full and on time the amount payable to purchase shares,
the Board of Directors shall notify and have the right to request such sharcholder to pay the
unpaid amount together with any interest calculated thereon, plus costs arising from sueh
failure to pay in full to the Company in accordance with regulations.

The above mentioned notice must specify the new time-limit for pavment (at least seven days
from the date on which the notice is sent) and place for payment, and state that on failure to
make payment as required then the number of shares which have not vet been fully paid for
ghall be forfeited,

IT the requirements stated in the above-mentioned notice are not satisfied, the Board of
Directors shall have the right to forfeit the relevant number of shares before all amounts
payable including interest and relevant costs are paid for in full. The Board of Directors may
accept the return of the forfeited shares in accordance with clauses 4, 5 and 6 of this Article
and in other cases as stipulated in this Charter,

Any forfeited shares shall be the assets of the Company, The Board of Directors may directly
sell or authorize to sell or re-distribule such shares to, or resolve them in favour of the
individuals who owned such forfeited shares or to other entities, on the conditions and in the
manner that the Board of Directors considers appropriate.

The sharcholders holding forfeited shares shall be required to waive their capacity as
sharcholders with respeet to such shares, but shall still be required to pay all relevant amounts
plus proportional interest (not exceeding 18% per year) at the time of forfeiture as decided by
the Board of Directors from the date of forfeiture up to the date of payment. The Board of
Directors shall have full power to make a decision on enforcement of paying the amounts
payable as at the time of forfeiture, or may make a decision on remission of part or all of such
amounts,

A forfeiture notice shall be sent 1o the holders of the shares which are to be forfeited prior to
the time of forfeiture. The forfeiture shall remain valid even if there is a mistake or
carelessness during the course of sending the notice.

CHAPTER V. SECURITIES BUSINESS

Article 11:  Securities trading principles

To comply with the Law on Securities and the securities market and other laws;

To comply with professional ethics;

To be honest and impartial in carrying out business activities;

To complete all obligations 1o clients in the best manner:

To ensure the human resources, capital and other material facilities necessary to carry out the
securities trading activities and to issue in writing appropriste rules for conducting business
operations;

Only to give appropriate advice to clients on the basis of best efforts to collect information
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1.

11.

12.

ahout the clients;

To be required to provide clients with information necessary to make their investment
decisions;

To be careful not to create conflicts of interests with clients, Where conflicts are unavoidable,
the Company must notify the elients in advance and/or take necessary measures o ensure the
equal treatment to the clients;

To separate on working offices, human resources, data system, reports between departments/
divisions to puarantee not having any conflicts of interest between the Company and its
customers, customers together. The Company has to announce in advance to customers about
future conficts of interest (if any) which may arise between the Company, professionals and
customers.

To assign securities professionals appropriated with business operation profession. The
securitics profiessionals who practice securities dealing cannol practice the sccurities
brokerage at the same time.

Price anticipation or trading recommendation involved in a specific securities on public
communication means have to specify the analysis and information citation source.

To issue and apply internal professional rules in compliance with the Law on Securities and
relevant laws.

Article 12:  Rights and obligations of the Company

L,

2,

Rights of the Company:

B To sipn written contracts with clients in respect of securities transactions, securities
registration and depository, securities underwriting, securities investment consultancy
and financial consultancy;

b. To collect fees at the rates and charges stipulated by the Ministry of Finance;

C. To give priority to employing local lzbour, to protect the rights and interests of

employees in accordance with the labour code and to respect the right to organize trade
unions in accordance with the law;

d. Other rights as stipulated in the Charter and the law.
Obligations of the Company:

g To set up internal control audit, risk management, and supervision and prevention of
conflicts of interest within the Company and in transactions with related persons.

b. To separate securities of each investor, and to separate securities and money of the
investors from its own,

& To sign written contracts with clients when providing services; to provide complete
and factual information to clients,

d. To give priority to the orders of clients over the orders of the Company.
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To colleet and analyse information of the clients' financial status, investment
objectives risk apprise; to ensure that investment recommendations and advice given
by the Company to clients is appropriate for such clients.

To comply with the regulations on disposable capital of the Ministry of Finance.
To purchase professional indemnity insurance for the securities trading activities of
the Company or to set up an investor protection fund in order to pay compensation to

investors in case of technical breakdowns or mistakes by the Company's staff.

To file all documents and accounts reflecting in detail and accurately all transactions
of clients and of the Company. :

T'o conduct the sale of, or to permit the client to sell securities which are not owned
by such client and to lend securities to a clients for sale in accordance with regulations
of the Ministry of Finance.

To comply with the regulations of the Ministry of Finance on sccurities trading
activities,

To implement the regimes on accounting, auditing, statistics and financial obligations
in accordance with the law.

To comply with regulations on information disclosure procedure and reporting
mechanism of the Ministry of Finance;

To comply with the provisions on corporate governance in accordance with Article 41
of the Law on Securities, '

To make contributions to the settlement assistance fund in accordance with the
Regulations on securities registration, depository, clearance and payment,

To provide credits to clients to purchase securities in accordance with the regulations
of the Ministry of Finance,

To clarify the duties among the General Mecting of Shareholders, the Board of
Directors, Chairman of Board of Directors, Inspection Committee so that its corporate
governance 15 in compliance with the law.

To set up the correspondence system with its sharcholders in order to provide them
with sufficient information and to provide them with fair treatment, and to ensure their
legal rights and benefits,

Mot to do the following behaviouors:

L Guarantee on income, profils for shareholders (except for shareholders with
fixed dividend preference shares);

i To illegally hold all benefits, income deriving from shares of its shareholders:

fii, To directly or indirectly provide fund or guarantee to its sharcholders; to
provide loan by any ways to its major shareholders; member of the Inspection
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Article 13:

Committee; member of Board of Directors; member of Management Team;
Chief Accountant; other management positions appointed by the Board of
Directors and their related persons;

V. To generate income for shareholders by buying shares through inappropriate
transaction which is not in accordance with the law;

V. To violate its sharcholders’ rights including owning right, choosing right, and
fair trading right, right to be provided with information, other legal rights and

benefits.
Register of shareholders:
. The Company must establish and maintain a register of shareholders from the

date of issuance of the license on establishment and operating,
i, Register of shareholders must have primary contents under Law on Enterprise.

iii.  The register of sharcholders may be in the form of a written document and an
electronic file.

Iv. The register of sharcholders shall be retained at the Head Office of the
Company.

V. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is responsible for confirming the
registration of share made by sharcholders timely and thoroughly; archiving
and ascertaining the accuracy of the register of shareholders; preventing
sharcholder or a third party from damage caused by breaching of these
mentioned responsibilities.

Restrictions

Restrictions applicable to the Company:

Bl

Not to undertake or guarantee its clients on income or profits deriving from their
investments, and not to guarantee that clients of loss free investments except for fixed
income mmvestments;

Mot to diselose information about clients without client's prior approval or pursuant to
a request by competent authority;

Not to take any acts which could result in misunderstanding by clients and investors
on prices of securities.

Mot to make agreement or offer specific interest rate or profits/losses sharing to
customers 1o entice customers to participate in the transaction;

Mot to directly or indirectly set up other trading locations to sign confracts, to receive
orders, execute securities transactions or sctile securities transactions with customers
except for the transaction locations which are registered with the 55C;

Naot to receive onders, conduct payment transactions for those who are not the account
hiolder without written authorization from such account holder;
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Mot to use client's name or account to register and trade securities;

Mot to talee on account for securities, cash or securities custody of the customer in the
form of the name of the Company;

Contract of opening securities irading account shall not have any provisions to
indemnify legal obligations of the Company; limit scope of Company's compensation
or transfer sk from Company to the customer; force customer to implement the
compensation obligation in an unfair way and detrimental agréements unfair to
customers.

Restrictions applicable to securities practitioners of the Company;

Not to work with any Company with an ownership relationship with the Securities
Company where such individual is currently working;

b, Not to work concurrently for another securities Company or fund management
Company,

e Not to act concurrently as Direetor or General Director of a listed Company or a public
Compary;

d. Only can open his/ her securities trading account at hisher Company;

e. When process the above transaction activities on customers account, the securities

practitioner is the representative of the Company and act on behalf of the Company,
Not allowed to use money or securities in client accounts without Company written
authority under such client's power of attorney.

Regulations for the Board of Directors, Head of the Inspection Committee, member of the
Management Team of the Company:

a. Members of the Board of Directors of the Company cannot concurrently be member
of the Board of Directors, General Director of other securities Company;

b. Head of the Inspection Committee cannot concurrently be a member of the Inspection
Committee or a manager of other securitics companics;

B Cieneral Director, Deputy General Director are not allowed to work for other securities

companies, fund management companies, or any company. General Dirvector is not
allowed to be a member of the Board of Directors, members' council of other securities

Company.

Article 14:  Provisions on intermal conirol

il

Rules on internal control must be made in writing and published within the Company.,
All employees of the Company must comply with the provisions on intemal control,

The Company shall check and complete the internal eontrol on periadical basis.

The department of internal control shall be responsible to ensure the compliance of internal
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control system and shall make a periodical report to the Board of Directors or to the General
Director of the Company in order to complete the measures for internal control.

Article 15:  Provisions on information confidentiality

1.

The Company shall be responsible 1o maintain confidentiality of information relating to
ownership of securities and money of its clients; the Company must reject the an inspection
or freczing of assets of a client, to grant a lien over such assets, to set aside a number of such
assels, or to hand over the assets of the client unless it is agreed by such client.

The provisions in clause 1 of this article shall not apply in the following circumstances:

a. an auditor conducting audit activities of the financial statements of the Company;

b. aclient of the Company wishes to get the information in relation to their own securities
and money;

e at the request of a competent authority as regulated by laws.

Article 16:  Principles of profession ethics

L.

The principles of professional ethics issued in writing by the Securities Business Association
must be publicly published in the Company. The Company must formulate internal rules of
the Company and provide more specific details of the contents of such principles of
professional ethics.

All employees of the Company must strictly comply with such principles.

The internal control department shall be responsible to supervise compliance of the principles
of professional ethics by leaders and employees of the Company.

Article 17:  Method of inereasing or reducing the Charter capital

. 3

An increase or decrease of the Charter capital of the Company must be implemented in
aecordance with law.

The Company may increase its Charter capital by a decision of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders and in compliance with the regulations of the State Securities Commission
when!

a. The Company wishes to extend its business operation; or

b. The current capital for securities business of the Company is reduced and the Company
fails 1o raise funds from external sources,

The Charter capital of the Company shall be increased in the following cases:
a. Issuing new shares to raise additional capital in accordance with law;
b. Converling issued bonds into shares;

C; Paying dividends by shares;
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d. The carrying forward of retained eamings in order to supplement to the Charter capital;

"3 Converting debt into contributed capital upon an agreement between the Company and
the creditor.

Reducing Charter capital of the Company shall be decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, provided that such reduction shall not violate the conditions on legal capital in
accordance with current regulations,

Article 18:  Offer of shares

L.

The Company shall be permitted to make a public offer of shares upon satisfaction of the
conditions for a public offering as stipulated in the Law on Securities:

The Company shall be required to register with the State Securities Commission in order to
carry out the share public ofTering;

Methods and procedures for a public offer of shares shall be carried out in accordance with
the regulations on public offers of securities stated in the Law on Securities,

CHAFTER VL. STRUCTURE OF ORGANIZATION, GOVERNACE AND CONTROL

Article 19 Struecture of organization, governance and control

‘The structure of management, governance and control of the Company shall comprise:

1.

2.

General Meeting of Shareholders;
Board of Directors;

Management Team:

Inspection Committee;

Internal Audit under the contral of Board of Directors.

CHAFPTER VIL SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 20:  Rights of shareholders

Shareholders are the owners of the Company and shall have the rights and ohligations
corresponding to the number and classes of shares owned by them. Shareholders shall only be
liable for debts and other property obligations of the Comipany within their capital contribution
to the Company. '

Ordinary shareholders shall have the following rights:

a. To attend and give the opinion at the General Meeting of Shareholders and to exercise
the right to vote directly or via an authorized representative or by other means
stipulated in Article 24. Sharcholders can authorize a member of the Board of
Directors to be histher representative at the General Meeting of Shareholders,
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b. Ta receive dividends as decided by the General Meeting of Shareholder;

E. To freely assign, in accordance with this Charter and current law, their fully paid up
shares, except for cases stipulated in Article 120 Clause 3, Article 127 Clanse ] of the
Law on Enterprises and other relevant regulations

e, To have the right of first refusal for new shares issued by the Company in proportion
1o the number of ordinary shares each shareholder holds in the Company;

e. To peruse, look up, make an extract or copy, inspect information relating to the
sharcholders included in the list of shareholders who are qualified to vote the General
Meeting of Shareholders, and to request amendment of incorrect information of
themselves;

f. To peruse, look up, male an extract or copy of the Company's Charler, Minutes of
meeting and Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

£, To receive the remainder of the assets of the Company in proportion to the shares
contributed the capital of the Company after the Company have settled the debt
{comprising the oblipation towards the government, tax and fee) and the payment for
sharchalders owning other type of share, upon its dissolution or bankruptcy.

h. To request the Company to redeem shares as stipulated in Article 132 of the Law on
Enterprises;

i. Other rights stipulated in the Charter and the laws.

A shareholder or a group of sharcholders holding more than 10% of the total ordinary shares
shall have the right to nominate candidates to the Board of Directors and the Inspection
Committee in accordance with Article 33.2 and Article 52.2 respectively.

A shareholder or a group of shareholders holding more than 10% to less than 20% of the total
number of shares with voting rights can nominate one (01) candidate; from 2025 to less than
%% shall be entitled to nominate up to two (02) candidntes; from 30% to less than 40% shall
be entitled to appoint up to three (03) candidates; from 40% to less than 50% shall be entitled
to appoint up to four (04) candidates; from 50% to less than 60% shall be entitled to appoint
up to five (05) candidates; from 60% (o less than 70% shall be entitled to appoint up to six
(06) candidates; fiom 70% to less than 80% shall be entitled to appoint up to seven (07}
candidates and from B0% to less tham 90% shall be entitled to appoint up to eight (08)
candidates.

A shareholder or a group of sharcholders holding maore than (5% of the total ordinary shares
shall have the following rights:

8. To request for the convening of a General Meeting of Shareholders when:

L, The Board of Directors severely violates the right of shareholders, the liability
of manager or making decision over its extent of authority;

i The term of the Board of Directors excesds six (06) months meanwhile new
Board of Directors has not yet been re-clected.
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B.

The request must be made in writing and must contain the full name, address,
nationality, legal document code in respect of a shareholder being an individual: name,
enterprise identification number or organization legal document code, head office
address in respect of a shareholder being an organization; number of shares and date
of registration of shares of each sharcholder, total number of shares of the group of
sharcholders and the percentage of ownership in the total number of shares of the
Company; and grounds and reasons for the request to convene a meeting of the
(enecral Meeting of Shareholders. The request must be attached with documents and
evidence of the breaches of the Board of Directors and the seriousness of such
breaches, or on the decision that falls outside its authority.

To peruse, look up and excerpt minutes of the meeting and the resolutions of the Board
of Directors, the interim financial statements and annual reports of the Inspection
Committee and request the Inspection Committee to examine each specific issue
related to the management and operation control of the Company when deemed
necessary (except for documents related to commercial and business confidentiality of
the Company).

To request the Inspection Committee to inspect each particular issue relating to the
management and administration of the operation of the Company when necessary,
This request must be in writing, must contain the full name, permanent address,
nationality, number of people’s identity card, passport or other lawful personal
identification of a shareholder being an individual; or the name, permanent address,
nationality, number of the decision on establishment or number of business
registration, license of establishment and operation of a shareholder being an
organization; the number of shares and time of registration of shares of each
shareholder, total number of shares of the group of shareholders and the percentage of
ownership of the total number of shares of the Company; and issues to be inspected
and purpose of the Inspection Committes;

Tao be treated evenly. Every share of the same type will provide a shareholder with the
same rights, responsibilities and benefits. In case the Company has preference shares,
the rights and responsibilities for the preference shares shall be approved by the
General Mecting of Sharehalders and fully published towards the shareholders;

T'o be entitled to scoess periodic and extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
information published by the Company pursuant to the law;

To have their rights and lawful benefits protected; request to suspend, abandon
resclution, decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors
pursuant to the Law on Enterprises;

Other rights stipulated in the Charter.

Rights to file lawsuits against the Board of Directors, General Director of a sharcholder or a
group of shareholder holding at least 01% of the total ordinary shares:

a,

A shareholder or group of sharcholders that holds at least 1% of the total cedinary
shares may, in their own names or in the Company’s name, file lawsuit against a
member of the Board of Members or the Director/General Director if the member or
Director/General Director to claim the interest or damages:
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i, Fails to fulfill the executive's duties prescribed in Article 165 of the Law on
Enterprises;

i, Fails to comply with or fully and punctually perform their rights and
obligations as prescribed by law, the Company's Charter, resolution or
decision of the Board of Directors,

iii. Abuses histher power and position or uses the enmterprise’s information,
secrets, business opportunities and assets for personal gain or serve any other
organization’s or individual®s inferests;

iv. Oither cases preseribed by law and the Company's Charter,
b. ' Lawsuits shall be filed in accordance with civil proceedings laws. Proceedings costs in
case the lawsuit is filed on behalf of the Company shall be recorded as the Company’s
expense unless the lawsuit is rejected,

¢. The sharcholder or group of shareholders mentioned in this Article is entitled to access
and extract necessary information under decision of the court or arbitral tribunal before or
during the proceedings.

Article 21:  Obligations of Shareholders

To comply with the Charter and internal statues on management the Company; to observe
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors;

To pay in full and in time for their registered shares; be liable for the debts and other property
obligations of the Company to the extent of the amount of capital contributed to the Company,
Mot to withdraw the ordinary share capital contributed from the Company in any form, excepl
where shares are redeemed by the Company or other persons under law, Where a shareholder
withdraws a part or all of the share capital contributed not in accordance with this clansc, such
shareholder and any person with related interests in the Company must be jointly liable for
debts and other property obligations of the Company to the extent of the value of shares
withdrawn and any loss occurring,

To provide the correct address to the Company for their shaves subscription;
To perform other obligations in accordance with current law;

To be personally liable when he or she performs one of the following acts in any form in the
name of the Company:

a. Breach the law;

b.  Conduct business and transactions for his'her personal benefit or for the benefit of
other institutions or individuals;

g, Pay undue debls prior 1o a time when the Company has to deal with a potential or
possible fnancial sk,

Protect the confidentiality of information provided by the Company in accordance with the
Company's Charter and the law; only use the provided information to perform and protect
their lawful rights and interests; do not spread or share information provided by the Company
te goy other organization or individual.
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Artiele 22:  General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest competent authority of the Company, The
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must hold once a year within a time-limit of four
i04) months from the end of a fiscal year. In case that the mecting cannot be hold on the above
mentioned time, Company shall report to the State Securitics Commitiee and organize a
General Meeting of Sharcholders within the next two (02) months. An Extraordinary General
Mecting of Shareholders may be hold as provided in Charter and Law on Enterprise. The
meeting location is where the meeting chairman attends the meeting and shall be within the
territory of Vietnam.

The Board of Directors shall convene the annual General Meeting of Shareholders and shall
choose an appropriate place, The annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall make
decisions on 1ssues in accordance with law and the Charter, and in particular shall approve the
audited annual financial statements and the financial budget for the next fiscal yvear,

The members of the Board of Directors and member of the Inspection Commintee have 1o
attend the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders to answer the guestions of sharelholders
participating in the meeting {if any); in force majeure situations, members of the Board of
Directors and member of the Inspection Commitiee have o report to the Board of Directors
and the Inspection Committee in writing.

In case the audited annval financial statements of the Company consst of important
excephions, adverse opinions or rejections, the Company have to invite representative of awdit
organization approved to audit Company’s financial statements to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, and the above-mentioned representative is obliged to attend the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to explain relevant contents.

The Beard of Directors shall convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in
the following cases:

i, The meeting is necessary for the interesis of the Company;

b. When the number of members of the Board of Directors, independent members of the
Board of Directors, member of the Inspection Committee 1z less than the number
required by law or the number of members of Board of Directors decreased by more
than one-third {1/3) the number of members specified in this Charter;

c. A shareholder or a group of sharcholders as stipulated in Article 204 of this Charler
may request to convene a General Meeting of Sharcholders in writing. The written
request must clearly states full name, address, nationality, legal documents code for
individual sharcholders; name, enterprise identification number or legal documents
code of organizations, head office address for organization shareholders; number of
shares and time of share registralion of ecach sharcholder, total shares of all
shareholders group and the ownership percentape in the total shares of the Company,
the reason and purpose of the meeting and the evidence for such reason and purpose.
The written request must be signed by the relevant shareholders (the written request
may be made in multiple copies in order to facilitate the signatures of all relevant
shareholders);

d. Other cases as stipulated by law and the Charter.
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Article 23:

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders :

The Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders within a time
limit of thirty (30) days from the date when the remaining members of the Board of
Directors, independent members of the Board of Divectors is smaller than the number
stated at Article 33.1, member of the Inspection Committee are s stipulated in Article
52.4 or from the date of receipt of the request stated in point ¢ Article 22.3.

If the Board of Directors fails to convene a meeting of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as stipulated in point a Article 22.4, then within the following thirty (30)
days the Inspection Committee shall replace the Board of Directors in convening the
General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with clause 3 Article 140 of the Law
on Enterprises.

If the Inspection Committee fails to convene a meeting of the General Meeting of
Shareholders in accordance with point b Article 22.4, then within the following thirty
(30) days the requesting shareholder or group of sharcholders stipulated in point ¢
Article 22.3 shall have the right to replace the Board of Directors and the Inspection
Committee in convening the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with
clause 4 Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises,

In such case, the shareholder or the group of shareholders that convenes the General
Meeting of Shareholders may request the business registration authority to supervisc
the process, procedures to convene, conduct the meeting if necessary.

All expenses for convening and conducting a General Mecting of Shareholders shall
be reimbursed by the Company, Such expenses shall not include costs, including travel
and accommodation costs, incurred by the sharcholders when they attend the General
Meeting of Sharcholders.

Righis and duties of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1 The Greneral Meeting of Shareholders has the following rights and duties:

B,

Approve the Company's development orientation;

Drecide on the types of shares and the total number of shares of each type to be offered;
decide on the annual dividend rate for each type of share;

Elect, dismiss, and remove members of the Board of Directors, members of the
Inspection Committes;

Decide on investments in/purchasing or selling assets valued at 35% or more of the
total asset value recorded in the company's most recent financial report;

Drecide on amendments and supplements to the Company's Charter;
Approve annual financial statements;

Decide on repurchasing more than 10% of the total number of 1ssued shares of each
ype,

Review and address violations by members of the Board of Directors, members of the
[nspection Committee causing damage to the Company and its shareholders;

Decide on the reorganization or dissolution of the Company;
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1 Decide on the budget or total remuncration, bonuses, and other benefits for the Board
of Directors, Inspection Commitice;

|2 Approve Statues on Corporate Governance, the Statues on Board of Directors’
operating and the Statues on Inspection Committee’s operating;

l Approve the list of approved audit companies; decide on the approved mudit company
to conduct the Company's operational audits, and dismiss the approved auditor when
deemed necessary:

m. Other rights and duties as prescribed by law.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders discusses and approves the following matters:

8. Annual audited financial statements;

b. Reparts of the Inspection Committee on business activities of the Company, results of
the activities of the Board of Directors, General Directors;

&, Reports of the Inspection Committee on the resuli of sell-evaluation;

d. Reports of the Board of Directors and results of activities of the Board of Directors
and each members of the Board;

e. Annual business plans of the Company;

£ The dividend rate for each type of share;

a. Approval of the list of approved audit companies; decisions on the approved audit
company to conduct the Company's operations audit when deemed necessary;

b Appointment, dismissal and replacement of members of the Board of Directors and
members of the Inspection Committee;

i Total remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, the members of the
Inspection Committee and reports on remuneration of the Board of Directors,
Inspection Committee;

4 Amendments and additions to the Company's Charter;

k. Classes of shares and number of new shares to be issued for each class of shares and
the assignment of shares by founding members within the first three years of the date
of establishment:

L Division, separation, merger, consolidation or conversion of the Company;

m. Re-organization and dissolution (liquidation) of the Company and appoiniment of a
liquidator;

fh. To consider and deal with breaches by the Board of Management or the Inspection
Committee which cause damage to the company and its sharcholders;

o, Decisions on the investment in‘purchasing or selling of assets valued at 35% or more
of the total asset value recorded in the Company's most recent financial statement;

p. Redemption by the Company of 10% or more of any one class of issued sheres;
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Artiele 24:
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a
b.
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2
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The Company entering into contracts and transactions with parties stipulated in clause
1, Article 167 of the Enterprise Law, with a value equal to or grester than 35% of the
total asset value of the Company recorded in the most recent financial statement;

Approve transactions stipulated in Article 203 clause 4 Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP
dated 31 December 2020 of the Government detailing and guiding some articles of the
Law on Securities;

Approve the Statues on Corporate Governance, the Statues on Board of Directors®
operating and the Statues on Inspection Commitice’s operating;

The number of members of the Board of Directors, Inspection Committes;

Other matters as prescribed by law and this Charter.

A shareholder shall not be permitted to vote in the following cases:

Contracts stipulated in Point i clause 2 Anticle 23 of the Charter to which such
sharcholder or a related person of such sharcholder is a party;

Remove, diminish obligations of those shareholders to Company; to take initiative or
cancel a lawsuit to that shareholder,

Redeem shares of such shareholder or affiliated person of such shareholders, unless
the share redeem is performed eguivalent to the share ownership ratio of all
shareholders or the redeem is performed via matching orders on Stock Exchanges or
performed via tender offer in accordunce with laws,

All resolutions and issues included in the agenda must be conferred and voted at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Authoerizing to join the General Meeting of Sharcholders

Shareholders have the right to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders follow one of these
following formations:

Directly attend and vote at the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
Authorize another person to attend and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders;
Attend and vote through online conference, E-voting and other means of E-voting:

Send the Voting paper to the General meeting of Shareholders via letter, fax, email or
other means.

In case there are more than one authorized representatives, the number of shares and voles of
each representative should be specifically determined.

The authorization for a representative to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be
made in writing based on the form of the Company or pursuant to the civil regulations, thus
clearly provides (i) name of authorizing shareholder (i) name of authorized
individual/organization (iii) number of authorized shares (iv) authorization contents (v) scope
of authorization (vi) duration of authorization (vii) signature of authorized partied and
authorizing parties,

Regulations for the signature on the power of attorney are as follows:
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a. In case individual shareholder is the authorizer, there shall be signature of that
shareholder and the individual, legal representative of organization authorized to
attend the meeting; :

b. In case organization shareholder 15 the authorizer, the power of attorney shall include
the signature of the authorized representative, legal representative of organization
shareholder and individual, legal representative of organization authorized to attend
the meeting;

Other cases require the signature of legal representative of the shareholder and the
authorized person,

]

The petson authorized to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall provide a power
of attorney before the registration date. In case of re-authorization, the attendee shall provide
the original power of attorney of the shareholderfauthorized representative of orpanization
sharcholder (if have yet to register with the Company).

The voting paper of the authorized attendee in the scope of authorization remains effective in
the follewing cases:

i The autherizer is dead, has limited legal capacity or lost the capacity for civil acts;
b. The authorizer cancels the authorization;

C. The authorizer has rescinded the authority of the particular person carrying out the
authorization,

This clause shall not apply in a case where the Company receives a notice of one of the above
cases prior fo the time of opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders or prior to the time
the meeting 1s reconvened.

Article 25:  Change of rights

1.

The change or cancellation of any of the special right related to preferred shares shall come inlo
effect when such change or cancellation is approved by sharcholders holding at least 65% of
ordinary shares attending the General Meeting of Shareholders,

In casc voting is carried out in writing, the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
about the negative change in nghts and responsibilities of shareholders of preference shares can
only be passed if the sharcholders of the same preference shares who attend the meeting hold at
least 75% voting rights of the above-mentioned preference shares approve the Resolution,

The organization of such a meeting shall be valid only when at least two (2) shareholders {or their
authorized representatives) are present and each of them holds at least one-third (1/3) of the par
value of the issued shares of such class. Where the number of attendecs as required above is
insufficient, the meeting shall be recomvened within a period of thirty (30} days thereafter and the
holders of shares of such class (not depending on the number of holders and the number of shares)
who are present personally or via their authorized representatives shall be considered as the
sufficient number of attendees. At each separate meeting mentioned above, the holders of the
shares of such class who are present personally or via their authorized representatives may request
for a secret ballot and each holder or representative attending the secret ballot shall have one vote
corresponding to each of his owned shares of such class.
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The proceeding for conducting such separate meetings shall be implemented in accordance with
Article 27 and Article 28 of this Charter.

Except where otherwise stipulated by the provisions on issue of sheres, special rights attached to
various classes of shares with preference rights in respect of some or all issues on distribution of
profits or assets of the Company shall not be changed when the Company issues additional shares
of the same class.

Article 26:  Convening the Gemeral Meeting of Shareholders, agenda and notice of the
General Meeting of Shareholders

L.

The Board of Directors shall convene the General Meeting of Sharcholders, or the General
Meeting of Sharcholders shall be convened in the cases stipulated in Article 22.3 or Article
22.4.

The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall carry out the following duties:

a To prepare a list of shareholders qualified to attend and vote at the General Mccting
of Sharcholders. This list shall be made no earlier than ten {10) days prior to the date
on sending invitation for the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company must
make announcement about creating a list of sharcholders entitled to attend the General
Meeting of Shareholders at least twenty (20) days prior to the final registration date.

b. To prepare the agenda and the content of General Meeting of Shareholders;
&, To prepare documents for General Meeting of Shareholders;

d. To make the draft of Resolution for General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance
with the contents of Meeting;

c. To determine time and venue of General Meeting of Sharcholders;

f. To inform and send a notice of the meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders to
all shareholders entitled to attend the meeting;

£ Other assignments related to the Meeting,

The natice of the General Meeting of Sharcholders may be sent (o all shareholders and at the
same time shall be announced on the information network of Stock Exchange/Securities
Trading Centre, on the website of the Company. The notice of the General Meeting of
Shareholders must be sent at least twenty onc (21) days prior to the date of the meeting (such
period caleulated from the date the notice is validly sent or delivered, postage prepaid or
dropped in a post-box). The apenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders and all documents
relating to the issues to be voted at the meeting shall be sent to sharcholders or/and announced
on the website of the Company. In case that no such document is attached with the netice of
Cieneral Meeting of Shareholders, the notice must state clearly the website address 1o enable
shareholders to access, including;

a. Apenda, documents using in the Meeting;

b. List and curriculum vitae of candidates in case of voting to choose member(s) of the
Board of Directors, member(s) of Inspection Committee;
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c. Voting paper;
d, Drafl of Resolution for each item of the Agenda.

4. Proposal of shareholders or group of sharcholders about the agenda of the General Meeting
of Sharcholders:

a. A shareholder or a group of shareholders referred to in Article 20.3 of this Charter
shall have the right to propose issues to be included in the agenda of the General
Meeting of Shareholders, The proposal must be made in writing and must be sent to
the Company at least three (03) business days prior to the time of opening of the
General Meeting of Sharcholders. The proposal must contain full names of the
shareholders, residential address, nationality, 1D card or passport number, or any of
other legitimate document applicable to individual shareholders; name, enterprise
identification number or number of establishment decision; official address of head
office applicable 1o sharcholders being organization; the number and class of shares
held by them, and the items proposed to be included in the agenda.

b. Il The convener of the General Meeting of Sharcholders rejects any proposal
mentioned in point a of this Article, then the convener must response in writing and
clearly state the reason no later than two (02) working days belore the inaugural day
of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The convener of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders shall have the right to reject this proposal in the followinjz cases:

I. The proposal is not sent on time, has insufficient details, or contains irrelevant
matiers;

. Al the time of the proposal, the shareholder or group of shareholders does not
hold from 05% of the ordinary in accordance with Article 20.3 of this Charter;

ii1. The items proposed do not fall within the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders for discussion and approval;

iv, Other circumstances under regulation of this Charter in accordance with
current law,

c. The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders must approve and add the
proposal stated in point a of this Article to the estimated agenda and content of the
meeting, except for the cases in point b of the Article; the proposal is officially added
to the agenda and the content of the meeting if approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

3. In a case where all sharcholders representing 100% of the voting shares attend the General
Meeling of Sharcholders in person or via their authorized representatives, the resolutions
which are unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be deemed as
effective even if the General Meeting of Sharcholders is not conducted in accordance with the
proceeding, or the items voted on are not included in the agenda.

Article 27:  Conditions for conducting the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when the number of attending
shareholders represents for more than fifty (530) per cent of the voting shares.
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Where the number of attendees required is not satisfied within thirty (30) minutes from the
time set to open the meeting, the meeting may be convened for a second time within thirty
(30) days from the date of intended opening of the first General Meeting of Shareholders.
Such General Meeting of Sharcholders which is convened for a second time shall be
conducted only when the numbers of attending shareholders or their authorized
representatives represent at least thirty three (33) per cent of the voting shares.

Where the meeting of the General Meeting of Sharcholders convened for a second time cannot
lake place because the number of attendees required is not satisfied within thirty (30} minuies
from the time set to open the meeting, it may be convened for a third time within twenty (20}
days from the date of intended opening of the second General Meeting of Shareholders. In
such a case, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted irrespective of the
number of attending shareholders or their awthorized representatives, and shall be deemed
valid and shall have the right to make decisions on such issues as may have been approved at
the first General Meeting of Shareholders,

Article 28:  Procedures for conducting and voting at the General Meeting of shareholders

¥

2.

{n the date when the General Mecting of Shareholders is held, the Company must carry out
the procedures o register its sharcholders and such registration shall continue until all
shareholders entitled to attend the meeting who are present at the meeting have been fully
registered according to this procedure:

. When a shareholder is registered, the Company shall provide such sharcholder or
histher authorized representative with voting rights a voting card which stales the
registration number, full name of the shareholder, full name of the authorized
representative and the number of votes of such sharcholder. The voting is conducted
on the basis that those votes in favour of the resolution shall be collected first, then
those against the regolution shall be collected, and finally the total number of those
votes in favour of, against the resolution and abstentions shall be counted respectively
for a final decision. The results of vote counting shall be announced by the meeting
chairman immediately prior to the closing of the meeting. The General Meeting of
Shareholders shall elect those persons in charge of vote counting or vote supervision
on the proposal of the meeting chairman. The number of members of a scrutiny
committee shall be decided by General Meeting of Shareholders under the proposal of
the meeting chairman,

b. Shareholders or authorized person who come to the General Meeling of Shareholders
late shall be entitled to be immediately registered and shall have the right to
immediately attend and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The meeting
chairman shall not delay the meeting so that late attendees may register, and the
cffectivencss of any voting which has been conducted prior to attendance of late
sharcholders shall not be affected.

The election of meeting chairman, secretary and securily team;

a. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be chairman of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders or authorize another member of the Board of Directors to be the mecting
chairman. In a case Chairman of the Board of Directors is chairman of the General
Meeting of Shareholders but hefshe is absent or losses of ability to work temporarily,
the remaining members of the Board shall efect one of them to be the meeting
chairman under the majority basis, When none of such persons is able to preside over
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the meeting, the Head of the Inspection Committee shall organize a meeting to elect a
new meeting chairman among the attendees and the person with the highest vote shall
be appointed as the meeting chairman;

b. Except for the case in point a of this clause, the person who signs to convene the
General Mecting of Shareholders shall monitor the Meeting to clect a meeting
chairman and appoint the person will the highest vote as the meeting chairman;

c. The meeting chairman shall appoint one or more than one person as the meeting
secretary:

d. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall appoint one or more than one person to be
members of the voting committee according to the proposal of the meeting chairman.

Agenda and content of the Meeting must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
in the opening session, The agenda must clarifies the time for each item in the agenda.

Any decision of the meeting chairman on the order and proceeding or on events arising outside
the apenda of the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be the final decision.

The Chairman of the General Meeting of Sharcholders may adjourn a meeting, even if the
number atlendees as required 1s satisfied, to such other time and at such other location as
may be decided by the meeting chairman without obtaining opinions of the General Meeting
of Sharcholders if the meeting chairman considers that (a) the location of the General
Meeting of Shareholders does not provide convenient seating for all attendees, (b} there is
ant attendee who disrupts or iz likely to disrupt order at the meeting, or (c) such an
adjournment is necessary for the items of the General Meeting of Shareholders to be validly
carried out. In addition, the Chairman of the General Meeting of Shareholders may adjourn
a meeting upon unanimous agreement or at request by the General Meeting of Sharcholders
at which sufficient attendees as required are present. The maximum time for any
adjournment of a meeting shall be three (3 ) days as from the date of the proposed opening
of the meeting. The General Meeting of Shareholders which is reconvened shall only review
those items which should have been validly resolved at the adjourned meeting,

Where the chairman adjourmns or postpones a General Mecting of Sharcholders contrary to the
provisions in clause 3 of this Article, the General Meeting of Sharehalders shall elect another
person from the attendees to replace the meeting chairman in conducting the meeting until its
completion, and the effectiveness of voting conducted at such meeting shall not be affected.

The chairman General Meeting of Shareholders may conduct such activities as he/she thinks
fit in order to direct the General Meeting of Shareholders in a valid and orderly manner, in
accordance with the approved Agenda and so that it reflects the wishes of the majorily of
atlendees.

The convenor the General Meeting of Shareholders may require shareholders or their
authorized representatives attending the General Meeting of Shareholders to be checked or
subject to other lawful and justified securily measures, Where a sharcholder or hisher
authotized representative does not comply with the rules on checking or the scourity measures
as mentioned above, the Board of Directors, after careful consideration, may reject or expel
such shareholder or authonzed representative from the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The convenor of the General Meeting of Sharchelder, after caretul consideration, may take
such measures as it finds appropriate in order to:
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. Arrange the seat(s) at the official location of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
b, Ensure safety for the sttendees who are present at that location;

e Create favourable conditions for shareholders to attend (or continue to attend) the
CGreneral Meeting of Sharcholders,

The convenor shall have full power to change the above measures and fake all of such
measures 8 it is considered to be necessary. The measures taken may include the issue of
entry permits or use of other forms of selection.

In & case where the General Meeting of Shareholders takes the above measures, the Board of
Drirectors, when determining the location of the meeting, may:

A Announce that the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted at the location
as stated in the notice of the meeting where the meeting chairman shall be prescnt
{(*“the Official Location of the Meeting™);

h. Malke arrangements so that shareholders or their authorized representatives who fail
to attend the meeting in accordance with this Article or those who wish to attend the
meeting but at a location different from the Official Location of the Meeting may still
attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

[n a notice on holding the General Meeting of Shareholders, it is not required for the detailed
measures taken in accordance with this Article to be stated.

I this Charter {unless the context requires otherwise), each sharcholder shall be deemed as
attending the Meeting at the Official Location of the Meeting.

[n the case the Company utilizes modern technology to conduct the General Meeting of
Shareholders through online mectings, the Company is responsible for ensuring that
sharcholders can attend and vote wsing electronic voting or other electronic forms in
accordance with Article 144 of the Enterprise Law and clause 3 of Article 273 of Decree No.
| 55/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, by the Government detailing the implementation of
some articles of the Securities Law.

Article 29:  Passing resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

The following issues shall be passed by means of voting at the Ueneral Meeting of
Shareholders:

a. Development plans;
b. The passing of the annual financial statement;
) Festructure and dissolution of the Company.

Except for cases stated in clause 4, clause 5 and clanse 6 of this Article, the resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders about (he issues will be passed if more than 50% of the total
votes of the shareholders are votes of approval.
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Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders about the following issues will be passed
if more than 65% of the total votes of shareholders are votes of approval:

a. Change in the business line, sector and field:;

b. Adjustment and update on the Company’s Charter;

& Types of stock and the number of stock offering;

d. The merging, restructuring and dishandment of a Company;

e The project of investing, selling assets with the value worth of mare than 35% recorded
in the newest financial statement.

The voling te elect Members of the Board of Directors and member of the Inspection
Committee must be implemented by the method of comulative veling, wherehy cach
shareholder shall have as his total number of votes the total number of shares he/she owns
multiplied by the number of members to be elected to the Board of Directors or the Inspection
Committee, and each shareholder shall have the right to accumulate all his votes for one or
more candidates, The ones elected to be members of the Board of Directors or member of the
Inspection Committee are determined upon the largest number of votes to the smallest number
of votes, starting with the leading candidate until the number of members meets the
requirement in the Company’s Charter. In case two (02) or more candidates for the final
position in the Board of Directors or the Inspection Committes have the same number of votes,
the voting session shall start over among the above-mentioned candidates or the candidates
will be chosen according to the criteria in the voting policy or the Company s Charter,

In case the resolution is passed by means of writing, then the resolution of the General Meeting
of Sharcholders will be passed if approved by the number of shareholders owning more than
3% of the total votes,

The resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders that negatively change the rights and
obligations of the shareholders who own preference shares will only be passed if approved by
the same type of preference shareholders who attend the meeting and own 75% or more of the
total preference shares or approved by the same type of preference sharcholders who own
75% and more of the total preference shares in case the passing of resolutions is conduct in
writing.

Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders take effect from the date of its adoption
or the effective date is apecified in the resolution. In case a resolution passed by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders is abandoned according to Article 131 of the Law on Enterprises by
the members of the Board of Directors, member of the Inspection Commitiee, General
Diirector, sharcholders, groups of sharcholder under Article 20.3, then the resolution remains
enforceable until the Court or Arbitralor has other decisions, except for any injunctive relief
to be applied in accordance with the decision of competent agency.

Any resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders which is passed by 100% of the total
voting shares shall be lawful and effective even when the sequence and procedures for passing
such resolution are not implemented correctly in accordance with regulations,

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be published on the website of the
Company within ffteen (15) calendar days from the date of approval thereof,
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140 All resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders can be passed by the following

methods:

a Voting at the meeting;

b. Collecting opinions by means of writing (except for the method mentioned in Article
29.1).

Article 30:  Procedure, order of the General Meeting of Sharcholders to pass the resolution
A, Voling at the meeling.

Processing in accordance with the procedure, order stipulated in Article 26, 27, 28 of this
Charter.

B. Collecting writlen opinions.

1. The Board of Directors shall have the right to collect written opinions of shareholders in order
to pass aresolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders at any time i considered necessary
in the interests of the Company,

2. Collecting written opinions via traditional way:

a, The Board of Directors must prepare written opinion forms, a draft of the resolution
of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and other documents explaining the draft
resolution, The written opinion form together with the draft resolution and documents
explaining it must be sent by a means, which is guaranteed to reach the permanent
address of each sharcholder. The Board of Directors must guarantee to send, announce
documents to all shareholders within a reasonable time for consideration and vote, and
must send them at least ten (10) days prior to the expiry of collection of the wrilten
opinion forms. Request and method of sending the written opinion forms and the
attachment shall be performed under the Article 26.3 of this Charter.

b. The written opinion form must contain the following basic particulars:
I MName, Head Office address, enterprise identification number;
I Purpose of collecting written opinions;

i, Full name, address, nationality, legal document code {individual shareholder,
individual representative of orpanization sharcholder), name, enterprise
identification number or legal document code, head office address
{organizalion sharcholder); number of shares of each class and number of votes

of the shareholder;
iv.  lssue on which it is necessary to obtain opinions in order to pass a resolution;
v, Voting oplions comprising agreement, non-agreement, or abstention for every

single item of the discussion;

i, Time limit within which the completed written opinion form must be retumed
to the Company;
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vii.  Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board at‘n:l of the legal
representative aof the Company.

Any completed written opinion form must bear the signature of a sharcholder being an
individual, or of the authorized representative of shareholders being an organization
or individual, of the legal representative of a shareholder being an organization,

Written opinion forms could be returned to the Company via postal mail: The written
opinion forms which are returned to the Company must be in a sealed envelope and no
one is permitted to apen the envelope prior to counting of votes. Any completed
wrilten form which is returned to the Company after the expiry of the time-limit
stipulated in the written opinion form, or any form which has been opened, shall he
invalid. Any of the written opinion forms not being returned to the Company shall be
considered that theirs (1ts) owners refuse(s) to attend the vole,

The Board of Directors shall conduct counting of votes and shall prepare minutes of
vole counting in the presence of the Inspection Committee or of any shareholder who
is a non-executive officer of the Company. The minutes of vote counting shall contain
the following basic particulars:

i. Mame, head office address, enterprise identification mumber;

ii. Purpose of collection of written opinions and issues on which it is necessary to
obtain written opinions in order to pass a resolution;

iii.  Number of sharcholders with total numbers of voles who have participated in
the voting, classifying the votes into valid and invalid, method of sending the
written opinion forms, and including an appendix being a list of the
shareholders who participated in the voting;

iv. Total number of votes for, against and abstentions on each matter voted upon;
V. Resolutions which have been passed;

vi.  Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board, of the legal
representative of the Company, of the scrutineer(s) and of the person who
supervised the vole counting,

The Members of the Board, the scrutineen(s) and the person who supervised the vote
counting shall be jointly liable for the truthfulness and aceuracy of the minutes of vote
counting, and shall be jointly liable for any loss arising from a resolution which is
passed due Lo an untruthful or inaccurate vote counting.

Minutes of vote counting must be announced on the Company website within twenty-
four (24) hours or sent to the shareholders within a time limit of fifteen (13} days as
from the date the vote counting ended.

Written opinion forms which were returned, the minutes of vote counting, the full text
of the resolution which was passed and related documents sent with all of the written
opinion forms must be archived at the Head Office of the Company.

A resolution which is passed by way of collecting written opinions of shareholders
must be approved by shareholders representing more than 50% of the total shares with
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voting rights and shall have the same validity as & resolution passed by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 31:  Minuates of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

Minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall either be recorded or stored by other
electronic methods, The minutes shall be written in Vietnamese, and can also be writlen in
other languages and shall consist of the following contents:

a. Name, head office address, enterprise identification number;

b, Time and location of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

c, Agenda and content of the meeting;
d. Full name of the meeting chairman and secretary;
CH Summary of the meeting and opinions at the General Meeting of Shareholders on each

1ssue in the content of the meeting agenda;

f The number of shareholder and total voles of shareholders participating, appendix of
list of sharcholder registration, shareholder representatives with the equivalent number
of shares and votes;

g Total votes for cach issue, clearly stating voting methods, number of appropriate and
mappropriate votes, approval and disapproval voles and non-commenting vote;
equivalent percentage on total number of votes of sharcholders participating;

h. Approved issues and the percentage of equivalent passed votes;
L Full name and signature of the meeting chairman and secretary.

In case the meeting chairman and secretary refuse to sign in the minutes, then this minutes
shall be effective if all other members of the Board of Directors participating sign and provide
all contents mentioned in this clause. The minutes of the meeting clearly states that the
meeting chairman and secretary refuse to sign,

The minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders shail be finished and passed before the
end of the meeting, The meeting chairman and secretary shall bear all responsibilities related
to the honesty and accuracy of the content of minutes.

The minutes of the General Mecting of Shareholders shall be considered & bona fide record
of the whole proceeding of the General Meeting of Shareholders unless an opinion against the
contents of the minutes is made in accordance with the stipulated procedures within a time-
limit of ten {10} days from the date the minutes were sent.

The minutes must be prepared in Vietnamese and English, and have the same legal effect. In
case the content of the Vietnamese minutes is different from the English one, the content in
the Vietnamese version shall be applicable,

The meeting minutes of General Meeting of Shareholders, list of shareholders attending the
meeting with the signatures of the shareholders, the power of attorney on suthorization of
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attending the meeting and the relevant documents must be archived at the head office of the
Company.

Article 32:  Request for cancellation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

Members of Board of Directors, member of the Inspection Committee, General [hreclor,
sharcholder(s) prescribed in Article 20.3 of this Charter shall have the right to require a court or an
arbitrator to consider and cancel a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders within ninety
(90)) days from the date of receipt of minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders or minutes of
the results of counting of votes being published on the website of the Company, in the following
cascs:

1. The order and procedures for convening a meeting or collecting written opinions of
shareholders to pass the resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders do not comply
with Law on Enterprises and this Charter, except for the circumstance prescribed in Article
29.6 of this Charter;

2. The content of the resolution breach the laws or this Charter.

Where the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders is cancelled by decision of the court or
arbitrator, the convener of the meeting the General Meeting of Sharcholders subject to such
cancellation may consider and re-organize the General Meeting of Sharcholders within thinty (30)
days in accordance with the order, procedures stipulated in the Enterprise Law and this Charter.

CHAPTER VILL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 33:  Composition and term of office of members of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall have five (05) members. The term of office of the Board of
Directors shall not be more than three {03} years. The term of a member of the Board shall
not exceed three (03) years and may be re-elected for an unlimited number of terms.

The total number of members of the Board who are non-operational must be at least one-third
of the total number of the members of the Board. Minimum number of non-operational
members of the Board is determined by the method of rounding down.

The total number of indeperdent members of the Board: 011 person working no more than twa
(02) conseculive lerms.

The total number of members of the Board of Directors who ave residents in Vietnam must
be at least: 01 person.

2. A sharcholder or a group of shareholders holding from 10% of the total ordinary shares have
the right to nominate candidetes to the Board of Directors as stated at Article 20,3, The specific
number of the candidates is shown in Article 20,3, The nominating process is as follows:

a. Shareholders forming into groups for the purpese of nominating must mform
shareholders who atiend the meeting about the group meeting before the epening of
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

h. In case the number of nominated candidates is smaller than the number of candidates

that they are entitled to nominate pursuant to the resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the rest of the candidates shall be nominated by the Board of Directors,
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the Inspection Committee and other shareholders.

In case the candidates are identified, the information of candidates for the member of the
Board of Directors must be illustrated in documents for the meeting and disclosed on the
Company’s website at least ten (10) days before convening the General Meeting of
Shareholders for the shareholders to study before the voting, The candidates for members of
Board of Directors must have commitment in writing about the honesty, accuracy and
justification of the information which they informed and must commit to honestly perform
the duty of member of Board of Directors if they are elected. Information disclosure of the
candidates comprises should at least comprise the following contents:

a. Full name, date of birth:
b. Education;

c. Qualification;

d. Work Experience;

e Name of the Company on which the candidate(s) is {(ar¢) member of the Board of
Directors or an executive officer;

f Assessment on contribution to other Company where the candidate is member of
Board of Directors (if any):

g The interest related to the Company (if any);
h. Wame al shareholden{s) nominating such candidate;
i, Other information (if any).

Employee(s) of an audit Company that have been suditing the Company within three ((3)
years must not be nominated to the Board of Directors,

Where the number of candidates is stll insufficient after candidates have been nominated by
the Board of Directors, the incumbent Board of Directors may nominate additional candidates
or hold a nomination in accordance with rules stipulated by the Company. The rules for
nomination or the manner used by the incumbent Board of Directors to nominate candidates
to the Board of Directors must be clearly announced and must obtain an approval from the
General Meeting of Shareholders before the nomination is held.

The term of office of member elected to replace a member who lost the membership, being
discharged or removed, is to the end of the term of office of the other members.

A member of the Board shall lose hisher membership capability in the following cases:

a Such member is no longer qualified to be a member of the Board under Article 36 of
this Charter;

b. Such member sends & written application for resignation to the Head Office of the
Company;
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10,

11.

. Such member 15 absent from meetings of the Board of Directors for o consecutive
period of six (6) months , except for event of force majeure;

d. Under the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders,

€. Such member has psychiatric disorder and other member of the Board of Directors has
the evidence to prove his'her lack of capability;

f. Such member had provided incorrect personal information for the Company when
he/she was a candidale for member of the Board of Directors;

g. Other circumstances under the regulation of laws and this Charter.

The Board of Directors may appoint a new member to the Board in order to Gl the vacancy
arising, and the new member must obiain an approval at the next meeting of the General
Meeting of Shareholders. Upon such approval, the appointment of the new member shall be
deemed effective on the date of appointment by the Board of Directors. The term of the new
member of the Board is calculated from the effective date of such appointment (o the end of
the term of office of the Board of Directors. In case a new member is not approved by the
General Meeting of Sharcholders, all decisions made by the Board of Directors belore the
meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders with participation in voting by such
altemnative member of the Board remain deemed valid.

The appointment of members of the Board must be announced in accordance with the laws
on securities and securities market.

Members of the Board need not necessarily be sharcholders of the Company.
In the event that all members of the Board of Directors conclude their terms simultancously,

those members shall continue to serve as members of the Board of Directors until new
members are elected to replace and iake over their duties.

Article 34;  Powers and duties of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the managing body of the Company, with full power to act on behalf of
the Company (o determine the rights and obligations of the Company which are not under the
authotity of the General Meeting of Shareholders, For avoidance of doubt, any matters not
specifically reserved for the exclusive decision making power of the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be reserved for the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall take legal
responsibility towards sharcholders about the operation of the Company to comply with the laws,
this Charter and internal regulations of the Company, equal treatment for all shareholders and
respect for the interests of persons who have interests related to the Company.

The Board of Directors might authorize the Chairman of the Board of Directors to exercise s
partial authorily and function within the time the General Meeting of Sharcholders not be
convened. The scope of authorization must be clearly delined. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors shall not be authorized to handle matters conceming the crucial interest the Company.

The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors shall be as stipulated by laws, the Charter,

the internal rules of the Company, Specifically, the Board of Divectors shall have the following
powers and duties:
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h.

£,

To make decisions on strategies, medium term development plans, business plans and
the annual budget;

To determine the operational objectives on the basis of the strategic objectives
approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

To appoint, dismiss and remove Chairman; appoint and discharge, sign and terminate
labour contract with managers of the Company upon request of the General Director;
and to make decisions on their salaries and other benefits;

To appoint, dismiss or remove, the General Director, managerial poesitions or the
representative of the Company where the Board of Directors believes that such action
is taken in the best interests of the Company. Such removal shall not be contrary to
the contractual rights (if any) of the person subject to such removal;

To make decisions on the organization structure of the Company, the
establishment/dissolution of subsidiary, of branch, of representative office; and the
purchase of contribution or shares of other enterprises;

To deal with complaints made by the Company against managers and Lo make
decisions on selection of a representative of the Company to deal with legal procedural
Issues against such managers,

To inspect and monitor the General Direetor and other managers in managing business
operations of the Company;

To propose classes of shares which may be issued and the total number of shares of
each class to be izsued;

To make decision of all matters in relation to bond issuance, bonds convertible into
shares and securities rights which allow its owner to be entitled to purchase shares at
a pre-determined price;

To determine prices at which bonds, shares will be offered for sale in case of being
authorized by General Meeting of Sharcholders;

To propose annual dividend rates and to fix temporary dividend rates; to organize
payment of dividends;

To propose the restructuring or dissolution, request for liquidation of the Company;

To pass on programs, documents content for the General Meeting of Shareholders, o
convene a General Meeting of Shareholders or collect opinions and comments in order
that the General Meeting of Sharcholders can pass a resolution;

To develop and propose the promulgation the Statue on Corporate Governance,
Statues on Board of Directors” operating to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
approval and make sure these repulations are published on the website of the
Company;

To develop and promulgate the Regulations on information disclosure, Regulations on
E-voting, Regulations on holding online conference;
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p. To submit the annual audited financial statement, the report on activities of the Board
of Directors, report on Corporate Governance to General Meeting of Shareholders.
The report on activities of the Board of Directors has to be in compliance with the
gtipulations in Decree 155/2020/ND-CP;

q. To report to General Meeting of Shareholders on the appointment of General Director
by the Board of Directors;

r. Appoint the Corperate manager;

S, Monitor to organize and provide training courses on corporate governance and
essential skills for members of the Board of Directors, General Director and other
managers of the Company,

The following issues must be approved by the Board of Directors:
B. Establishment of branches or representative offices of the Company;
b. Establishment of subsidiaries of the Company;

c. The Board of Directors may from time to time make decisions on the performance,
amendment or rescission of major contracts of the Company (including contracts for
purchase, sale, merger and takeover of companies and joint venture contracts) to the
extent of Article 153.2 of the Law on Enterprise, except for the cases stipulated in
Article 167.3 of the Law on Enterprise which must be approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

d. Appointment and removal of any person authorized by the Company to act as a
commercial representative or lawyer of the Company;

B Borrowings and provision of mortpages, warranties, puarantees and payment of
compensation by the Company;
f, Investments exeeeding 10% of the total asset value recorded in the Companys most

recent financial statement;

[ Decide on re-purchase no more than 10% of tofal sold shares; decide on purchase
stratepy, dividing treasury stock in accordance with provision of law;

h. Approve Purchase; Selling; Loan; Credit Contract and other transactions and contracts
that value from 35% of the total assets stated in the latest financial report of the
Company, except for contracts, transactions under the power of the General Meeting
of Shareholders stipulated in Article 138 clause 2 point d, Article 167 clause 1 and
clause 3 of the Law on Enterprises;

i Purchase or sale of shares of other companies established in Vietnam or overseas;

J- Valuation of non-monetary assets contributed to the Company relating to the issuance
of shares or bonds by the Company, including gold, land use rights, intellectual
property rights, technology and technological know-how;

k. Purchase or recovery by the Company of no more than ten (10) per cent of shares of
each class being offered within twelve (12) months;
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12,

L. Business issues or transactions which the Board of Directors decides to be subject o
its approval within the scope of its powers and responsibilities;

. Decision on buying or recovery price of shaves of the Company;

f. Inifially approve the appointment, dismissal of positions in the Company according to
the current regulation and the Charter.

The Board of Directors must report to the General Meeting of Shareholders its activities,
notably on its supervision over the General Director and other managers in a fiscal year. If the
Board of Directors fails to submit such report to the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
annual financial statements of the Company shall be deemed invalid and not to have been
approved by the Board of Directors.

In cage the approved resolution of the Board of Directors against the law and the Charter,
shareholders who consecutively own the Company’s shares at least one (01) year have right
to request the Board of Directors to suspend the execution of such resolution.

The Board of Directors shall exercise its ripht and obligation in accordance with the law, the
Charter, and the decision of General Meeting of Sharcholders.

Except where the law and the Charter stipulate otherwise, the Board of Directors may
authorize its inferior staff or a manager to process its work on behalf of the Company. Content
of the authorization must be made clear and specific.,

Members of the Board (excluding authorized representatives as altenates) may be entitled to
remuncration for their works in their capacity as members of the Board, The total
remuneration amount for the Board of Directors shall be determined by the General Meeling
of Shareholders, The amount shall be distributed to members of the Board as agreed by the
Board or equally if no such agreement is reached.

Any member of the Board who holds an executive position (including positions as Chairman
of Vice Chairman) or who works on a sub-committee of the Board of Directors or who
performs other works which is, in the opinion of the Board, beyond the scope of the normal
duties of a member of the Board may be paid extra remuneration in the forms of lump sum
payment each time, or salary, commission, profit percentage or otherwise as decided by the
Board of Directors.

Members of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to reimbursement for all expenses for
travel, accommodation, meals and other rcasonable expenses they have to pay when
performing their tasks as a member of the Board, including all expenses relating from their

travel for a participation of meetings of the Board of Dircetors or its sub-committees, or of

the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Duties of members of the Board of Directors:

. To perform the tasks as assigned and powers as conferred in accordance with the
provisions of the Law on Enterprise, the Law on Sccuritics, the relevant laws, the
Charter and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b. To perform the tasks as assigned and powers as conferred in an honest and dilipent
manner o ensure maximum legal interests of the Company and its sharcholders:
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g To be loyal to the interests of the Company and its shareholders: not to use
information, know-how, business opportunities of the Company, not to abuse their
positions and the Company's asscts for personal benefits or for the benefit interests of
other organizations and individuals;

d. To fully attend meetings of the Board of Directors and have clear opinions o issues
discussed at meetings;

e, To report to the Board of Directors at the latest meeting about the transactions between
the Company, subsidiary Company, Company controlled by public Company which
takes over more than 50% Charter capital and the members of the Board of Directors
and related people; transactions between companies in which a member of the Beard
of Directors is the founding member or enterprize manager within three (03) vears
prior to the transaction time. Such notice is displayed at the Head Ofhee and branches
of the Company;

£ To report prompily, fully to the Board of Directors about the salaries received from
subsidiary Company, associated Company and other organizations;

E To publish information about stock exchange of the Company pursuant to the law;

h. Members of the Board of Directors may not receive any increase of salary, any bonus
when the Company fails to fully pay its debts when due;

L Members of the independent Board of Directors shall create a report on the activitics
of the Board of the Directors:

j- Conduet responsibilities of the Corporate manager pursuant to Article 165 of the Law
on Enterprizes;

k. Other duties as prescribed by law and this Charter.

Article 35: Chairman of the Board of Directors

.

The Board of Directors must elect among its members 8 Chainman.

The Board of Directors may elect among remaining members to appoint a Vice Chairman to
assist Chairman.

In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors is not present or not able to perform his tasks,
he/she shall authorize another member in writing to perform the rights and obligations of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Company's Charter. In case no
member is authorized or the Chairman is dead, migsing, detained, serving an imprisonment
sentence, serving an administrative penally in a correctional institution or rehabilitation
center, making a petaway; has limited legal capacity or is incapacitated, has difficulty
controlling his'her behaviour, is prohibited by the court from holding certain positions or
doing certain works, one of the Board of Directors shall convene a meeting with the remaining
members to elect one of them as the interim Chairman under the majority rule until o0 new
decigion is issued by the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board must ensure that the Board of Directors sends annual financial

statements, reports on the operation of the Company, audit reports and the Inspection
Committes reports of the Board of Directors to shareholders at the General Meeting of
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Sharcholders,

Where both the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors resign or are remaoved,
the Board of Directors must elect persons to replace them within a period of ten {10) days.

The Chairman of the Board has the following powers and duties:

i,

b.

To prepare working plans and programs of the Board,

To prepare, or organize the preparation of agenda, content and documents for meetings
of the Board; convene and preside over meetings of the Board;

To organize for resolutions of the Board to be passed;

To monitor the implementation of resolutions of the Board;

Ta chair meetings of the General Meetings of Sharcholders, to sign on behalf of the
Greneral Meeting of Sharcholders in resolutions as approved by the General Meeting
of Sharcholders;

To lead and ensure the effective operation of the Board;

To develop, implement and review procedures that govern the operation of the Board;
To schedule meetings of the Board of Directors and departments under the Board of
Directlors;

To prepare agendas for meetings of the Board of Directors;

To meet regularly with the General Manager and act as liaison between the Board of
[hirectors and the Management Team;

To ensure sufficient, prompt, accurate and specific information to be communicated
between members of the Board and the Chairman of the Board:

To ensure effective communication and liaison with shareholders:

To organize the periodical evaluation of the work of the Board, depariments under the
Board of Directors and each member of the Board:

To create favourable conditions for non-executive, independent members of the Board
to work effectively, and to establish constructive relationships between executive and
non-executive members of the Board;

To exercise other duties and perform other responsibilitics as required by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders and the Board of Directors according to actual needs and
circumstances:

To sign the decision on appointment of position which is under the power of Board of
Directors in accordance with laws and Charter,

To sign on the Charter of the Company.
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1 To sign on the shareholder certificate books or share certificates correspomding to the
number of shares and the class of owned shares.

5. To sign on documents on behalf of bank account owner of the Company.

Article 36:  Criteria and conditions to be members of the Board of Directors

To have full capacity for civil acts and not to be prohibited from establishment and
management of enterprises pursuant to Article 17 Clause 2 of the Law on Enterprises.

To be individual shareholders owning at least (5% of the total number of ordipary shares, or
to be persons having expertise and experience in business management or expenence in the
fields of securities, finance and banking.

Nat te be the General Director, members of the Board, members of the members” councils of
other securities companies; not to be concurrently members of the Board of Directors in more
than five (05) other companies (in respect of histed companies).

Mot to have been members of the Board of Directors or the legal representative of a Company
which goes bankrupt or is prohibited from operation due to serious vielations of the laws.

Mot to nominate to the Board of Directors any employee of an independent auditor this makes
audits over the Company in the past three (03) vears.
Members of the Board are required to have the following qualities and capabilities:

a. To be trusted by sharcholders {evidenced by affirmative voling of shareholders), other
members of the Board, managers and employees of the Company.

b. To be capable of balancing interests of all related parties and to make proper decisions;

c. To have professional experience and necessary education to mun cfficiently the
Company;
d. To have experience in international business, knowledge of local issues, and

understanding of the market, products and competitors;
& To be able to turn knowledge and experience into practical solutions.

At the beginning of the term, all members of the Board must meet all conditions required by
law, administrative regulations, the Charter and internal regulations of the Company. During
the term, if there iz any change, members must notify to the Chairman of the Board of the
same. Criteria and conditions specified in this Article shall also apply to members of the Board
to be additionally or alternatively elected.

Article 37:  Alternate members of the Board of Directors

1.

A member of the Board {other than a person authorized to replace such member) may appoint
another member of the Board, or a person who is approved by the Board of Directors and
willing to perform such duty, as his‘her alternate, and shall have the right to discharge such

person,

The alternate member of the Board shall be entitled to receive notices of any mecting of the
Board of Directors and of any sub-committee of the Board of Directors o which his/her
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designator is a member; shall be entitled to attend and vote at meetings where the member of
the Board appointing him/her is absent; and shall be authorized to perform all functions of
his'her designator as a member of the Board in the case of absence of the designator. Such
alternate member shall not be entitled to receive any remuneration from the Company for
his/her work as an altemate member of the Board. However, the Company shall not be abliged
to send notices of the above-mentioned meetings to alternate members of the Board who are
not present in Viemam.

The altemnate member shall be required to waive histher membership of the Board of Directors
where the membership of his'her designator is terminated, If the term of office of a member
of the Board expires but such member is re-appointed or deemed to have been re-appointed
at the same General Meeting of Sharcholders where such member ceases histher membership
due to expired term, then any appointment of an alternate member made by such member
immediately prior to expiry of his'her term of office shall continue to be effective afier such
member is re-appointed.

Appointment or discharge of the alternate member must be made in writing, signed and sent
by the member of the Board making such appointment or discharge, to the Company or
otherwise as agreed by the Board of Directors.

In addition to the other provisions in this Charter, the alternate member shall be deemed as a
member of the Board in all respects and must be personally lable for histher acts and errors
but not be deemed to be a representative implementing the authorization of the member of the
Board who has appointed him/her.

Article 38:  Removal, discharge and addition of members of the Board of Directors

1.

Cases of discharge and removal of members of the Board:

& Members of the Board no longer meet the criteria and conditions stipulated in Article
36 of this Charter;

b. Members of the Board do not participate in any activities of the Board of Directors
within six (06) consecutive months, except in cases of force majeure;

€. A resignation letter is lodged;

d. There is evidence proving that the member of the Board loses histher capacity for civil
acts;

€. In accordance with decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

[n the case of members of the Board to be added: if a member loses histher membership in
accordance with the laws and the Charter of the Company, is demoted or removed or cannot
continue 1o act as member of the Board for any reason, the election of the new member of the
Board as alternative must be made at the nearest General Meeting of Sharcholders. When the
number of members of the Board is reduced by more than one-third (1/3) of that as stipulated
in the Charter of the Company, the Board of Directors must convene a mecting of the General
Meeting of Shareholders for a period not exceeding sinty (60) days to elect additional
members to the Board of Directors.

Article 39 Independent members of the Board of Directors

Independent members of the Board of Directors are members of Board of Directors who
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satisfied criteria and conditions as prescribed under Statues on corporate governance for listed
Company in Stock Exchanges.

Independent members of the Board of Directors shall notify to Board of Directors in case such
members are not qualified for conditions of Clause 1 of this Article and automatically no
longer be the independent member of the Board of Directors from the unqualified date. In
case any independent member of the Board of Directors no longer qualifies for the provided
conditions, the Board of Directors must notify to the next General Meeting of Shareholder or
convene the General Meeting of Sharcholder to elect additionally or replace those independent
members within six (06) months from the receiving date of written notice of the independent
members,

Independent members have the same duties and powers as those of other members of the
Board of Directors, with additional powers as follows:

i To propose (o the Board of Directors to convene an extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders or propose to the Inspection Committes to convene an extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders in the event the Board of Directors rejects such

proposal;
b. To hire audit or consulting organizations to carry out their duties,
C. To provide independent opinions on issues related to the bonus plan, remunerations

paid to members of the Board of Directors and managers of the Company;

d. To provide independent opinions on related major transactions and report the same to
management agencies when necessary.

Arficle 40:  Meetings of the Board of Directors and minutes of meeting

In case where the Board of Directors is to elect the Chairman, then the initial meeting of the
term of the Board of Directors in order to elect the Chairman and to pass other resolutions
within its authority must be conducted within a time-limit of seven (07) working days from
the date of completion of the clection of the Board for that term. This meeting shall be
convened by the member who gains the highest number of votes, [f mere than one member
gains the same highest number of votes, such elected members shall elect a person amongst
them to convene the meeting of the Board of Directors by a majority vote,

Regular meetings: The Chairman of the Board ghall convene a regular meeting of the Board
of Directors, prepare the agenda of the meeting and determine the time and location of the
meeting within a petiod of at least three (03) days before the proposed date of the meeting.
The Chairman may convene regular meetings at any time where considered necessary, but
there must be at least one meeting every quarter.

Extraordinary meetings: The Chairman must convene a meeting of the Board of Directors,
which shall not be delayed without a legitimate reason, where any of the following make a
written request specifying the objective and issues which need to be discussed:

a. The General Director or at least five (03) managers:

b, At least two (02) members of the Board;

£ The Chairman of the Board of Director;

Page 42



d, The Inspection Commitise or Independent member of the Board of Directors.

The request stated in clause 3 of this Article shall be written, in which clearly states the
purpose, issues that need discussing and resolution under the power of the Board of Directors.

A meeting of the Board of Directors as stipulated in clause 3 of this Article must be conducted
within a time-limit of seven (07) working days after the request for such meeting is made. If
the Chairman of the Board does not agree to convene such a meeting upon the request, then
the Chairman shall be liable for losses caused to the Company; any person who makes the
request for the meeting as referred to in clause 3 of this Article may himselfherself convene
a meeting of the Board of Directors.

Where an independent auditor makes a request, the Chairman of the Board must convene a
meeting of the Board of Directors in order to discuss the audit report and the standing of the

Company.

Venue of the meeting: Meetings of the Board of Directors shall take place at the registered
address of the Company or at another address in Vietnam or abroad as decided by the
Chairman of the Board and agreed by the Board of Directors.

Motice and agenda of a meeting of the Board of Directors: The notice of a meeting of the
Board of Directors must be sent to members of the Board and the members of Inspection
Committee at least three (03} calendar days prior to the date on which the meeting is to be
held; members of the Board may refuse in writing the notice of meeting and such refusal could
be changed or cancelled in writing of such member. The notice of the meeting of the Board
of Directors could be made in writing and in Vietnamese or English; it must provide sufficient
information on the agenda, the time and location of the meeting; and it must be accompanied
with neccssary documents on the issues to be discussed and voted on at the meeting of the
Board of Directors and include voting slips for members of the Board who will ke unable to
attend the meeting.

A notice of meeting may be sent by post, fax, and electronic mail or by other means, but must
ensure arrival at the address of cach member of the Board and member of the Inspection
Committee as registered with the Company.

In case of the exiraordinary mecting of Board of Directors at Article 40.3, a notice of the
meeting could be sent within 24 hours before the meeting time via fax, e-mail or others
clectronics means, but the notice must be assured to be delivered to the registered address of
each member of Board of Directors and Inspection Committee.

Minimum number of attending members:

A meeting of the Board of Dircctors shall be condueted and resolutions shall be passed if at
least three-quarters of the members of the Boerd are present in person or via their
representatives (authorized person) if such representation or authorization is accepted by other
members of the Board. In case insufficient number of members attends the meeting in
accordance with the regulations, the meeting must be convened for a second time within seven
(U7} days of the intended date of the first meeting. The adjourned meeting shall be conducted
if there is more than one half (1/2) of the members of the Board attending the meeting,

Voting:
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12,

a. Except for the provisions in clause 9(b) of this Article, each member of the Board or
histher authorized person being present in person at a meeting of the Board shall have
one vote, Members not directly attending the meeting shall have right o vole by
sending @ written vote. Written voie shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and
delivered to the chairman of the Board of Directors at least 01 hour prior (0 opening
of the meeting, Written votes shall only be opened in the presence of all the persons
attending the meeting;

b, A member of the Board may not be permitted to vote on confracts, fransaclions or
proposals in which such member or his'her related person has an interest contrary o
or possibly contrary to the interests of the Company. A member of the Board shall not
be included in the minimum number of attendees required to be present in order to
hold a meeting of the Board regarding resolutions on which such member does not
have the right to vete;

C. When an issue arises at a meeting of the Board pursuant to point d of this Article
regarding the level of interest of a member of the Board or relating to the voting right
of a member, which is not resolved by such member of the Board voluntarily waiving
his/her voting right, such issue shall be referred (o the chairman of the meeting whose
decizion in refation to other members of the Board shall be final, except where the
nature or scope of the interest of the relevant members of the Board has not been

properly announced,

d. Any member of the Board who benefits from one of the contracts stipulated at Clause
4. Article 49 of this Charter shall be considered to have a significant interest in such
contract;

e. The member of the Inspection Commitiee reserves the right 1o attend the Beard of
Directors” Meeting and the right to discuss, but is not allow to vote.

Disclosure of interest:

Any member of the Board of Dircctors wha directly or indirectly benefits from a contract or
transaction which has been signed or is intended to be signed with the Company, and where
such member is aware that he/she has an interest, shall be required to disclose the nature and
content of such interest at the meeting where the Board of Directors considers the signing of
such contract or transaction for the first time: or such member may disclose the interest at the
first meeting of the Board held after such member becomes aware that he/she has or will have
an interest in the relevant contract or transaction.

Voting by the majority:
The Board of Directors shall pass resolutions and make decisions in compliance with the

assent of the majority of attending Board members (more than fifty (50) per cent). In case the
number of assent votes is equal to the number of dissent votes, the vote of Chairman shall be

decisive.
Telephone or collecting written opinions or other forms of meeting:
A meeting of the Board of Direclors may be condueted by way of a conference call between

members of the Board where all or a number of members are at different places, provided that
each attending member is able to:
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a, Listen to other members of the Board expressing their opinions in the meeting,

b Express his/her opinions at the same time as other attending members if he/she wishes
e do 50,

Members may communicate direetly via the telephone or by other means of communication
or by a combination of such means.

From Gme fo time, the meeting of the Board of Directors may be held by collecting written
opinions.

Members of the Board who attend the meeting via telephone conference or sending opinions
in written within deadline which is set by the Board of Directors shall be deemed present st
the meeting of Board of Directors pursuant to the Charter, The location of the meeting 1o be
held in accordance with this provision shall be the location where the largest mumber of
members of the Board gathers, or if there is no such group of the largest number of members
of the Board then the meeting shall be held at the location where the chairman of the meeting

is present.

Resolutions which are passed at a meeting duly held and conducted by telephone or collecting
written opinions shall take effect immediately after the end of the meeting or reéceiving opinions
of the members of Board within the deadline, but must be confirmed by the signatures of all
alttending members of the Board in minutes of such meeting,

Written resolutions:

Resolution in the form of collecting written opinions is adopted on the hasis of the approval of the
majority of members of the Board of Directors with voting rights. This resolution is valid and
valuable as the resolution adopted at the meeting. Resolution can be signed by Chaimman of the
Board of Directors.

Mimutes of the meetings of Board of Directors:

The Minutes of the meetings of Board of Directors must be in writing and may be in sound
recording, or recorded and archived in other electrical form at the Company's Head Office.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be responsible to deliver minutes of Board
meetings to Board members, and such minutes shall be deemed a bona fide record at such
meeting unless an opinion against the content of the minutes is provided within a time-limit
of ten (10) days from the date of delivery of such minutes. The minutes of the Board of
Directors must be prepared in Vietnamese and English, and must bear full names and the
signatures of all the attending Board members; the person writing the minutes and the
chairman, The person writing the minutes and the chairman of a meeting are jointly
responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of the minutes of the meeting of the Board of
Directors. Where the Board resolution was passed in accordance with the law, but there is a
member refuses to sign on the minutes of the meeting then his/her signature cerifying that
he/she attends at the meeting shall be considered his/her signature in the minutes of the
meeting.

sub-commitiees of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors may establish sub-committees and authorize them to act pursuant to
the authority of the Board. Membership of a sub-commitiee may consist of one or more
members of the Board of Directors and one or more non-board members pursuant to a decision
of the Board, During the course of performance of authorized powers, the sub-commitices
must comply with the rules stipulated by the Board, Such rules may regulate or permit the
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17.

admission of additional persons being non-board members to the sub-committees and may
permit such persons to vole in their capacity as members of the sub-committecs, but (a) the
number of non-board members must be less than half the total number of members of the sub-
committee, and (b) resolutions of the sub-committee shall only take effect when the majority
of members attending and voting at a meeting of the sub-committee are members of the Board.

Legal effect of actions:

Actions taken to implement resolutions of the Board of Directors, of sub-commitiees under
the Board of Directors, or of a person with membership on a sub-committee under the Board
af Directors shall be deemed 1o be legally effective even when there may have been an error
in the election and appointment of a member to the sub-committee or to the Board of
Threclors,

The execution of decision of Board of Directors, or Sub-committees of the Board of Directors,
or member of Sub-committees of the Board must comply with the prevailing laws and the
regulations of the Company’s Charter.

Article 41:  Internal Audit Department and Risk Management Department of the Board of
Directors

1.

Internal Audit department performs their functions on the principles of independence,
honesty, objectivity and confidentiality, The functions and specific tasks of the Internal Audit
department are as folloansy:

a. To make an independent assessment of the suitability and compliance with regulations
and the laws, the Charter, the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
the Board of Directors;

b. To inspect, review and assess the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the internal
control system under the Management Team in order to improve this system;

c. To assess the compliance of business operations with internal policies and procedures;

d. To advise on drafting internal policies and procedures;

e To assess on compliance with the laws, to control measures to ensure the safety of
property,

f. To assess internal controls via financial information and business operations;

B To assess the process of determination, assessment and management of business risks;

h To assess the effectiveness of activities;

i To assess compliance with contractual commitments;
] To control information technology system;

k. To investigate Company’s internal violations;

1. To perform Internal Contral of the Company,
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2. Functions and principles of operation of the Risk Management Department:

i

To regulate on policies, risk management strategy, risk assessment standards; overall
risk exposure of the Company and each department in the Company;

To assess independently on the suitability and compliance with policies and risks
procedures established in the Company;

To inspect, review and assess the adequacy, efficiency and cffectiveness of the risk
management system under the Management Team in order 1o improve this system;

3. Requirements zpplicable to the personnel of the Internal Audit Depariment:

i,

B,

Mot ever been sanctioned fines or more for violations in the field of securities, banking
or insurance within the latest five (03) years from their appointment;

Head of Intemal Audit Department must have expertise in law, accounting and
auditing; having enough experience, reputation, authority to cffectively perform their
assigned tasks;

Mot being related to head of departments, professionals, General Director, Deputy
General Director, Branch Managers of the Company;

Having certificate on fundamental issues on securities and securities markets and
certificate on securities and securities markets or securities practicing certificate;

Mot concurrently hold any other jobs in the Company.

CHAPTER IX. MANAGEMENT TEAM, GENERAL MRECTOR, MANAGERS AND

Article 42:

SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY

Organization structure

The Company shall create a management system which is held responsible to the Board of Directors
and under the leadership of the Board of Directors. The Company shall have a General Director, a (or
a number of) deputy General Director(s) and a chief accountant appointed by the Board of Directors.
The appointment and dismissal of these positions must be done via a duly approved resolution of the
Board of Directors.

Article 43:

Compuosition, duties and powers of the Management Team

1. Composition of the Management Team of the Company include: General Director and Deputy
General Directors,

7 Members of the Management Team are appointed or hired by the Board of Directors, The
term of members of the Management Team is three (03) years. Number of members of the
Management Team simultaneously being a member of the Board of Directors must be less
than 2/3 of the total number of seats in the Board of Directors.

. & The Management Team shall establish and maintain a system of risk management, including
procedures, apparatus and personnel to ensure the prevention of the risks that may affect the
interests of the Company and its customers; establish and maintain a svstem of internal
control, including organizational structure, independent and specialized personnel,

Page 47

1

e O T B

=1



procedures, internal regulations apply to all locations, units, departments and operation of the
Company to ensure compliance with the law.

Management Team must regulate regulations for the Board of Directors” approval; working

regulations must at least include the following basic contents:

B Responsibilities and specific tasks of members of the Management Team;

h. Sequences and procedures for organizing and participating in meetings;

C. Responsibilities of report of the Management Team to the Boad of Dircctors, the
Inspection Committee.

During the implementation of their duties, the members of the Management Team shall have

the following obligations and rights:

a. Obligations of members of the Management Team:

fii.

v,

W,

wii,

implementing the powers and duties assipned in accordance with the
provisions of Law on Enterprise, Law on Securities, related laws, the Charter,
Decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors;

Implementing the powers and duties assigned honestly and carefully to ensure
utmost legal inlerests of the Company and its sharcholders;

Reing loyal to the interests of the Company and its shareholders; not using
information, business knowhow, business opportunities of the Company, to
abuse their position and assets of the Company for personal benefit or for the
benefit of other organizations and individuals;

Reporting timely, completely and exactly to the Company on the business that
the members of the Management Team and their related persons owned or have

shares, shares of voting right, This announcement shall be listed at the Head
Office and branches of the Company;

Disclosing interest and related persons in accordance with law,

Members of the Management Team shall not be entitled 1o pay-rise, bonus
when the Company does not full payment of duc debts;

Other duties as prescribed by law and this Charter.

b. Rights of members of the Management Team:

Members of the Management Team are entitled to remuneration, salary, bonuses in
sceordance with business results and effectiveness, Salary of members of the Management
Team shall be decided by the Board of Directors.

Article 44:  Managers (other managers)

1. Upon the proposal of the General Director and with the approval of the Board of Directors,
the Company shall be entitled to employ a number of and types of managers needed or in
compliance with the management structure and practice of the Company as proposed by the
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Board of Directors from time to time. Managers must be diligent as required in arder for the
Company to achieve the stated objectives of its operation and organization.

Salary, remuneration, benefits and other terms stated in the labour contract signed with the
General Director shall be decided by the Board of Directors. Labour contracts signed with
managers shall be decided by the Board of Directors after consulting with the General
Director.

Apart from the specific work in the labour contract and/or according to the resolution of the
Board of Direetors, managers conduct the responsibilities stipulated in Article 165 of the Law
ot Enterprises.

Article45:  Appointment, removal, duties and powers of the General Director

Appoiniment: The Board of Directors shall appoint a member of the Board or shall hire
another person to be the General Director and shall enter into a contract stipulating the salary,
remuneration, benefits and other terms relating to the employment.

Term of office:

The term of effice of a General Director shall be three (3) years except otherwise stipulated
by the Board, and he/she may be re-appointed. The appointment may cease its affect void
pursuant 1o terms in the labour contract, General Director may not be a person prohibited by
law from holding such position such as & minor, a person lacking capacity for civil acts, a
person sentenced to imprisonment or serving a prison sentence, an officer of the armed forces,
a State official or a person against whom a verdiet states that he/she has caused the Company
hefshe managed go bankrupt.

Powers and duties of General Director

a. To implement resolutions of the Board of Directors and of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, and the business plan and investment plan of the Company approved by
the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b. To make decisions on all issues which do not reguire a resolution of the Board of
Directors including the signing of financial and commercial contracts on behalf of the
Company, and on the organization and menagement of day-to-day business and
production activities of the Company in accordance with best management practices;

¢ To recommend Board of Directors on the organization structure, regulation on internal
management of the Company;

d. To appoint, remove and discharge managerial positions in the Company, except for
those under the scope of authority of the Board of Directors:

&, To recruit employees;
f, To make recommendations on the number and category of managers the Company

necds o employ in order for the Board of Directors to appoint or dismiss when
necessary for the purpose of effectively implementing activitics and effectively apply
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the managerial structure proposed by the Board; and to provide advice to the Board so
that it may decide the salary, remuneration, benefits and other terms for managers in
their labour contracts;

To consult with the Board in order to make decision on the number of employees, on
their salary, allowances, benefits, appoiniment and dismissal and other terms relating
to their lahowr contracts,

Before 31* December each year, the General Director must submit a detailed business
plan for the next fiscal year to the Board of Directors for its approval on the basis of
satisfying the appropriate requirements of the budget;

To implement the annual business plan approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors;

To propose measures to improve the operation and management of the Company,

To prepare long term, annual and monthly estimates of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as an estimate) for the long term, annual and monthly management
activities of the Company in accordance with the business plan. The annual estimated
budget (including the forccast balance sheet, report on business and production
activitics and cash flow report) for each fiscal year must be submitted 1o the Board of
Directors for its approval and must comprise information as stipulated in the
regulations of the Company;

To carry out other activities in accordance with the Charter, the regulations of the
Company, the resolutions of the Board of Directors, the labour contract afl the General
Director, and the law;

To sign the decision on appointment, dismissal of positions aceording to the initial
approval of the Board of Directors;

Approve, issue regulations, procedures, guidelings that do not belong to the approval
and issuance scope of the General Meeting of Shateholders or the Board of Directors.

The Cieneral Director has the right to authorize other individual to approve, issue the
above-mentioned documents, the authorization shall be created in writing;

Reporting to the Board of Directors and shareholders:
“I'he General Director shall be held responsible before the Board of Directors and the
General Meeting of Shareholders for implementation of his'her assigned dulies and

powets, and must report on such implementation to such authorities upan their request.

Conduct the responsibilities of the Corporate manager pursuant to Article 163 of the
Law on Enterprises;

Other rights and responsibilities pursuant to law, Company’s Charter and resolutions,
decisions of the Board of Directors.

Removal:

The Board of Directors may remove the General Director under the following circumstances:
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Article d6:

1:

C.

When two-thirds or more of the members of the Board vote to agree on such removal
(not counting the vote of such General Director) and may appoint a new (eneral
Dvirector for replacement. The removed General Director shall have the right to object
to such removal at the next General Meeting of Shareholders.

The General Director no longer meets the requirement of position of the General
Director under the law,

Submit a letter of resignation and being accepted.

Secretary of the Company and person in charge of corporate governance

Secretary of the Company:

The Board of Directors shall appoint one {or more) person(s) as secretary of the Company if
necessary. The rights and responsibilities of the secretary of the Company shall comprise:

Organizing meetings of the Board of Directors, the General Meeting of Shareholders;
write minutes of the meetings;

Support members of the Board of Directors in implementing given rights and
obligations;

Support the Board of Directors in applying and operating the corporate governance;
Support the Company in building relationship with shareholders and protecting the
rights, lawful benefits of shareholders; the performance of responsibilities of
providing information, publicizing information and administrative procedure;

Other rights and obligations pursuant to the Company's Charter;

Secretary of the Company is responsible for information confidentiality in accordance
with the law and Charter of the Company.

Person in charge of corporate governance:

d.

Board of Divectors assigns at least one (1) person to be in charge of corporate
governance to support efficiently corporate governance activity of the Company. The
person in charge of corporate governance can hold the posttion of Secretary pursuant
to Article 46.1.

Person in charge of corporate governance must gualily these following criteria

L. Having legal knowledge;

1. Not working, at the same time, for the independent auditor Company auditing
the financial statements of the Company;

ii.  Other criteria under the regulation of laws, this Charter and Board of Directors’
decision.
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c. The Board of Directors can discharge the person in charge of corporale govemance if
nccessary but not against the prevailing laws on labour, The Bomsd could appoint
assistant for person in charge of corporate governance as per lime.

d. Person in charge of corporate governance's rights and responsibility:

i. To advise the Board of Directors on organization of General Mecting of
Shareholders in accordance with regulations and the assignment between the
Company and Shareholders;

ii. To prepare the meeting of Board of Directors, Inspection Committes and
General Meeting of Shareholders as per request of the Board of Directors or
Inspection Commaitles;

iif. To advise on the procedure of meetings;

iv.  Toattend the meetings;

v, To advise on the procedure of making resolution of the Board of Directors in
accordance with regulations of laws;

vi. To provide the financial information, the copies of meeting minutes of the
Board and other information for the Board’s member(s) and member of the
Inspeetion Commattee;

vii.  To observe and report to the Board of Dircctors on disclosing information
activities of the Company;

viii. To guarantee the confidentiality of information in accordance with the laws
and this Charter;

i%. To be the contact point between related parties;

x. (Other rights and responsibilities under the regulations of laws and this Charter.

Article 47:  Internal Control Department and Risk Management Department under the
Management Team

l. Internal contrel is responsible for control the compliance with the following contents:

a.

To inspect, monitor the compliance with legal regulations, the Charter, decision ol the
(eneral Meeting of Sharcholders, decision of the Board, regulations, business
procedures, risk management procedures of the Company, of the relevant departments
and of persons practicing securities in the Company;

To monitor the implementation of internal regulations, the potential conflict of interest
internally, especially Tor the business activities of the Company and the transactions
of employees of the Company; to monitor the performance of the responsibility of the
employees in the Company, performance of the responsibility of partner with regard
to authorized aclivities,

To check the contents and monitor the implementation of the rules of professional
ethics;
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d. To monitor the calculation and compliance with regulations on financial security:

(-3 Separation of customer assets;
f. Prezervation and storage of customer assets;
g2 Control the compliance with provisions of law on the prevention of money lmumdering;

b Other contents assipned by General Director,
2. Requirements for personnel of Internal Control Department:

a Head of internal control must have expertise on law, accounting and auditing; having
enough experience, reputation, authority to effectively execute their assipned tasks;

b. Mot being a person related to the heads of professional departments, persons
performing professional works, General Director, Deputy General Director, Branch’s
Director in securitics Company;

e Having certificate on fundamental issues on securities and securities markets and
certificate on sccuritics and securities markets or securities practicing certificate,

d. Mot concurrently hold other position in the Company;
3 Duties of the risk management system:
a. Determination of policy implementation and the level of nsk acceplance of the
Company;

b. Determination of the risks of the Company;
LR Measurement of risks;
d. Monitoring, prevention, detection and treatment of risks.

CHAPTER X. DUTIES OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEMEBERS OF
INSPECTION COMMITTEE COMMITEE, GENERAL DIRECTOR AND MANAGERS

Article 48:  Prudence duty of members of the Board of Directors, members of Board of
Committee, the General Director and managers

Member of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Committee, the General Director and the
authorized managers shall be responsible to perform his/her duties, including duties in the capacity
of a member of a sub-committee of the Board in a truthful manner, a manner which he/she believes
to be in the best interests of the Company, and with the degree of prudence which a prudent person
usually possesses in order to perform a similar position in similar circumstances,

Article 49  Integrity duty and avoidance of conflict of interests
1. Members of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Committee, the General Director
and managers shall declare their relevant interests under Article 159 of Law on Enterprise and

other relevant laws.

2. Members of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Committee, the General Director
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and managers shall not be permitted to use business opportunities profitable to the Company
for personal purposes; and shall not be permitted to use information oblamed by virlue of their
position for their personal benefit or for the benefit of other individuals or institutions.

Members of the Board of Directors, member of the Inspection Committee, the General
Director and other manapers are obliged to notify the Board of Directors, the Inspection
Commitiee of the transaction between them or their related people and ‘the Company,
subsidiary Company, other companies controlled by the Company with more than 50% of
Charter capital under law. Within 24 howrs, the Company must disclose the resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors that approve the mentioned
transaction on its website and reports to §SC,

Members of the Board of Diireciors are prohibited from voting on transaction in which they
or their related persons involved, including transactions in which their benefit is undefined.

Those transactions must be included in the Company's Annual Report.

Members of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Cammittee, the General Director
and managers are prohibited from using undisclosed information of the Company or
disclosing fo others to conduct any relevant transaction.

Members of the Board of Directors and the General Director must, if performing any form of
wiork within the scope of business operations of the Company on behalf of himself or herself
ot on behalf of others, report the nature and content of that work 1o the Board of Directors,
Inspection Committee. They shall only be permitted to perform this work if the majority of
the remaining members of the Board of Directors approve; if the worl is performed without
reporting or without the approval from the Board of Directors all income arising from such
activity shall belong to the Company,

Members of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Commities, the General Director
and managers shall be obliged to notify the Board of Directors of any interests which may
conflict with the interests of the Company and which they may be entitled to via other [egal
entity or transactions or persons. The above-mentioned persons shall only be permitted to use
such opportunities when the members of the Board of Directors who do not have related
interests have decided not to investigate such issue.

Unless otherwise decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company shall not be
permitted to provide loans, guarantees to members of the Board of Directors, member of the
Inspection Committee, the General Director, to managers and affiliated persons of members
above, or to legal entities in which the above-mentioned persons have a financial interest,
unless the Company and affiliated organization of such memberi(s) both belong to an group
or arc operaled as a group of companies which comprises parent Company and subsidiary
companies, economic group and other different repulations of the specialized law..

A contract or transaction between the Company and one or more members of the Board of
Directors, member of the Inspection Committee, the General Director, a manager and
individual, organization related to the above-mentioned people shall not be void due in the
following circumstances:

a. With respect to a contract valued at 20% or less of the total value of assets recorded in
the most recent financial statements, the important factors regarding the contract or
transaction and the relationship and interests of the manager or member of the Board
were reporied to the Board or fo the relevant sub-committes; and at the same time, the
Board or such sub-committee honestly permitted the contract or transaction o be
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exccuted on the basis of the majority of votes of members of the Board without any
related interest; or

b, With respect to a contract valued from 20% or more of the total value of asscts
recorded in the most recent financial statements, the important factors regarding the
contraet or transaction and the relationship and interests of the manager or member of
the Board were reported to the shareholders without any related interesis and with the
right to vote on such issue, and such shareholders voted in favour of such contract or
transaction;

G An independent consultancy organization finds such contract or transaction fair and
reasonable in all respects involving the shareholders of the Company at the time when
such contract or transaction is permitted to be executed, or is passed or approved by
the Board, a sub-commitiee under the Board, or the shareholders,

Members of the Board of Directors, members of lnspection Committee, the General Director,
and any manager or histher related person shall not be permitted to purchase, seil or transact
shares of the Company or its subsidiary in any form at the time they obtain certain information
that the price of such shares will be affected, and when other shareholders are unaware of such
information,

The Company needs to apply necessary measures to prevent sharcholder or related person
from eonducting transaction which causes the loss of capital, assets or other resources of the
Company. The Company is prohibited from releasing loan or gearantying loan for shareholder
or related person,

Article 50:  Approving contracts, transaction between the Company and related person

The General Meeting of Sharcholders or Board of Directors shall approve contracts and
transactions between the Company and the following related persons:

A Shareholders and authorized representatives of shareholders that are organizations
holding more than 108 of the Company’s total ordinary shares and their related

persons;

b, Members of the Board of Directors, the General Director and their related persons;

c. Enterprises that must be declared by members of the Board of Directors, member of

the Inspection Committes, General Director and other executives as prescribed in
Clause 2 Article 164 of Law on Enterprise.

The Board of Directors shall approve the contracts and transactions that are mentioned in
Clause 1 of this Article and are worth less than 35% of the Company’s total assets according
to the latest fingncial statement, In this case, the person that signs the contract or conducts the
transaction on behalf of the Company shall send a nolification to the members of the Board
of Directors and member of the Inspection Committee of the related persons together with the
draft contract or transaction summary. The Board of Directors shall decide whether to approve
the contract or transaction within fifteen (15) days from the day on which the notification is
received unless a different deadline is specified in the Company's Charter. Members of the
Board of Directors that are related to the parties to the contract or transaction must not vote.

The GMS shall approve the following contracts and tramsactions:
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a, Contracts and transactions other than those specified in Clause 2 of this Article;

b. Contracts and transactions that invalve borrowing, lending, selling asscts that are
worth more than 10% of the Company’s total assets according to the latest financial
statement between the Company and shareholders that hold from 50% or more of the
total voting shares or their related persons.

If a contract or fransaction specified in Clause 3 of this Article is approved, the person wha
concludes the contract or conducts the transaction on behalf of the Company shall send a
notification to the Board of Directors and member of the Inspection Committee of the entities
related to such contract or transaction together with the draft contract or summary of the
transaction. The Board of Directors shall submit the draft contract or explain the contract or
transaction at the GMS or carry out a questionnaire survey, In this cage, sharehelders that are
related to the ]:mrnes to the contract or transaction must not vote, The L.unl.mﬂl or transaction
shall be approved in accordance with Article 29,3, of the Charter,

A contract or transaction shall be invalidated under a court decision and handled as prescribed
by law when it 13 concluded or carried out against regulations of this Article, The person who
concludes the contract or carries out the transaction, the related shareholders, members of the
Board of Directors, Director or General Director shall pay compensation for any damage
caused and return the benefits generated by such contract or transaction to the Company,

The Company shall disclose related contracts and transactions in accordance with relevant
laws.

Article 51:  Liability for loss and compensation

Liability for loss: Any member of the Board of Directors, members of Inspection Committes,
the General Director or any manager who breaches the obligation to act honestly or who fails
to fulfil his/her obligations carefully, diligently and professionally shall be liable for any loss
caused by such breach,

Compensation: The Company shall pay compensation to a person who has been, is or is likely
to become a party involved in a claim, suit or legal proceeding which has been, is or is likely
to be conducted, whether or not it is a civil or administrative case, (but excluding a lawsuit
conducted by the Company or initiated by the Company within its powers) where such person
was or is a member of the Board of Directors, a manager, an employee or a representative
authorized by the Company (or its subsidiary), or such person was or is doing things at the
request of the Company (or its subsidiary) in the capacity as a member of the Board of
Directors, a manager, an employee or a5 an authorized representative of another Company,
partner, joint venture, trust or legal entity. Costs to be paid as compensation shall comprise
all costs arising (including costs to hive a lawyer), costs of the judgment, penalties, amounis
payable and actually arising or amounts deemed reasonable during the resolution of the case
within the framework permitted by law, provided that such person has acted honestly,
carefully, diligently and professionally in a manner which such person believed was in the
interests or not contrary to the best interests of the Company, and on the basis of compliance
with law and on condition that there 15 no discovery or confirmation that such person breached
his'her obligations. The Company shall be entitled to purchase insurance for the above-
mentioned persons in order to avoid having to pay such compensation itself.

CHAPTER XI. INSPECTTON COMMITTEE
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Article 52:  member of the Inspection Committee

L.

The Inspection Committee shall have three (03) members. The term of a member of the
Inspection Committee shall not exceed three {03) vears and shall be re-elected without term
lima,

Al least one member of the Inspection Committes must be an accounting-financial expert.
Such member must not be stafl in the accounting-finance department of the Company and
must not be a member or staff of the independent auditor which is auditing the financial
statements of the Company or have audited the Company’s financial statements of three {03)
eonsecullve years ago.

More than half of the member of the Inspection Commitlee must reside permanently in
Vietnam.

A sharcholder or a group of shareholders holding from 10% of the total ordinary shares have
the right to nominate candidates o the Inspection Committee as stated at Article 20.3. The
specific number of the candidates is shown in Artiele 20,3, The nominating process is as
Tollows:

a. Shareholders forming inte groups for the purpose of nominating must inform
shareholders who attend the meeting about the group meeting before the opening of
the General Meeting of Sharehalders.

b. In case the number of nominated candidates is smaller than the number of candidates
that they are entitled to nominate pursuant to the resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the rest of the candidates shall be nominated by the Board of Directors,
the Inspection Committee and other sharcholders,

In case the term of office of member of the Inspection Committee expires and new member
of the Inspection Committee have not been elected, the expired member of the Inspection
Committee shall retain its rights and obligations until member of the Inspection Committee
of the new term of office are elected and take over the duties,

In case the number of members of Ins]:le.c.tmn Committee reduced more than 1/3 {one third) under
the Company Charter or fail to meet the minimum number of members under law, for a period
not exceeded sixty (60) days from the date of insufficient quantity as prescribed, a General
Meeting of Sharcholders shall be convened to elect additional members.

Article 53:  The Inspection Committee

The Inspection Committee has the powers and responsibilitics stipulated in Article 170 of the
Law on Enterprises, which shall be mainly the following powers and responsibilities:

a. To supgest, propose to the General Meeting of Sharcholders to pass the list of
accounting organizations approved to audit the Company's Financial statement; 1o
decide whether or not the accounting organizations are approved to audit the
Company’s activities, to remove the approved auditor if necessary;

b, To take legal responsibility with the shareholders about their inspecting activities;
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To inspect the financial state of the Company, the compliance with laws in the
activities of the members of the Board of Dircelors, Direttor (General Director), other
MAnagers;

To ensure to co-operate with the Board of Directors, Director (General Director) and
sharcholders;

Upon discovery of a member of the Board of Directors or Director (General Director)
ot other managers of the enterprise who is in breach of law, to give immediate written
notice to the Board of Directors within forty eight {(48) hours, request the person in
breach to cease the breach and take measures to remedy any consequences.

To build up the Statues on Inspection Committee’s operating and submit to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders for approval;

To make a report at the General Meeting of Sharehalders pursuant to Article 129
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020 of the Governance detailing
and guiding some articles of the Law on Securities;

To have the right to access the Company’s files and documents stoved at the head
office, branches and other places; to have the right to arrive at the work place of the
manager and employees of the Company during working hours;

To have the right 1o request the Board of Directors, members of the Board, Director
(Qeneral Director) and other managers to fully, precisely and promptly provide the
information and documents about the Company’s managing, monitoring activities and
business activitics;

Other rights and responsibilities pursuant to the law.

The head of the [nspection Committee:

H.

The member of the Inspection Committee must appoint {01) member as the head ol
the Inspection Commiltee in majority basis. The head of the Inspection committee
must be auditor or specialized accountant and must be working at the Company.

The head of the Inspection Committee shall have the following rights and

responsibilities:

i To convene meetings of the Inspection Commitiee and to act as the head of
the Inspection Commuttes;

. To request the Board of Dircctors, General Director and other excculive
officers of the Company to provide relevant information in order to repot o
member of the Inspection Comimnittee;

iii. To prepare and gign reports of the Inspection Committee after consulting the
Board of Directors, and to submit the same to the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

The meeting of the Inspection Committee:
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i The Inspection Committee should hold a meeting at least two (02) times a year, the
number of members participating should be at least 2/3 of the member of the
Inspection Committee. Minutes of the meeting should be created clearly and in detail.
The person who makes the minutes of the meeting of the Inspection Committee should
sign their name in the minutes, The minutes of the meeting should be stored to
determine the responsibility of each member of the Inspection Committee.

b. The Inspection Committee has the right to request the members of the Board of
Directors, General Director and representative of the approved accounting
organization to attend the meeting and answer the questions that need clardiying.

¢ ' Motice and agenda of the meeting:

I The meeting of Inspection Committee will be hold after 03 {three) calendar
days from the date of sending the notiee 10 the member of the Inspection
Committee. Notices of the meeting could be made in Vietnamese or Englizh,
which clearly state: agenda, meeting time, location and must be attached with
necessary documents on issues will be discussed and voted at the meeting of
the Inspection Committee, Members who cannot attend the meeting, will send
ballots to the Inspection Committee prior to the meeting.

i, A notice of meeting may be sent by post, fax, and electronic mail or by other
electronic means, but must ensure arrival at the address of each member of
the Inspection Committee as registered with the Company,

iii. In case of the extraordinary meeting, a notice of the meeting could be sent
within 24 hours before the meeting time via fax, e-mail or others electronics
means, but the notice must be assured to be delivered to the registered address
of each member of the Inspection Committee.

Article 54:  Standards and conditions of member of the Inspection Committee

1.

Being 21 years of age and older, having enough civil capacity and not belong to the entities
whom are prohibited from establishing and managing enterprises in accordance with Article
17 clause 2 of the Law on Enterprises.

Not hold management positions in the Company, not being the spouse, natural father, adoptive
father, natural mother, adoptive mather, child, adopted child, sibling of any member of the
Board of Directors, the General Director or other managers.

Head of the Inspection Commiltee is not simultancously a member of the Inspection
Committee, the manager of other securities companies. The head of the Inspection Committee
must be a professional accountant or auditor and must work full-time except in case the
Charter of the Company provides for any other higher standards.

Have professional qualifications on securities and securities markets: have professional
qualifications or experience in accounting, auditing or professional qualifications, and
experience in the finance, banking sector.

Not belong to the following cases:

a, Working for the accounting, financial department of the Company!
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b. Being a member or a staff of the independent auditor which has audited the Company’s
financial statements of three (03) cansecutive years ago,

f. A member of the Inspéction Committes shall be dismissed in the following cases:

A Not fully satisfy the standards and requirements specified in clause 2 of this Article;
b, Hands in a resignation and is accepted.
7 A member of the [nspection Committee shall be removed in the following cases:

a, Fails to perform histher duties;

b. Fails to perform histher rights and obligations for six (06) consecutive months,
except in force majeure events;

c. Commits multiple, serious violations of Controller”s duties prescribed by the Law on
Enterprises;

d. Other eases specified in resolutions of the GMS.

CHAPTER XIL RIGHT TO INVESTIGATE BOOKS AND RECORDS
OF THE COMPANY

Article 55:  Right to investigate books and records
L. Ordinary shareholders shall have the right to investigate books and records, specifically:

a, Ordinary shareholders have the right to investigate, look up and excerpt information
related to the name and address in the fist of shareholders who are entitled to vote;
request 1o adjust inaccurate information about themselves; peruse, look up, make an
extract or copy the Company’s Charter, minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
and the resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

b. A sharcholder or a group of shareholders holding at least 05% of the total shares have
the right to investigate, look up, make an extract of minutes ook and resolution,
decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, mid-year and snnual [inancial
statement, report of the Inspection Committes, contraet, transsction that need to be
approved by the Board of Directors and other documents, except for documents related
to commercial confidentiality, business confidentiality of the Company.

.5 In case the authorized representative of a shareholder or a group of shareholders requesis to
peruse hooks and documents, hedshe needs to enclose the power of attomey of the shareholder
of group of shareholders that he/she represents or a notarized copy of this power of attorney.

. Mermbers of the Board of Directors, member of the Inspection Committee, General Director and
other managers may have a look at the registration book of shareholders of the Company, the
list of shareholders, other books and documents only for the purpose in relation i thetr positions
in the Company provided that such information is kept confidential.

4. The Company shall be required to archive the Charter, amendments of ared additions to the
Charier, the License of Esteblishment & Operation, any rules, documents proyving ownership of
asscls, minutes of meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders and of the Board of
Directors, reports of the Inspection Committee, annual financial statements, accounting books
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and any other documents in accordance with law at the Head Office or other location, provided
that the shareholders and the business registration institutions have been notified of the location
where such documents are kepl.

3. The Company’s Charter must be announced on the website of the Company.
CHAFPTER XIIL STAFF AND THE TRADE UNION
Artiele 56:  Statf and the Trade Union

The General Director must prepare a plan in order for the Board of Directors to approve issues relating
to recruitment, labour, compulsory termination of employment, salary, social insurance, welfare, rewards
and discipline applicable to managers and employees as well as regarding the relationship between the
Company with accredited trade unions in accordance with the best manapement standards, the practices
and policies stipulated in the Charter, the regulations of the Company, and the applicable [aws.

CHAFPTER X1V. DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT
Article 57:  Dividends

1. In accordance with a decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the laws, dividends
shall be announced and paid from profit retained by the Company but shall not exceed the
level proposed by the Board of Directors after having consulted shareholders at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

2 The Board of Directors may decide, in accordance with the Law on Enterprise, a mid-term
payment of dividends when such payment is considered to conform to the profitability of the
Company.

3. The Company shall not pay interest on dividends or on [other] sums paid on any class of
shares,

4, The Board of Directors may request the General Mesting of Shareholders to approve payment
of all or part of dividends by specific assets (such as fully paid shares or bonds issued by other
companies), and the Board of Directors shall be the body implementing such resolution.

3, When payment of dividends or other sums paid on any class of shares is made in cash, the
Company must make payment in Vietnamese dong and may make payment by check or
money order posted to the registered address of any beneficiary sharcholder; if any risk arises
(out of the registered address of a shareholder) then such shareholder shall be responsible for
such risk. In addition, the amount used to pay dividends or other sums paid on any class of
shares may be paid by bank transfer if the Company has bank details so as to divectly transfer
payment to such shareholder’s bank sccount. If the Company makes a bank transfer based on
the exact banking details provided by a shareholder but such shareholder does not receive the
money, the Company shall not be liable for the amount which it so transferred to the
shareholder. Payment of dividends on shares listed on the Stock Exchange/Securities Trading
Cenire may be made via a sceuritics Company or Depository Centre.

. The Board of Directors may decide and announce that owners of ondinary shares shall be
entitled to receive dividends by ordinary shares instead of cash dividends, if the General
Meeting of Sharcholders so approves. Additional shares used to pay such dividends shall be
recorded as shares the purchase price of which has been fully paid, on the basis that the value
of shares received in lieu of dividends corresponds to the cash amount for payment of
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dividends.

¥. The Board of Directors may approve a resolution which stipulates a specific date as the closing
date of the business operational register of the Company, based on the Law on Enterprise,
Law on Securities. On such date, any person who has registered as a shareholder or owner of
other securities shall be entitled to receipt of dividends, interest, distribution of profil, and
receipt of share certificates, notices or other documents.

8. Company may only distribute profits to the ordinary shareholders when the Company has
profit and has fulfilled payment of tax obligations and other financial obligations in
accordance with the law, at the same time ensuring pavment of due debts and other asset
obligations after distribution of profits.

0, Other issues relating to distribution of profit shall be implemented in accordance with the
laws.

CHAPTER XV, BANK ACCOUNTS, FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

Article 58:  Bank accounts

1. The Company shall open a bank account at a Vietnamese bank or foreign bonk authorized 1o
operate in Vietnam.

2. The C ompany may, where niecessary and with prier approval of the cnmpt:tcnt body, open a
hank account in & foreign country in accordance with the laws.

3. The Company shall conduct payment and accounting transactions via its Vietmamese dong
account or foreign currency account at the bank where it opens such account,

Article 59:  Reserve fund to supplement charter eapital

Every year the Company shall not deduct any amount from its afier-tax profit for transferring it into
a reserve fund to supplement charter capital, unless the General Meeting of Shareholders decides
otherwise. In case of deducting after-tax profit for reserve fund to supplement charter capital. the
General Meeting of Shareholders decides the specific deduction rate.

Article 6ll:  Fiscal year

1. The fiscal year of the Company shall commence from the 1* January each _‘yem‘ and shall end
on the 31" December in the same calendar year.

2. The first fiscal year of the Company shall commence from the date of catablishment and end
an the 317 December of the same year. If the first fiscal vear of the Company is less than four
{014} months, the financial statement thereof shall be conjointly audited with the financial
statement of the subsequent ycar,

Article 61:  Accounting system

i The accoumting system used by the Company shall be Vietnamese Accounting System (VAS)
or another accounting system approved by the Ministry of Finance.

2. The Company shall prepare accounting books in Vietnamese and English. The Company shall
archive the accounting records in accordance with the form of business activities conducted by the
Company. Such records must be accurate, updated, systematic and sufficient to prove and explain
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3.

the transactions of the Company.

The Company shall use Vietnamese dong as the currency in accounting.

CHAFPTER XVI. ANNUAL STATEMENTS, RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION AND PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT

Artiele 62:  Annual, semi-annual and guarterly statements

The Company shall prepare annual financial statements in accordance with the laws and the
regulations of the State Securities Commission, and such statements must be audited in
acgordance with Article 63 of the Charter. Within a time-limit of mnety (90) days from the
end of cach fiscal year, the annual financial statements must be submitted to the authorized
tax authonty, the Statc Sccurifies Commission, the Stock Exchange and the business
registration body.

Annual financial statement, report of liguid capital ratio a1 31" December, hall-year financial
statement, report of liquid capital ratio at 30™ June of the Company must be audited by an
independence audit organization under regulation,

[ndependence audit organization and its employees must be approved by the SSC before
auditing. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders appoints an independence audit
Company or passes a list of independence audit Company, and authorizes the Board of
Directors to choose a Company on the list thereof to audit the Campany in the fiscal vear of
the corresponding annual meeting. In the same fiscal year, the Company is not allowed to
change the approved audil organization, except where mother Company changes the audit
organization that have been approved or accredited audit organization is suspended or
removed its accreditation for auditing.

Annual financial statements must contain a report on the results of business and production
setivities which reflects in a truthful and objective manner the profit and loss of the Company
in the fiscal year, a balance sheet which reflects truthfully and objectively the activities of the
Company as at the time of preparation of the statement, a cash flow report and explanatory
notes to the financial statements. If the Company is a parent Company, a consolidated balance
sheet on the operation of the Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of each fiscal year
must also be included in addition to the annual financial statements,

The total amount of remuneration, salary paid to Members of the Board of Directors, General
Director and other managers shall be included in the Company’s operating cost in accordance
with regulations of law on corporate income tax, be recorded as a separate item in the
Company’s financial statement and be reported at the Annual general mecting of sharcholders.

The Company must formulate semi-annual and quarterly statements in accordance with
regulations of the State Securitics Commission and submit them to the Stale Securitics
Commission and the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the contents of the audited annual financial statements must be sent o all
sharcholders and announced in one (01) issue being published nationwide, If the Company
has its own website, the audited financial statements and the semi-armual and quarterly
statements of the Company must be announced on such website.

Interested organizations and individuals shall be entitled to inspect or copy the audited annual

financial statements and the semi-annual and guarterly statements during business hours of
the Company at its Head Office, and shall be required to pay reasonable copying expense.
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o, The Company must disclose the Annual Report under the regulations of laws on securities
and securities market.

Article 63:  Disclosure of information and public announcement
Annual financial statements and other supporting documents must be disclosed to the public in
accordance with regulations of the State Sccurities Commission, Ministry of Finance and must be

submitted to the relevant tax authority and the business registration body in accordance with the Law
on Enterprise.

CHAPTER XVIL. COMPANY AUMTING
Article 64:  Auditing
l. Al the annuoal General Meeting of Sharcholders, an independent auditor which legally operates
in Vietnam and which is permitted by the State Securities Commission to audit listed
companies shall be appointed to carry out the auditing of the Company for the next fiscal year

in compliance with the terms and conditions agreed by the Board of Directors,

2, The Company shall be required to prepare and send the annual financial statemenis to the
independent auditor after the end of a fiscal year,

= A copy of the audit report must be enclosed to the annual financial statements of the Company.
4. The auditor who audits the Company shall be permitted to attend all General Mectings of
Sharcholders and shall be cntitled to receive other notices and information which the
shareholders are entitled to receive and relating to the General Meeting of Shareholders, and
shall be entitled to express histher opinions about issues relating to anditing.
CHAFPTER XVIII. SEAL
Article 65:  Seal

i Seal includes the one made at the seal factory or the seal in the form of an USE token pursuant
to the law on electronic trading.

2 The Board of Directors shall determine the type, number, appearance and content of the seal
of the Company, branches, representative office (if any).

: I The Board of Directors, General Director shall use and manage the seal in accordance with
the applicable law.
CHAPTER XIX. TERMINATION OF OPERATION
Article 66:  Dissolution of the Company
. The Company may be dissolved in the following cascs:
a. The operation duration of the Company expires, including after any extension;

b. A court declares the Company bankrupt in accordance with the applicable law;
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(-8 The enterprise registration certificate is revoked:

d. The General Meeting of Sharcholders makes a decision on early dissolution;

- Oither cases as stipulated by law,

The early dissolution of the Company shall be decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and shall be implemented by the Board of Directors. The decision on dissolution

must be reported to, or must be approved by (if 5o required by law) the competent body in
accordance with regulations.

Article 67:  Extend the operational duration

The Board of Directors convenes the General Meeting of Sharcholders at least seven {07)
maonths before the expiration of the operational duration o that the sharcholders can vote to
extend the operational duration of the Company according to the proposal of the Board of
Directors.

The operational duration is extended when shareholders who represent at least 65% of the
total votes of all shareholders participating the General Meeting of Sharcholders approve the

proposal.

Article 68:  Liguidation

1.

The Board of Directors must establish a liquidation committee consisting of three {03)
members, no less than six (06) months before expiry of the operation duration of the Company
o afler a decision on dissolution of the Company is made. The General Meeting of
Shareholders shall appoint two (02) members to the committee and the Board of Directors
shall appoint one (01) member from an independent auditor. The liquidation committee shall
formulate its operational rules. Members of the liquidation committee may be selected from
the employees of the Company or they may be independent experts, All expenses relating to
liquidation shall be paid by the Company in priority to other debts of the Company.

The liquidation committee shall be responsible to report its date of establishment and date of
commencement of operation to the business registration body. From such point of time, the
liguidation committee shall represent the Company in all work relating to the liquidation
before a court and administrative bodies.

Proceeds from the liquidation shall be disbursed in the following order:
. Expenses of liquidation;

b. Wages, retrenchment allowances, and social insurance in accordance with law and
other benefits of employees pursuant 1o signed collective labor agreement and labor
contracts;

¢ Taxes and other payments of o tax nature which the Company must pay to the State;

. Loans (if any);

e, Other debts of the Company;
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After all the debts in ftems (a) to (¢) above have been paid; the balance shall be
distributed to shareholders, Preference shares shall be paid in priority.

Article 69:  Bankruptcy

The bankruptcy of the Company shall comply with the provisions of the law on bankruptey of
enterprises operate in the finance and banking sector,

CHAPTER XX. INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Article 70:  Internal dispute resolution

Where a dispute or a complaint relating to the operation of the Company or to the rights of
shareholders arising out of the Charter or out of any rights or obligations stipulated in the Law
on Enterprisc, in other laws or administrative regulations between:

. A shareholder with the Company; or

b. A shareholder with the Board of Directors, the Inspection Commitiee, the General
Director or a senior manager; or

. Customer or other relevant partners of the Company.

The relevant parties shall attempt to resolve such dispute by way of negotiation and
conciliation. Except where such dispute involves the Board of Directors or the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside over resolution
of the dispute and shall require each party to present the real issues in the dispute within a
period of five (5) working days from the date the dispute arises. [f the dispute invalves the
Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board of Directors, either party may request the
Chairman to appoint an independent expert who shall act ag arbitrator during the course of
resolution of the dispute.

If a decision on reconciliation is not made within a time-limit of six (6} weeks from the
beginning of the reconciliation process or if the decision of the reconeiling medium is not
accepted by the parties, then any party may take such dispute to the economic arbitration or
fo the competent court in Viet Mam.

The parties shall bear all costs relating to the procedures for negotiation and coneiliation, The
court shall decide which party is to bear the costs of the court.

CHAPTER XX1. SUPPLEMENT AND AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

Article 71:  Supplement and amendment to the Charter

Any supplement and amendment 1o the Charter must be considered and approved by the
Creneral Meeting of Shareholders.

Where any regulations of law relating to the operation of the Company have not been
mentioned in the Charter or where new regulations of law are different from the content of
the Charter, such regulations of law shall awtomatically prevail, and shall regulate the
operation of the Company.
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Article 72:

CHAPTER XXII. EFFECTIVE DATE

Effective date

This Charter comprises twenty two (22) chapters with seventy two (72) articles and approved
on January 10, 2025 and its full contents shall take effect from the signing date,

The validity of the Charter:

i.

b.

This Charter takes effect from the signing date;

From the effective date of the Charter, if' (i) the Head Office of the Company
{stipulated in Article 2.3}, (i) Business line and sector of the Company {stipulated in
Article 4.1}, (1if) Charter capital of the Company (stipulated in Article 6.1) arising in
reality, then these new contents will be avtomatically uwpdated into the Charter to
replace the equivalent contents. The Charter updated new contents (if any) shall be
signed by Chairman and shall be effective from the signing date.

The updated contents (if any) need io be added to the Company’s Charter in the
subsequent fiscal year to propose to the General Meeting of Sharcholders of the
following year for approval.

In case regulations related to the operation of the Company have not been mentioned
in this Charter or in case new regulations are different from the articles and clauses i in
this Charter, then those regulations shall be apply and adjust the operation of thr:1
Company.

This Charter is made in five (03) originals in Vietmamese and two ((2) originals in English
with same validity,

This is the sole and official Charter of the Company.

Copies or extracts of the Charter shall be valid when they bear signature of Chairman of the
Board of Directors or signatures of at least half of the total number of Board members or
CGeneral Director.

Signed on January 10, 2025,

SIGNATURE OF THE LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
OF THE COMPANY

,
% -:'- \
Loy EQHGT il

x| COPHAN |%

o | CHUNG KHOAN
S) PHL HUNG /)
" .1__} ..-" F

Mr. ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING

Page 67



PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness
MNo.: .06 /2025 Tr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025
SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL

Prafit Distribution Plan for 2024

Te: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

= Pursuant to the Law on Enterprize No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17 June 2020

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019%QH14 dated 26 November 2018;

- Fursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation:

- Pursuant to the Financial Statements of the year 2024 audited by KPMG VN Co., Lid.

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby submits to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to pass on the Profit Distribution Plan for 2024 as follows:

Profit after tax in 2024 ~ WND 108,063,036
Undistributed profit in 31/12/2024 \VND 54,935,807,608
‘Dividend 2024 pay cash; 1% par value VND 20,000,932,900
{excluding treasury shares)

Submit to Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to pass the authorization to Board of
Directors to choose the suitable time and proceed the procedure to pay dividend according
to legal regulation.

Flease kindly consider and approve,

Respectfully,

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

fir L

’ .
ALBERT mela‘f;{u’mu TING
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORFPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: &L /2025/TTr-HBQT He Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
Development and Businese Plan
of the Company for Year 2025

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 582020/QH14;
= Pursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

The Board of Directors (BOD) of Phu Hung Securities Corporation (PHS) hereby submits the
proposal of Development and Business Plan of the Company in 2025 as follows.

In 2025, Company will focus on the sustainable development, balancing between profitability
and risk

1. Brokerage

Amidst the challenging environment, PHS demonstrated resilience in its business operations.
In 2024, the securities brokerage revenue reached VIND145 billion, reflecting a 3% decrease
compared to 2023, Besides, margin lending income declined by 11% to WND278 billion due
to lower market interest rates. To counter this, PHS introduced a suite of financial products
with competitive interest rates and favorable conditions aimed at attracting diverse customer
segments while maintaining net interest margins. To further drive customer engagement,
PHS launched several promotional programs targeting individual investors and referral
partners. These initiatives successfully attracted a significant number of new clients,
reinfarcing the company's commitment to growth and customer development. Looking ahead
to 2025, PHS plans to enhance business efficiency to creale more value for shareholders
and strengthen its intermal team.

PHS's strategic initiatives have bolstered its market position. In 2024, PHS achieved 8™
place in the futures brokerage market on HNX, with a market share of 2.88%, a 8.3%
increase from the end of 2023, Futures contract trading revenue also performed better
compared to 2023, To sustaln this momentum, PHS will enhance customer pelicies to attract
more potential clients and talented sales professionals. Additionally, PHS will promote
futures trading within its current sales team, recognizing its importance in enabling clients to
profit during market downturns. In parallel, PHS collaborates closely with the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) to ensure secure and efficient
business operations, reinforcing its commitment to protecting and enforcing investor rights.
This dedication was recognized in 2024 when PHS received the Qutstanding Member Award
for Futures Trading and Settlement Activities from VSDC, underscoring its sfrong
performance in this domain. Moving forward, PHS will continue to advance professional
research, enhance service quality, and create greater value for its clients,

2. Advisory & Underwriting

In 2024, the Advisory Division ("ADV™) will continue to carry out internal restructuring, with
the goal of diversifying products and services to meet the increasing demands of the market.
At the same time, ADV will expand its network of partners and customers by connacting with
customers of PHS branches and cooperating with other securities companies and financial

Submission to AGMS - Development & Business Flan of PHS for Year 2025 1/a
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institutions. ADV will also actively engage with and provide consulting services to

international customers operating in Vietnam, to leverage our connections with the foreign

investors. Additionally, ADV will update its consulting processes to ensure risk control during
the implementation of service contracts and the effective storage and tracking of customer
records.

In 2025, ADY will maintain its core business strategy of providing comprehensive consulting

services to customers, including listing, issuance, and capital mobilization consulting services,

ADV will also continue to expand its network of domestic and international investors to meet

the capital mobilization needs of businesses. For international customers operating in

Vietnam who require advisory on capital mobilization, capital sales, or additional issuance,

ADV will actively connect and offer consulting services. At the same time, ADV will continue

to improve service quality and enhance professionalism In providing coerporate finance and

ME&A consulting services to improve customer and Investor satisfaction. Based on the current

situation and available capabilities, PHS plans to focus on developing ADV specifically in the

following areas:

- Update and train employees on new frends in listing, securities issuance, and capital
mobilization. Ensure that the advisory team has in-depth knowledge and problem-solving
skills to serve customers effectively,

- Review and improve the consulting process to ensure efficiency and transparency in
saryvice contracts, minimizing risks for both customers and PHS,

- Strengthen connections with financial institutions, securities companies, and international
investment funds to expand the investor network for capital mobilization projects in
Vietnam.

- Organize or participate in exchange events and seminars with international and domestic
partners to build susfainable relationships and explore investment cooperation
opportunities.

-~ Maintain relationships with existing and previous customer while expanding connections
with domestic and foreign businesses operating in Vietnam.

Through the above actions, ADV will be able to achieve lis goals of maintaining and

developing in 2025 by providing professional consulting services, improving service quality,

and expanding its network of customer and investors.

3. Dealing

Aligned with the VN-Index's recovery, the Dealing Division priorntized identifying investment
opportunities in leading stocks from key sectors and those with unique growth namatives and
promising business outlooks. Furthermaore, we diversified our portfolio to enhance investment
performance and manage risks effectively, By the end of December 2024, our portfolio
achieved an approximate return of 13.8%.

The stock market remains an attractive investment channel, bolstered by policy support
measures designed to stimulate economic growth in the coming year. Additionally, Vietnam
Is actively working toward upgrading its stock market status from frontier to emerging by
2025. The removal of the Nen-Prefunding requirement under Circular 88 marks a significant
milestone, eliminating the long-standing mandate for foreign investors to secure 100% MNon-
Prefunding for stock transactions, demonstrating \ietnam's strong commitment to this
upgrade. Morgan Stanley esfimates that international funds could potentially invest up to
USDE billion in Vietnamese equities once upgraded if this transition accurs. Thus, we believe
that Vietnam's stock market holds considerable promise and significant upside potential in
2025,

To capitalize on these opportunities, ocur portfolio has been strategically reallocated in
anticipation of market rallies next year. We continue to seek diversification and enhancement
opportunities, By implementing comprehensive monitoring of both fundamental and technical
factors, we are confident that the Dealing Division will be well-positioned to identify valuable
investment opportunities and achieve stronger performance in 2025,
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Overall, we remain committed to closely tracking market movements and adopting a
proactive stance in pursuing investment opportunities. By fostering close collaboration with
the Research Team and leveraging extensive fundamental and technical analyses, the
Dealing Division has honed its ability to capture potential capital gains while maintaining a
well-analyzed and reasonable risk exposure.

4. Cover Warrant

From 2023 to 2024, the Covered Warrants (CVW) market in Vietnam underwent a significant
change. The number of CW listings decreased sharply from 229 to 77 {-66.4% YoY), and the
number of active issuers dropped from 10 to 4. Although these changes suggest a
contraction in market activity and issuer participation, the average daily trading value
increased from YNDZ28.6 hillion to WYND43.3 billion (+51.5% YoY), indicating that there is still
strong investor demand for CW,

This situation presents both challenges and opportunities. We believe the market holds long-
term potential, and the current challenges will be resolved over time, PHS will aggressively
provide the CW product to satisfy the investors' demand in the long term. To achieve this,
PHS will focus on enhancing our product offerings, Improving liquidity, and building investor
confidence. We also aim to educate the market and implement targeted marketing strategies
to increase engagement. By staying attuned to market trends and evolving investor needs,
PHS plans to drive sustainable growth in the covered warrant market in the years ahead.

In 2024, PHS developed an advanced trading system for CW market-making and hedging
and has used it in the market, We expect to expand the CW issuance in 2025. Leveraging
the advanced trading system, we can enhance our self-trading ability, accuracy, and
efficiency and adopt multiple trading strategies in the market.

With the solid technical foundation we built in 2024, we can expand the trading system 1o
accommodate new trading strategies. We will also expand the trading business to multiple
markets, such as the ETF and derivatives markets, to diversify the risk of propretary and
covered warrant trading. Our objectives for the coming years are to build a well-diversified
trading business with measurable and controllable risks.

5. Marketing

In 2025, PHS's marketing activities will align with the company's overall strategic direction,

focusing on improving service and products quality, and driving innovation o enhance the

customer experience.

Bullding on the foundation established in 2024, the 2025 marketing activities will be

systematically implemented with the following key priorities:

- Branding: strengthening brand awareness through creative, multi-channel, and multi-
platform campaigns, reinforcing PHS's position as one of Vietnam's leading foreign-
invested securities companies.

- Promotional programs: understanding that, besides core service quality, promotional
activities and customer appreciation programs are essential in supporting clients on their
investment journey. Aftractive offers in 2025 will aim fo attract and retain new users,
expanding the potential customer base.

- Building online user behavior databases: utilizing online measurement tools, as well as
establishing a system to track the outcomes of online account-opening campaigns will be
a top priority for the Marketing Division in 2025, This will provide a comprehensive view of
potential customers, enable data analysis, and personalize services and marketing
campaigns to better meet customer needs.

2025 is expected to be a breakthrough year with significant opportunities in the market,

Therefore, the Marketing Division will carefully prepare programs and aciion plans to

maximize these advantages, contributing to PHS's continued growth and success.
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6. Risk Management

The stock market in 2024 is more positive when the indexes increase, However, due to the
influence of domestic and foreign macroeconomic fluctuations, the growth rate is not stable,
especially affecting the psychology of investors who are sfill very cautious. PHS has had
flexible sk management strategies from time to time such as: changing force selling ratios:
offering suitable products to support business as well as hedge risks during the volatile
market period. At the time, control the max loan price and loan ratio in accordance with the
legal provisions and the market situation. Besides, risk management strategy had been
changed in which margin outstanding structure is mainly allocated on large-cap, fundamental
stocks and strong background customers,

Besides, risk management activities, namely margin frading service, which was highly
effective. Based on the result of bad debt assessment from margin frading services, we can
see thatl there was no any new bad debt in the past year. Risk Management Division has
well-cooperated with Research Division to have advanced analyses of listing companies
which iz eligible for margin trading and many changes in risk management strategy in order
to show effectiveness and flexibility with market changes. Simultaneously with using some
data analysis tools developed by the Software department of the Information Technology
Division and launching stock pricing models also strongly support Risk Management Division
in collecting data quickly, accurately and effectively to submit to the Risk Management
Committes,

In Movember 2024, the decision to allow foreign investors to trade with Mon-Prefunding
created cpportunities for new service development at securities companies. With the
anticipated launch of the KRX operational plan, expected to introduce new trading and
settlement solutions. Upgrading the stock market will attract investors and increase liquidity.
Based on the market situation in 2024 and the Non-Prefunding product for foreign
institutional investors, the Risk Management Division has been and is continuing to develop
and supplement risk management policies suitable for the general market in 2025,

At the same time, focus more on good fundamental stocks Lo increase the proportion of that
stock in the portfolio of securities allowed for margin trading, furthermore, policies will also
focus on improving the process of evaluating margin-traded securities as well as assess
customer reputation in order to minimize risks for PHS and customers as well as support the
business of PHS

PHS launched derivatives securities trading for four year, with a steadily increasing customer
base and has many opporunities to grow up in 2025. Derivative product 15 increasingly
expanded, so the development of risk management strategies in this product needs to be
proactive and improved to minimize negative impacts. The main identified risks include:
market risk, capital leverage, margin requirement, legal, liquidity, and system risk. Therefore,
Risk Management Division will be submitted criteria to control risk in realtime and suitable
for the market in order to minimize risks in business activities in the Derivative Market,
Besides in 2025, minimizing risks and support business operations are the most important
strategies in nsk management operation. In order to ensure those strategies, Risk
Management Division will effort to cooperate with Research Division to have advanced
analyses of listing companies which is eligible for margin trading and continue to use some
data analysis lools developed by the Software department of the Information Technology
Division to assist strongly Risk Management Division in collecting data quickly, accurately
and efficiently to submit to the Risk Management Committee. Then, we continue apply more
diversified margin list with different loan ratio to support safe and efficient business
operations and increase compelitiveness in the market.

Above of all, Risk Management policies in 2025 must ensure independence, flexibility,
uniformity, efficiency and sustainability of business growth and strengthening the company’'s
market position.
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7. Information Technology

In 2024, PHS significantly enhanced the customer trading experience by leveraging modermn
technology and optimizing its trading platform. The company bolstered the security and
reliability of its systems to ensure safe and efficient transactions, while IT infrastructure and
applications were meticulously prepared for seamless integration with the KRX trading
system.

A key milestone was the development of a new mobile app, PHS Elite, that unified stock and
derivatives trading into a single platform. By incorporating advanced technology, the app
provided users with a smooth, intuitive, and efficient trading experience.

PHS collaborated with Viettel Cybersecurity to conduct a thorough review of system
vulnerabilities. Following this, recommended security measures were implemented, and
system maonitoring capabiliies were upgraded. Additionally, targeted training sessions were
organized to heighten employee awareness of information security practices.

The company also launched a Business Intelligence (Bl) reporting system featuring an
intuitive interface with dynamic charts and graphs, This system enhanced data analysis and
decision-making capabilities across departments by seamlessly integrating data from trading
systemns and other platforms. Comprehensive reports reflecting the company's overall
operations were generated to support strategic planning.

To further enhance IT infrastructure, PHS upgraded its high-speed servers and networking
equipment, effectively minimizing latency. Comprehensive testing, as required by the Stock
Exchange and the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation, was successfully
conducted to ensure smooth integration with the KRX platform.

In 2025, PHS will prieritize technology investments to advance automated trading tools and
optimize its online trading platform. The company aims to enhance cperational efficiency and
service quality by leveraging cutting-edge technology while ensuring system safety and
security through adherence fo international standards.

Key initiatives will include substantial investments in automated trading tools, particularly for
CW and ETFs.

The online trading systern (web-trading) will undergo continuous modernization to address
the evolving needs of customers. Enhancements will focus on refining the user interface and
user experience. Additionally, the Mobile App will be upgraded with integrated advanced
analytics tools and improved charting functionalities to provide a superior trading experience.
To strengthen information security, PHS will establish an Information Security Management
System (ISMS) compliant with 1ISO 27001 standards. This initiative will ensure robust
information security management and guarantee system readiness for seamless integration
with the KRX system when it becomes operational.

8. Human Resources

In the third quarter of 2024, the labor market continued to show positive growth, marked by

increases in the workforce, the number of employed individuals, and the average monthly

income comparad to both the previous guarter and the same period last year. At the same

time, unemployment and underemployment rates decreased relative to both the previous

quarter and the same period last year,

As technology becomes increasingly embedded in the workplace, it is crucial to reassess

how it can be leveraged to enhance labor productivity. The rapid evolution of technology,

particularly Al-driven innovations, is reshaping job structures. Jobs requiring fewer skills are

increasingly being replaced by automation, while new skills in technology, digital tocls, and

data analysis are becoming essential. These changes highlight the need for the Human

Resources Division (HR) to move beyond its traditional model, adjusting its priarities to better

align with the curment environment.

In 2025, the Training department will focus on:

— Developing technology skills: enhance technology application skills and programming
languages for non-tech employees;
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- Career development programs: strengthen employee capabilities through programs and
self-development pathways based on the 70/20110 model;
Competence evaluation: systematize competence evaluation methods;
— Training program standardization: standardize skills training before, during, and after
programs fo ensure quality and a positive impact on employee performance;
— Leadership development. implement training programs for directors and middle
management to enhance team leadership, management, and strategic thinking.
HR will also integrate the ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) message into
internal engagement aclivities, sports events, and culiural programs throughout the year.
This will help the company, and each employee gradually recognize their role in social issues
and contribute to sustainable development in the future.
The Talent Acquisition department will continue to standardize recruitment processes and
candidate assessments to ensure optimal screening. Additionally, the department will focus
on standardizing the onboarding process and training pathways for new employees to ensure
that new members undergo a structured training program and quickly integrate into the
company, keeping pace with work progress. Furthermore, strategies and actions to build and
promote the employer brand externally will continue te be maintained, innovated, and
updated with new trends to enhance PHS's image among potential candidates,
The Compensation & Benefits department will conduct surveys to gather insights on the
current employee experience, which will inform the development of appropriate salary, bonus,
and benefits policies, The department will standardize the job classification system as a
foundation for building salary and benefits structures, ensuring internal faimess while
remaining competitive with the external policies, combined with the development of a
comprehensive reward and recognition system to encourage employee achievements, boost
motivation, foster loyalty, and create a harmonious work environment that retains top talents,
Moreover, the focus will be on refining the performance evaluation system to ensure # is
effective, consistent, and fair.
Compliance with Labor Laws, insurance, taxes, and other responsibiliies will always be
prioritized to ensure the protection of employee rights

9. Summary of Budget Plan 2025

Index Plan for 2025 (VND)
_Total revenue = 743,494 616,053
Tolal expenses 613,226, 470,006
Profit (loss) before tax 130,268, 148,047
Profit {loss) after tax 103.608,778.575
Market share 1.23%

Please kindly consider and approve.

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING
-
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No.: . @E/2025MTr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
On Financial Budget plan for year 2025

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

In view of the estimation of economy outiook and position of the Company on the local
securities market, the Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby
submits to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to pass the Financial Budget
plan in 2025 as follows:

Curreney: VND

Index Plan for 2025
Total revenue 743,484 616,053
Total expenses 513,226,470,006
| Accounting Profit before tax 130,268,148,047
Accounting Profit After tax 1[]3;03??8.5?5
e P B 182000000

In 2024, the remuneration of key management members spent VND 5,544 794 767
Please kindly consider and approve.
Respectiully,

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

)

2
/
A

£

ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING
(. ;

L
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No.: LLI2025/TTr-BKS Ho Chi Minh City, 17 Apnl 2025
SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL

On selection of Auditor for the year 2025

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 58/2020/QH14,
- Pursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

The Inspection Committee of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby submits o the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval on the Selection of Auditor for the year 2025

as follows:
1. Auditor: KPMG Viet Nam Co., Ltd

Address:  10/F, Sun Wah Tower, 115 Nguyen Hue, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City.
Telephone: 028 3821 9266
Fax: 028 3821 0267

In case KPMG Vietnam Co., Ltd is unable to provide audit services for the company,
the independeant audit unit in 2025 will be replaced as Delaitte Vietnam Audit Ca., Ltd.

2. Authorizafion to the General Director to perform related works with the Selected
Independent Auditor company.,

Please kindly consider and approve.
Respectfully.

ON BEHALF OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE
HEAD OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE

LIEW SEP'SIANG

Submission to AGMS - Selaction of Auditer for year 2025 1M
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: _09./2025/TTr- HOQT Heo Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUEBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
On The Introduction of Nominated Candidate for Members of BOD
of Company (Term 2025 — 2028)

TO: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14;
- Pursuant 1o the current Charter of Phu Hung Securites Corporation:

Board of Directors submit to Annual General Meeting of Shareholder the Introduction on
List of nominated candidate for Members of Board of Directors (Term 2025 — 2028), the
details as below

No. Mame Title
1 Mr. ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING | Member
2 | Mr. NGUYEN DOAN HUNG Member
3 | Mr. WU, JIN-JENG Member
4 Mr. CHEN CHIA KEN Member
5 Ms. LIN, HSIU-CHU Independent Member

Please kindly consider and approve.
Respactiully
Enclosure:
1. CWs of nominated candidates
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

e A >

ALBERT HWFfHG}dHIN TING

-

Submission ta AGMS — Introduction of Mominated Candidate
far Members of BOD (Term 2025 — 2028) Page 1 of 1
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SOCTALIST REPURLIC OF VIETMAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14", 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE
To: STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE:
HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE.

Full name: ALBERT KWANG-CHIN TING

Uiender: Male

DPraie of birth: 15 Febneary 1971

Place of birth: Taiwan

Passport Mo,

Date of 1ssue;

Place of issuwe:

Mationality: British

Ethnig:

Permaneni sddress:

Telephone number; (+84 28) 5413 5479

Email: chit_phsiiphs.vn

Organization’s name subject to information disclosure rules; Phu Hung Securities
Corporation

Current position in an institution subject to information disclosure: Chairman
Positions in others companies:

Chairman of CX Technology Corporation

*  Chairman of Lawrence 5. Ting Foundation

o  Chairmaen of Phu Hung Fund Management Joint Stock Company
MNumber of shares in possession share, accounting for % of charter capital, wherein:
4.1  Possession behalf of { Staiefstrategic investor/other institution )

¢ Phu Hung Far East Holding Corporation: 92,004,600 shares, $6.00%

#  New Heam Internationsl Ine: 41,676,745 shares, 20.84%

= Freshfields Capital Corporation: 1,290,486 shares, 0.65%

4.2 Individusl possession: Mone

Other commitment of possession (P any)y None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17, Relsted interest with public company, public fund (if any): None
18 Conflict interest with public company. publéc fund (if any): Mone

| hereby undertakes that the information provided sbove is true and correct. | will take the
full responsibility to the b,

APPLICANT
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Frecdom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14%, 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE
Ta STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE;
HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE,

Full name: NGUYEN DOAN HUNG

Cender: Male

Diate of birth: 31 October 1953

Place of birth: Doan Hung — Phu Tho

Citrzen identification No.: Date of issue:

Place of 155ue:

Nationality: Vietnam

Ethnic:

Permanent address:

Telephone number: (+84 18) 5413 3479

Email: cbtt_phsiaiphs.vn

Organization’s name subject o information disclosure rules: Phu Hung Securities
Corporation

Current position in an institution subjeet to information disclosure: Member of Board
of Directors

Pasitions in others companies:

«  BOD Member at Masan Group Corporation

Number of shares in possession 0 share, accounting for 0% of charter capital, wherein:
14,1 Possession behalf of {Statefstrategic investor/other institution); None

142 Individual possession: None

Other commitment of possession (1f any): None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17.  Related interest with public company, public fund (if any): None
18.  Conflict interest with public company, public fund (G any): None

I hereby undertalce that the mformation provided above is true and correct, 1 will ke the
full responsibility to the law,

APPLICANT

NGUYEN DOAN HUNG


Dieu Nguyen Thi Bich
Rectangle


I

P A LR e L

10,
11.

16,

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14%, 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE

STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION:
VIETNAM EXCHANGE;

HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE;

HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE.

Ta:

" B & @

Full name: CHEN CHIA KEN

Ciender: Male

Dhate of birth: October 14™, 1971

Place af birth: Tawan

Passport Mo.: Date of issue: Place of issue:
Mationality: Tewanese

Ethnic:

Permanent address:

Telephone number: (+84 28) 5413 5479
Email: cbit_phsiphs.vn

Organization’s name subject to information disclosure rules: Phu Hung Securities
Corporation

Current position in an institution subject to information disclosure; The 2™ Legal
Representative cum Member of Beard of Directors cum General Director

Positions in others companies; none

Number of shares in possession 0 share, accounting for 0% of chaner capital, wherein:
13.1  Possession behalf of (State/strategic investor/other institution): none

13.2  Individusl possession; nong

Other commitment of possession (if any): none

List of related persons of applicant:

1/3
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17.  Related interest with public company, public fund (if any): none

18.  Conflict interest with poblic company, public fund (il any): none

I hereby undertakes that the information provided above is true and correct. [ will take the
full responsibility to the luw,

APPLICANT

=/

CHEN CHIA KEN
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14", 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE
To: STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE;
HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE.

Full name: WU, JIN - JENG

Ciender: Male

Date of birth: 11 September 1959

Place of binh: Korea

Paszpent No.: Diate of 1ssue Place of issue:
Mationality: Taiwan

Ethmic:

Permanent address:

Telephone number; (+84 28) 5413 5479

Emuil: ehtt_phsfphs.sn

Organization’s name suhject to information disclosure rules: Phu Hung Securitics
Caorporation

Current position in an institution subjéct to information disclosure: Member of Board
of Directors

Positions in others companies:

o Ceneral Director of Viu Thai Investment Consultant Lid.
» Member of Board of Directors of Phu Hung Fund Management

MNumiber of shares in possession share, accounting for % of charter capital, whersin;
4.1 Possession behalf of (Stalerstrategic investor/other institation):
& Vi Tho Investmen! Consultant Lid..: 7473415 shares, 1.74%,
14.2  Individual possession: Mone
Chher commitment of possession (37 any ) None
List of related persons of applicant:
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17. Related interest with public company, public fund {if any): None
18. Conflict interest with public company, public fund (il any): None

| hereby undertakes that the information provided sbove is true and comeet, 1 will take the
full responsibility to the law.,

APPLICANT

WU, JIN - JENG
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14, 2025
CURRICULUM VITAE

STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
VIETNAM EXCHANGE

HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE

HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE

Ta:

- & = &

Full name; Lin, Hsin-Chu
Gender: Female
Date of birth: March 03, 1964
Place of birth: Taiwan
Passport No.: Date of issue: Place of issue:
Mationality: Taiwan
Ethnic:
Permanent sddress:
Telephone number: (+84 28) 5413 5479
Email: ¢btt_phsi@phs.vn
Organization’s name subject to information disclosure rules; Phu Hung Securities
Corporation
Current position in an institution subject to information disclosure: None
Positions in others companies:
- Finance Director of CX Technology Corporation
Number of shares in possession () share, accounting for 0 % of charter capital, where
in:
14,1 Possession behalf of (State/strategic investor/other institution): None.
142 Individual possession: None
Other commitment of possession (if any): None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17.  Related interest with public company, public fund (if any): None
18, Conflict intercst with public company, public fund (if any): None

I hereby undertake that the information provided above 18 true and correct, 1 will take the

full responsibility to the law.

APPLICANT

LIN, HSIU-CHU



PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: .. 40/2025TTr-HBQT Hao Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
On The Introduction of Nominated Candidate for Members
of Inspection Committee of Company (Term 2025 - 2023)

TO: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Based on the Law on Enterprises No. 52/2020/QH14;
- Basad on the cument Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

Board of Directors submit to Annual General Meeting of Shareholder the Introduction on

List of nominated candidate for Members of Inspection Committee (Temn 2025 - 2028),
the details as below:

No. Mame Title
1 | Mr. LIEW SEF SIANG Member
2 | Ms. WANG, GWANTFANG Member
3 | Mr. CHIU, HSIEN-CHIH Member

Please kindly consider and approve.
Respectiully,
Enclosure

1. CWVs of nominated candidates

OM BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

P o

T

ALBERT HWAP:IGE?:F'IH TING
i
el

Submission to AGMS - |ntraductivn of Nominated Cendidate

for Memibars of Inspection Commities (Term 2025 - 2028) Fage 1 of 1
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THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14%, 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE
To: *  STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
« VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
* HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE;
«  HO CHIMINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE.

Full name: LIEW SEP SIANG
Ciender; Male
Date of birth: 8 Augast 1978
Place of birth: Malaysin
Passport No,: Daie of issue: Place of issoe:
Nationahty: Malaysia
Ethnic: Chinese
Permanent residence:
Telephone number: (+84 28) 5413 5479
Email: ehtt_phsiaphs.vn
Orgamzation’s name subject to information diselosure rules: Phu Hung Securities
Corporstion
Current position in an institution subject 1o information disclosure Rules: Head of
Ingpection Commitiee
Posttions in others companies:
o [Deputy General Director ar Phu Hung Assurance Com.
®  Hewd of Inspection Committee st Phu Hung Fund Management Joint Stock
Lormpany
Mumber of shares inpossession ) shave, accounting for 0% of repistered capital,
of which:
14.1  Possession behalf of (State/strategie investor/other institution):
o Phu Hung Assurance Corp.: 3,136,847 shares, 1.57%
14.2  Possess for own aceount: None
Other commitment of holding shares (if any): None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17, Related interest with public company, public fund {(if any); None
| 8. Conflict interest with public company, public fund (if any); None

I hereby undertakes that the information provided above is true and correct, 1 will take the
full responsibility to the law.

LIEW SEP SIANG
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14", 2025

CURRICULUM VITAE
To: STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION;
VIETNAM EXCHANGE;
HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE;
HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE,

Full name: CHIU, HSIEN-CHIH

Gender: Male

Dxate of birth: 19 May 1968

Ploce of birth: Taiwan

Pazsport Mo Dute of 1550 Place of issue:
Mationality: Taiwan

Ethnie:

Permanent address:

Telephone number: (+84 28) 5413 3479

Email: ecbu_phsiphs.im

Organization’s name subject 1o information disclosure rules: Phu Hung Securities
Corporation

Current position in an institution sulject to information disclosure: Member of
Inspection Commiltee

Positions in athers companies:;

Mumber of shares in possession 0 share, accounting for 0% of charter capital, wherein:
14.1  Possession behalf of (State/strategic investor/other institutiony: None

142 Individual possession: None

Other commitinent of possession (if any): None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17.  Related interest with public company, public fund (if any): None
18, Conflict interest with public company. public fund (if any): None

I hereby undertake that the information provided above is true and correct, | will take the

full responsibility 1o the haw.

APPLICANT
AR
: bt

CHIU, HSIEN-CHIH
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SOCIALIST REFUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Indepeadence = Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 14, 2025
CURRICULUM VITAE
To: STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
VIETNAM EXCHANGE

HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE
HO CHI MINH CITY STOCK EXCHANGE

Full name; WANG, GWAN-FANG
Gender: Female
Diate of karth: 0% Oeiober 1985

Place of birtl: Taiwin

Passport No.: Date of issue: Place of issue;
Mationality: Taiwan 7. Ethnic: Mone
Permanent address:

Telephone numbser: (-84 28) 3413 5470
Email: chtt_phsfphs.ym
Orpanization’s name subject to information disclosure rules: Phu Hung Securities
Corporation
Current position in an institution subject to information disclosure: Member of
[nspection Committee
Positions in others companies:
- Director of The Sang Media Company Limited
- Dhireetor of Hung Truven Development Company Limited
Number of shares in possession () share, accounting for 0 % of charter capital, whire
m:
141 Possession behalf of (Stae/strategic investor/other institution): Mone,
14.2  Individual possession: None
Cther commitment of possession (if any ) None

List of related persons of applicant:
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17.  Related interest with public company, public fund (if any): None
18, Conflict interest with public company, public fund (if any): None

| hereby undertake that the information provided above is true and comrect, 1 will take the
full responstbility 1o the law,

APPLICANT

U-;M:Jf*"i/

WANG, GWAN-FANG
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PHU HUNG S0OCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness
MNo..14/2025TTr-HBQT Ho Chi Minh City, 17 Apnl 2025
SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL

On Report of Board of Directors on re-appoint of Mr, Chen Chia Ken
to be General Director (Term 2025 = 2028)

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. §8/2020/QH14;
- Pursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

The Board of Directors of Phu Hung Securities Corperation submits Report of Board of

Directors on the re-appoint of Mr. Chen Chia Ken to be General Director (Term 2025 -
2028}, detail as follows:

1. Appointed Member; Mr. CHEN CHIA KEN
Passport Mo:

Date lssue:;
Issue Place:

Flease kindly consider and approve.
Respectiully,

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

- \

ALBERT HW{&HG{{;G/HI N TING

Submission to AGME = Repart of BOD on re-appointment General Director
[Term 2025 - 2028) Fage 1 af 1
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PHU HUNG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
SECURITIES CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

No.: 04./2025/TTr-BKS Ho Chi Minh City, 17 April 2025

SUBMISSION FOR APPROVAL
On Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection Committee

To: THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PHU HUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No, 59/2020/QH14;
Pursuant to the Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the Ministry of
Finance regulating the operations of securities companies;

- Pursuant to the Current Charter of Phu Hung Securities Corporation;

The Inspection Committee of Phu Hung Securities Corporation hereby submits to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval on the Procedure on inspecting, controlling of
Inspection Committes.

Please kindly consider and approve.
Enclosure:

The Procedure on inspecting, controlling of Inspection Commities.

ON BEHALF OF INSPECTION COMMITTEE
HEAD OF INSPECTIOMCOMMITTEE

PN

LIEW SEF SIANG

Submission to AGMS - The Proceduce of Inspacticn Committes 11
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Ins

Code: 01/2025/QTr-BKS

Procedure on of

. . Version: 01
pection Committee

Effective date: 17/4/2025

Responsible person: Approved by: Head of Inspection Committee

Chieu Nha Thy

Support/Replacement:

Liew Sep Siang

Approval date: 17/4/2025

AMENDMENT TRACKING

Amendment

Date .
section

Amendment content Compiler

17/4/2025

New process

DOCUMENT DISTRIBUTION

1. General Director X 4. All Divisions/Departments X
. 5. All Branches and Transaction

2. Deputy General Director X Offices X

3. Internal Control Division X

Purpose

The control procedure is issued to prescribe specific steps in the procedure of
inspection, review and appraisal activities upon request sent to the Inspection

Committee, to ensure that th

ese activities take place consistently, completely and

in compliance with legal regulations.

Scope of application

This process applies to me

mbers of Inspection Committee and the Inspection

Team established by the Inspection Committee to carry out inspection and

supervision activities at Phu
Reference documents

- Securities Law No. 54/20

Hung Securities Corporation.

19/QH14 dated November 26, 2019.

- Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, detailing certain
provisions of the Securities Law.




V.

Circular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, regulating securities
company operations.

Charter of organization and operation of Phu Hung Securities Corporation.
Regulations on organization and operation of the Inspection Committee of Phu
Hung Securities Corporation.

Definitions

1.
2.
3
4.
5
6
7

8.

PHS/Company: Phu Hung Securities Corporation.
BOD: Board of Directors of the Company.

BOM: Board of Management of the Company.
GD: General Director of the Company.

IC: Inspection Committee

SSC: State Securities Commission.

SE: Hanoi Stock Exchange, Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, Vietnam Stock
Exchange.

VSDC: Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

Process content

1. Flowchart



T: Is the time of conclusion of approvalirejection of the inspection

T is the time to conduct the inspection

In charge | Step Workflow Time Contral pnlr.’itﬁ
Entities
reguesting Request for inspection, Request letter, valid
inspection 1 review, appraisal proof of ownership,
and Notice of IC
supervision
u Document |
respanding fo
Review request request for
IC 2 T . .
inspection and
supearvision (for
| external parties)
Decision on the
IC 2 Establish Inspection Team 7 days establishment of an
Inspection Team
'“’*T"f:afri]“" 4 [ BRI TR BpRE O g 3 days Inspection outline
I
— e .I ——
Inspection ; Conduct inspection and draft T
Team reporn
Head of i Inspection Minutes
Inspection 5] Report inspection results 3 days Inspaction Results
Team N Report
TEE == e i = _ .
-
Head of IC ; Provide feedback on results 15 days Notification of

inspection results
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2. Process explanation

Step 1: Request for inspection, review, appraisal:

- The entity requesting the inspection submits a request to the Inspection

Committee.

- Eligible requesting entities:

« Shareholders or groups of shareholders as defined by the Enlerprise Law
and Company Chartar.

«  State regulatory agencies such as S5C, 5E, VSDC, Business Registration
Office, Tax Autharity, etc.

=  The member of |C.

Step 2: Review request:

- The IC evaluates the request based on the Company Charter, IC regulations,

and its annual or ad-hoc work plan to consider the request for inspection at
date T.

IC shall assess whether the inzpection reguest is appropriate and the subject
iz entitled to request the inspection and make a conclusion. If the conclusion

agrees to the inspection, proceed to the next step. If the inspection is not
agreed to, respond In writing and state the reason lo the requeslting unit.

Step 3: Establish the Inspection Team

Within 05 working days of approval, the |G forms the Inspection Team,
specifying members, scope, and basis for the inspection. The decision is sent
to the BOD and GD within 02 working days after issuance.

The Inspection Team is responsible for conducting inspections, drafting the

Inspection Report, and reporting the inspection resulls to the IC.

Step 4: Build inspection plan

i

The Inspection Team prepares the inspection plan based on the Company
Charter and IC's Regulations and submits it to the Head of the IC for approval,
The plan must clearly define the inspection scope, content, and timeframe.

Within 03 working days, the Head of IC reviews and evaluates the plan based
on the inspection request, issues an approval decision, and notifies the BOD
and GD. If the plan does not align with the request, the Head of IC instructs the
Inspection Team to make adjustments.
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If the inspection is requested by a state authority, the Inspection Tearm must
ensure the plan complies with the regulatory reguirements.

Step 5: Conduct inspection and draft report

The Inspection Team carries out the inspection following the procedures

outlined in the approved inspection plan.

During the inspection, adjustments to the plan may be made based on actual
conditions, but onfy with the approval of the Head of the IC and notification to
the BOD and GD.

Inspection content includes:

Freparation:

L

Collect relevant documents related to the inspected unit's activities.
Select samples of documents, records, and vouchers for review.
Regquest the inspected unit to provide necessary documents, recaords,

and wvouchars,

Inspection execution:
Review and verify the collected documents and records, Compare provided

materials to assess compliance with laws, the Company Charter,
Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, BOD, and internal

policies,

Inspection criteria:

Ensure all reviewed issues, documents, and records comply with legal
regulations, the Company Charter, Resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, BOD and internal rules.

Any identified violations or suspected violations must be recorded in
the Inspection Report,

The Inspection Team evaluales risks and wviolations, if any, and
recommends comective actions.

Drafting the Inspection Report;

After completing the inspection, the Inspection Team will prepare an
Inspection Report, which will clearly state the entire work content,
Issues, inspection doguments, results and conclusions of the
inspection. A meeting must be held with the inspected unit to announce
the Inspection Report and results
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The inspected unit has the nght to explain and request that the
explanation be recorded in the Inspection Record or attached to the
Inspection Record in case of disagreement with the conclusion of the
Inspection Team.

In case the Inspection Team and the inspected unit agres on the
inspection results and conclusions, the parties shall sign the Inspection
Minutes.

The inspection record must have full signatures of the members of the
Inspection Team and the representative of the inspected unit. In case
any member of the Inspaction Team or representative of the inspactad
Linit refuses to sign the Record, the reason for refusal must be clearly
stated in the Record and the Inspection Team, the remaining members
still sign the Record according to normal procedures

The inspection record must be submittad to the Head of the IC together
with the Inspection Results Report and kept at the [T

Step 6: Report inspection results:

- Within 03 working days post-inspection, the Head of Inspection Team submits
the Inspection Results Report to Head of the IC,

- The report includes:

L]

Unit overview,

Identified issues and violations (if any);
Root cause analysis,

Proposed corrective actions (if any),

Step 7: Provide feedback on resulis:

- Within 15 working days, the |C sends inspaction results to the requesting entity,
BOD, and GD

- For regulatory inspections, reports are submitted per state agency deadlines

3. Record keeping

- Reports, Inspection Minutes, and related documents are archived al the IC.

- Tha inspected unit retains 01 original copy for monitoring and corrective action.

- Retention follows legal reqguirements.
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VI. Implementation provisions

This procedure takas effect from the date of signing and supersades any previous
related processes. Any maodifications or additions will be made as necessary based
on the company’s operalional needs, developments, or changes in relevant legal
regulations

All relevant departments are responsible for complying with, disseminating, and
guiding the implementation of this process. They must ensure that all employees
are informed and strictly adhere fo it.

Vil. Record storage

No. Record Name Storage Unit

1
2

Vill. List of Appendices and related Forms

M. Document Code

1
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